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StATE OF NEW YORK
OFFICE OF THE STATE COMPTROLLER

H. CARL McCALL
StATE COMPTROLLER

August 7, 1999

To the Citizens, Governor and Members of the
Legislature of the State of New York:

am pleased to present New York State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial
I Report for the year ending March 31, 1999.

This report is issued at a critical time in our history—a time of great excite-

ment and tremendous possibility, but also a time when missteps could seriously
threaten New York State’s future.

As we enjoy the longest and strongest period of economic growth in
recent memory, we have a golden opportunity before us: to translate our current
prosperity into future security. More than this, it is a responsibility we have to
future generations of New Yorkers to ensure that we make the most of this
good fortune.

The business world understands two principles that are fundamental to
survival. First, during times of prosperity, you must plan ahead and make
investments that will help you weather the next downturn. And second, that you
must meet deadlines to give your business credibility and to focus on the
greater challenge of excelling rather than just moving along.

Unfortunately, our leaders have not applied these basic principles of
business to running New York’s business.

We’ve seen the unprecedented growth on Wall Street resulting in greater
revenues, billion-dollar budget surpluses for each of the last three years,
almost $10 billion in tax cuts, and the huge growth in the state pension
fund—from $56 billion to $110 billion over the past 6 years.

New York’s financial condition, by many indicators, is very strong. Clearly,
many New Yorkers are doing better, and there is reason to believe that many
people will continue to do well.

But this is only part of the story, the short-term part of the story. For the
future, there remains a profound threat to New York’s fiscal condition—our
leaders’ inability to pass a budget on time.

This year, New York was late in meeting the deadline for enacting a budget
for the fifteenth consecutive year. Despite the countless disruptions this has
caused taxpayers, there has been no revolt. Many New Yorkers have thrown up

their hands in frustration, but the status quo continues with no end in sight.
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The fact that our leaders are unable to construct a budget is a fundamental
weakness for the State’s financial condition. Because of the late budget, many
billions of dollars have been spent over the years with no plan of how that
spending fits into the overall picture.

The chronic inability to meet the budget deadline prevents us from plan-
ning for the future and from being able to do all we can to provide solid
finances for future generations. And this lack of planning helps give New
York the distinction of still having one of the highest debt burdens and lowest
credit ratings in the country, and significant out-year gaps.

New York State has tremendous resources and unmatched potential. We
have a vast university system. We are the world’s center for many important
industries, including banking, media, agriculture, finances, and many others.
We have a diverse population and continue to attract people from around
the world.

But without being able to take even the most incremental step of year-to-
year planning, our leaders and our citizens cannot be positioned to face the
challenges of the future.

The world is changing at an unbelievable pace in all levels. In governments,
as with businesses, those who are not prepared for all the opportunities of the
future will be left behind.

New York has benefitted greatly from the success of Wall Street. But we
need to reduce our reliance on this sector and to encourage economic diver-
sification. We need to make investments in sectors that will help provide good
jobs for all New Yorkers, no matter where they live.

New York is a great state, and it can be better. To ensure that we continue to
strengthen our financial condition we must continue to invest in those activities
that strengthen New York’s infrastructure and make our State competitive in the

twenty-first century.
Sincerely,
X i

H. Carl McCall
State Comptroller
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GENERAL FUND
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

This report has been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) for governments as promulgated by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the pre-
sented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all
disclosures, included within the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report rests with
the Office of the State Comptroller. The general purpose financial statements
contained in this report have been audited by KPMG. Their audit was conducted
in accordance with generally accepted governmental auditing standards and their
auditor’s report precedes the general purpose financial statements. The unqual-
ified auditor’s report attests that the State’s financial information is fairly presented
in accordance with GAAP. In addition, the Office of the State Comptroller was
honored for the tenth consecutive year to receive the Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting from the Government Finance Officers
Association for the State’s 1998 Financial Report. This prestigious award represents
the highest form of recognition in the area of governmental financial reporting and
reflects a commitment to clearly communicate the State’s financial results and
position to the taxpayers through public disclosure.

The Reporting Entity and Its Services

The funds and entities included in this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report are
those for which the State is accountable, based on criteria for defining the financial
reporting entity prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The
criteria includes legal standing, fiscal dependency and financial accountability.
Based on these criteria the various funds, account groups and entities shown in this
report are considered as part of the reporting entity (see Notes 1 and 16 of the Notes
to the Financial Statements).

The State provides a range of governmental services in such areas as education,
social services, health and environment, criminal justice, transportation, mental
hygiene, and housing, among others, and also administers the State and Local
Retirement System.

General Governmental Results

An operating surplus of $1.078 billion is reported in the General Fund for fiscal
year 1998-99. As a result, the General Fund now has an accumulated surplus of
$1.646 million. Without the benefit of $4.7 billion of New York Local Government
Assistance Corporation net bond proceeds between 1991 and 1995 and the
decision to use $300 million of Dormitory Authority bond proceeds in 1996, the
General Fund accumulated deficit would have been $2.935 billion.

The State completed its fiscal year ended March 31, 1999 with a combined
Governmental Funds operating surplus of $1.823 billion as compared to a com-
bined Governmental Funds operating surplus for the preceding fiscal year of
$1.800 billion. The combined 1998-99 operating surplus of $1.323 billion
included operating surpluses in the General Fund of $1.078 billion, Debt Service
Funds of $209 million, Capital Projects Funds of $154 million and offset by an
operating deficit in the Special Revenue Funds of $118 million. The 1997-98 com-
bined operating surplus of $1.800 billion included operating surpluses in the Gen-
eral Fund of $1.562 billion, Special Revenue Funds of $49 million, Capital
Projects Funds of $232 million offset by an operating deficit in the Debt Service
Funds of $43 million.

The State’s financial position as shown in its Combined Balance Sheet as of
March 31, 1999 includes a fund balance in its Governmental Funds of $3.949 billion
represented by liabilities of $14.749 billion and by assets available to liquidate such
liabilities of $18.698 billion. The governmental funds fund balance includes a
$1.646 billion accumulated General Fund surplus.
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Revenues and other financing sources of the Governmental Funds totaled
$74.225 billion, an increase of $3.762 billion (5.34%) over the previous year.
Changes in revenues and other financing sources from the previous year are
shown in the following tabulation (amounts in thousands):

. . Increase/(Decrease)
Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over 1998 Actual
1999 1998 Amount Percent
Taxes:
Personalincome ............. ... . i $ 21,011,480 $ 18,695,967 $ 2,315,513 12.39
Consumption @and USE ... ...ttt 10,157,796 9,734,541 423,255 4.35
BUSINESS .+« e e v e e v e e e e e e e e e 6,386,336 6,636,159 (249,823) (3.76)
Other ... 1,429,773 1,307,500 122,273 9.35
Subtotal . ... 38,985,385 36,374,167 2,611,218 7.18
Federalgrants .......... ... i 24,132,509 23,268,282 864,227 3.71
Other:
LOMEIY .« e e v e e e e e e e e e e e 3,697,631 3,943,096 (245,465) (6.23)
3 Patientfees ... ... 386,377 392,370 (5,993) (1.53)
Miscellaneous .. .......... ... 3,616,846 3,362,017 254,829 7.58
E Subtotal . ... 7,700,854 7,697,483 3,371 0.04
> Total revenues . ... i 70,818,748 67,339,932 3,478,816 517
M Other finanCing SOUICES . . . ..o ot 3,406,645 3,123,595 283,050 9.06
m Total revenues and other financing sources .................. $ 74,225,393 $ 70,463,527 $ 3,761,866 5.34
O Changes in revenues were highlighted by:
m Personal income tax (PIT) revenues increased due to a combination of
- strong employment, and wage growth and increases in estimated tax
< payments due to the strong performance by the financial markets.
5 = The increase in consumption and use taxes is attributed primarily to an
increase in sales tax revenues caused by increased consumer confidence
Z and related spending as demonstrated by an increase in personal income
< and strong employment growth.
Z = The decrease in the sale of Lotto and instant cash game tickets was
; responsible for the decrease in lottery revenues.
Expenditures and other financing uses totaled $72.902 billion in fiscal
=Pl 1999 which represents an increase of $4.228 billion (6.16%) over expenditures
=2l and other financing uses in fiscal 1998. Changes in expenditures and other
=Pl financing uses from fiscal 1998 levels are presented in the following tabulation
= (amounts in thousands):
. R . Increase/(Decrease)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses Over 1998 Actual
1999 1998 Amount Percent
Local assistance grants:
Social Services .. ... .. $ 26,078,639 $ 25,631,452 $ 447,187 1.74
Education . ...... ... 16,023,276 14,304,505 1,718,771 12.02
Mental hygiene .......... ... .. ... . 1,078,252 1,051,409 26,843 2.55
General PUIPOSE . . .ottt e e 910,193 581,466 328,727 56.53
Health and environment . ......... . ... .. ... . i 1,609,905 1,301,597 308,308 23.69
TransSportation . .. ... ... 640,409 602,714 37,695 6.25
Criminal JUSEICE . .. ..t 322,933 319,122 3,811 1.19
Miscellaneous .......... .. ... . i 884,022 875,063 8,959 1.02
Subtotal . ... 47,547,629 44,667,328 2,880,301 6.45
Departmental operations ... ...t 13,929,092 13,729,764 199,328 1.45
Capitaloutlays .. ...... ... 3,393,450 2,983,620 409,830 13.74
Debt service and financing arrangements . ... ....... .. i 2,889,008 2,727,657 161,351 5.92
Total expenditures . . ... 67,759,179 64,108,369 3,650,810 5.69
Other finanCiNg USES . .. .. .ot 5,142,836 4,565,236 577,600 12.65

Total expenditures and other financinguses .................. $ 72,902,015 $ 68,673,605 $ 4,228,410 6.16
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REVENUES -1999

Federal Grants

Taxes (52.5%) (32.5%)

EXPENDITURES —1999
Debt SeHice:

(3.9%)

Capital Outlays
(4.7%)

Other Fi

(7.19

Local
Assistance
Grants

(65.2%)

DEBT SERVICE —1999

Voter Approved
(13.6%)

Nonvoter Approved
(86.4%)

= The increase in expenditures for social services is attributed to spending for
Medicaid and the State’s welfare program and to normal program growth.

= The increase in Education expenditures is primarily attributed to addi-
tional support of public schools.

= Construction of correctional facilities and highway and bridge projects
accounted for the increase in capital outlays.

Cash Management

Cash deposits into the State Treasury are controlled jointly by the State Comp-
troller and Commissioner of Taxation and Finance. Cash is managed in pooled
investment funds to maximize interest earnings. Investments are made in accor-
dance with the State Finance Law. Cash is primarily invested in repurchase
agreements involving United States Treasury obligations and remaining funds are
invested in United States Treasury bills and commercial paper. For the fiscal year
ended March 31, 1999, the average daily balance of pooled investment funds was
$7.144 billion with an average yield of 5.33% and total investment income of $381
million. Cash deposits not held in the State Treasury and controlled by various
other State officials are generally held in interest bearing accounts.

Fixed Assets

The fixed assets of the State are those fixed assets used in the performance of gov-
ernmental functions. They are accounted for in the General Fixed Assets Account
Group and the College and University Funds. They do not include infrastructure
(e.g., roads, bridges, canals, etc.) or fixed assets of public benefit corporations which
amounted to $30.329 billion. At March 31, 1999, the fixed assets of the State
amounted to $17.483 billion. This amount represents the valuation of fixed assets
in accordance with GAAP and the State’s capitalization policy as described in Note
1 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Risk Management

The State does not insure its buildings or their contents against theft, fire or
other risks and does not insure its automobiles against the possibility of bodily injury
and property damages. However, the State does have fidelity insurance on State
employees. Workers’ compensation coverage is provided on a self-insurance basis.

Debt Administration and Other Financing Arrangements

There are a number of methods by which the State may incur debt. The State may
issue general obligation bonds approved by the voters and notes in anticipation of
such bonds. The State, with voter approval, may also directly guarantee obligations
of public benefit corporations. Presently, the Job Development Authority is the only
public benefit corporation authorized to issue State guaranteed bonds. Payments
for debt service on State general obligation and State-guaranteed bonds or notes
are legally enforceable obligations of the State. The State has never been called
upon to make any direct payments pursuant to its guarantee.

The State’s general obligation bonds are rated A by Standard and Poor’s Cor-
poration and A2 by Moody’s Investors Services. The State had approximately
$4.640 billion in general obligation bonds outstanding at year-end. During the
year the State issued $388 million in general obligation bonds and redeemed $488
million. The total amount of general obligation bonded debt authorized but not
yet issued at year-end was $2.033 billion.

Notes payable had a year-end balance of $185 million. The notes were
issued in the form of commercial paper.

The Public Benefit Corporations (Corporations) had $48.952 billion in
bonds payable and short-term debt outstanding at year-end. For further informa-
tion regarding Corporations debt refer to Note 16 of the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

The State has also entered into lease/purchase agreements with selected
public benefit corporations and municipalities for certain of its capital facilities.
Under the agreements, construction costs are initially paid from appropriations
and repaid to the State from proceeds of bond issues.
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The State has also entered into other financing agreements with several public
benefit corporations. The terms of these arrangements require the State to fund the
debt service requirements of the specific debt issued by the entity. The public benefit
corporations will generally retain title to the assets acquired with the bond proceeds.

At year-end, the State had long-term debt obligations of $30.644 billion under
lease/purchase and other financing arrangements (nonvoter approved), an
increase of $1.694 billion from fiscal 1998.

Fiduciary Fund Type
The Fiduciary Fund Type consists of Trust and Agency Funds including the State and
Local Retirement System. These funds are used to account for assets held by the State
in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations and
other governments. The Trust and Agency Funds reported a year-end fund balance
of $116.038 billion as compared to the previous year-end of $109.473 billion.
The State and Local Retirement System, covering most non-teaching State
employees and local government employees outside of New York City, reported
combined net assets available for retirement benefits of $112.723 billion as
compared to the previous year-end amount of $106.319 billion. For further
information refer to Note 15 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Public Benefit Corporations

Component units are discretely presented and reported as Public Benefit Corpo-
rations (Corporations), which includes Public Authorities, and are legally separate
entities that are not operating departments of the State. Corporations have been estab-
lished for a variety of purposes such as economic development, capital construction,
financing, and public transportation. The powers of the Corporations generally are
vested in their governing boards. The Governor, with the approval of the State
Senate, appoints a majority of the members of the Board of most major Corporations
and either the Governor or the Board selects the chairperson and chief operating
officer. Corporations are not subject to the State constitutional restrictions on the
incurrence of debt which apply to the State and may issue bonds and notes within
legislatively authorized amounts.

Corporations submit annual reports to the Governor, the Legislature and the
State Comptroller on their operations and finances accompanied by an indepen-
dent auditor’s report. Corporations are generally supported by revenues derived
from their activities, although in recent years the State has provided financial assis-
tance, in some cases of a recurring nature, to certain Corporations for operating
and other expenses, and in fulfillment of its commitments on moral obligation
indebtedness. The Corporations have been presented in the accompanying finan-
cial statements as component units of the State. The amounts presented in this
report were derived from the Corporations’ most recent audited financial state-
ments. At year-end these entities reflected a combined equity of $23.032 billion. For
further information refer to Note 16 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Internal Controls

In developing the State’s accounting system, consideration was given to the adequacy
of internal controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition and the reliability of financial records for preparing
financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of rea-
sonable assurance recognizes that the cost of control should not exceed the benefits
derived. To monitor the adequacy of the State’s internal accounting controls my
auditors check adherence to internal control policies and procedures.

In 1987 the Legislature passed the New York State Governmental Account-
ability, Audit and Internal Control Act, which commits the State to enhancing exist-
ing systems of internal controls in all State governmental entities. As a result, there
is now a requirement for managers in all branches and components of government
to maintain comprehensive internal control systems and to regularly evaluate
the effectiveness and adequacy of these systems by internal reviews and external
audits. Finally, the legislation promotes accountability by assuring that all external
audits are made available to the public.

OUTSTANDING DEBT
(AMOUNTS IN BILLIONS)

$36
$33
$30
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Budgetary Process

The State Constitution requires the Governor to submit a cash basis balanced
Executive Budget which contains a complete plan of expenditures for the ensu-
ing fiscal year and identifies the anticipated revenues sufficient to meet the
proposed expenditures. Included in the proposed budget are provisions for
spending authority for unanticipated revenues or unforeseen emergencies in
accordance with statutory requirements. The Executive Budget also includes both
cash basis and GAAP basis financial plans for the ensuing fiscal year as well as a
three year financial projection for governmental funds and a three year capital
plan. The accounting policies used in developing the GAAP basis financial
plans are generally consistent with those used in preparing the annual GAAP
financial statements. Generally, the financial plans are updated quarterly. The Leg-
islature enacts appropriation bills and revenue measures embodying those parts
of the Executive Budget it has approved. Expenditures are controlled at the major
object (e.g., personal service, grants to local governments) level within each pro-
gram/project of each State agency in accordance with the underlying approved
appropriation bills.

Economic Outlook

The national economic expansion is on track to become the longest period of
growth in the nation’s history, a milestone that it is likely to reach in the winter
of 2000. After expanding by a blistering pace of 6.0 percent in the fourth
quarter of 1998, the nation’s real output slowed to 4.3 percent growth in the first
quarter of 1999.

Rising interest rates and the expectation of dampened expenditures by con-
sumers, whose spending has outpaced income in recent quarters, are expected
to slow growth in the second half of 1999 and in 2000. However, the near term
recession risk appears to be low, unless a sudden change occurs in the generally
quiescent inflation picture. The appearance of significant price increases would
precipitate more aggressive tightening by the Federal Reserve’s Open Market
Committee than the recent 0.25 percentage point increase in the lending rate.

After several years of sub-par economic growth, New York State is showing
signs of greater economic vitality. The State’s job count surged by 2.0 percent in
1998, and in the first five months of 1999 expanded by 1.8 percent, about three-
quarters of the national pace. Recent employment growth has been led by busi-
ness services, trade, and construction. New York’s pace of growth has pulled
slightly ahead of large northeastern states such as New Jersey and Massachusetts,
and has lifted the State from the near-bottom in rankings of employment growth
to place 29th in the rate of job creation so far in 1999. The State’s personal
income growth lagged the nation’s only slightly in 1998, and ranked 27th among
the states. In May 1999, New York State’s unemployment rate stood at 5.1 percent,
down from 5.6 percent a year earlier, although the State’s jobless rate still stands
nearly a full point above the national rate of 4.2.

The aggregate signs of improvement mask a State economy characterized by
wide disparities in growth and in economic opportunities. Growth in recent years
has been driven by the downstate economy, propelled by Wall Street and related
activities. Averaging 2.2 percent per year from 1996 to 1998, employment growth
in New York City and the New York suburbs outpaced the four largest upstate
metropolitan areas, where the job count expanded by just 1.0 percent during the
same period. Weakened by continuing manufacturing losses, the pace of growth
upstate appears to have slackened thus far in 1999, while the downstate metro area
is expanding at last year’s brisk rate.

By contrast, unemployment in the upstate areas is quite low, averaging 4.2
percent in May 1999, compared to 6.6 percent in New York City. Unfortunately,
low unemployment rates upstate are an outcome of population outflows which
have reduced the size of the labor force and the number of unemployed. Recent
population growth in New York, slow by national standards, has been entirely
attributable to the downstate area, where the population of the New York City
PMSA (New York City plus its northern suburbs) grew by 0.5 percent in 1998. In
the aggregate, population did not increase in the rest of the State.
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Income growth exhibits similar geographic disparities. Upstate New York,
excluding New York City and the New York suburbs, experienced total real personal
income growth of just 3.3 percent in 1997, compared to 4.8 percent in the City and
similar growth in the metro area suburbs. Within New York City, disparities are even
more stark as income growth in Manhattan stood at nearly four times the pace of
some of the other boroughs.

The combination of extraordinary earnings growth on Wall Street, corpo-
rate downsizing, and the reduction in well-paying manufacturing jobs upstate has
widened the income gap between the highest earners and those in the middle or
at the bottom of the spectrum. Those gaps are now greater in New York than in
any other state. The income gap between the top fifth of families and the middle
fifth increased the third fastest of all states between the mid-1980’s and the
mid-1990’s. During this period, the average income of the middle fifth of fami-
lies declined by $1,200 while the average income of the richest fifth of families
grew by $24,700.

And while the nation’s poverty rate has decreased since 1993, New York’s
poverty rate has increased slightly, averaging 16.6 percent between 1995 and
1997, compared to 13.6 percent for the US as a whole. For this period, New York
showed the 11th highest rate of poverty among the states, including the District of
Columbia.

Both the improvement and the disparities in the State’s economic perfor-
mance have been shaped by the ongoing Wall Street boom, which has concen-
trated income growth in the downstate area and has given considerable lift to State
revenue collections. Using some of the broadest measures of the State’s economic
performance, it appears that the Wall Street investment banking and securities
brokerage firms have dominated the State’s economic picture throughout the
1990’s expansion. From 1992 to 1997, the latest year for which data are available,
Wall Street accounted for half of the $27 billion increase in real earnings, com-
prised of wages and proprietors’ income, and the same result holds for growth
in real Gross State Product, a measure of the total output produced in New York.
The sizable earnings this sector produces is concentrated among only about 2
percent of the State’s workforce, to whom Wall Street firms paid out an estimated
$9.9 billion in bonuses alone in 1998, the second highest level on record.

The economic importance of Wall Street to the State and to New York
City is much greater in the 1990’s than it was in the 1980’s. In New York City,
where securities industry employment is concentrated, Wall Street accounted for
23 percent of the gain in total real earnings between 1983 and 1988, compared
to 56 percent of the gain between 1992 and 1997. Similarly, the financial sector
has accounted for a much larger share of growth in Gross State Product (about
50 percent) in the 1990’s, than it did in the 1980’s, when the sector accounted
for one-eighth of the gain in Gross State Product.

The State’s economic outlook in the near term is highly dependent on the
course of the national economy and Wall Street. In the absence of a national
slowdown or an enduring stock market correction, growth should continue its
recent pattern of strong downstate activity and weaker expansion upstate. The
Federal Reserve Open Market Committee, which sets interest rate policy, has
signaled its intention to exhibit restraint in raising interest rates in the absence
of clear evidence of inflationary pressures developing in the economy. However,
bad news on the inflation front would trigger a series of interest rate increases
which would slow spending in the economy and considerably dampen Wall
Street activity, in turn putting State revenue collections at risk.

REPORT LAYOUT

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections:
Introductory, Financial, and Statistical. The Introductory Section includes the
Comptroller’s transmittal letter, this Financial Overview, the State’s organization
chart, and a list of principal officials. The Financial Section includes the general
purpose financial statements and the combining statements and schedules, as well
as the auditor’s report on the financial statements and schedules. The Statistical
Section includes fiscal, social, and demographic information about the State.
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Independent Auditors' Report

The Audit Committee of the
New York State Legislature

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the State of New York (the “State™) as of and
for the year ended March 31, 1999. as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These general purpose
financial statements are the responsibility of the State's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial
statements of certain entities, which statements represent 48% of total assets and 55% of total revenues of
the discretely presented component units - Public Benefit Corporations. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion. insofar as it
relates to the amounts included for those entities, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis. evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall general
purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based upon our audit and the reports of other auditors, the general purpose financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the State of
New York as of March 31, 1999, and the results of its operations and cash flows of its Nonexpendable
Trust Funds and discretely presented component units - Public Benefit Corporations for the year then
ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

The Schedule of Required Supplementary Information — Year 2000 Disclosure, as listed in the
accompanying table of contents, is not a required part of the general purpose financial statements, but is
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, and we did not
audit and do not express an opinion on such information. Further, we were unable to apply to the
information certain procedures prescribed by professional standards because of the nature of the subject
matter underlying the disclosure requirements and because sufficiently specific criteria regarding the
matters to be disclosed have not been established. In addition, we do not provide assurance that the State is
or will become year 2000 compliant, that year 2000 remediation efforts of the State will be successful in
whole or in part, or that parties with which the State does business are or will become year 2000 compliant.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements
taken as a whole. The combining financial statements and schedules listed in the accompanying table of
contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose
financial statements of the State of New York. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, based upon
our audit and the reports of other auditors, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the
general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated July 21, 1999 on
our consideration of the State of New York's internal control over financial reporting and on its compliance
with laws and regulations.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report, and
accordingly, express no opinion thereon.

KPMe P

July 21, 1999

l . . . KPMG LLP KPMG LLP a US. limited liability partnership, is
a member of KPMG International, a Swiss association.
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Combined Balance Sheet

ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS AND
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Governmental Fund Types
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects
ASSETS:
Cash and investments .............couuiieiieiennennenn. $ 2,839,666 $ 428,755 $ 1,767,233 $ 753,474
Retirement system investments . ............... .. .. ... — — — —
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:

TaXES ottt 5,401,998 50,109 170,003 67,397

Due from Federal government . .............. .. ... — 3,655,366 — 317,095

Loansandleases . ........ ... — — — —

OtNer o 595,954 173,282 164,046 26,948
Due fromotherfunds ......... .. .. .. .. . . 1,033,472 37,526 83,291 3,203
FiXed assets .. ... — — — —

Other @ssets .. ... 774,251 355,363 — 180
Assets available for future debt service .. .......... .. ... .. ..... — — — —
Amounts to be provided for retirement of general

long-term obligations . ........... .. ... — — — —

Total @SSELS .o\ v it $ 10,645,341 $ 4,700,401 $ 2,184,573 $ 1,168,297

LIABILITIES:

Payable to local governments ................ ... ... $ 1666442 $ 720,068 $ — $ 35,573
Taxrefundspayable ........ ... .. .. . . . 3,415,747 59,404 9,038 3,851
Accrued liabilities . ........ . 2,157,460 2,348,778 — 38,654
Pension contributions payable ......... ... ... .. ... ... .. .. 70,221 — — —
Accounts payable . ........ . ... 293,387 68,049 3,274 474,767
Duetootherfunds ......... .. ... . i 349,938 598,791 — 630,119
Deferred revenueS . . ...t 883,310 441,409 104,901 27,966
Notespayable .. ...... ... . — — — 185,000
Bonds payable . .......... . ... — — — —
Obligations under lease/purchase and other financing

AIrANgEMENES . . oottt e e — — — —
Other long-term liabilities . ........... ... .. ... ... . . . . 163,125 — — —

Total liabilities . ... 8,999,630 4,236,499 117,213 1,395,930
EQUITY (DEFICIT) and OTHER CREDITS:
Fund balances (deficits):
Reserved for:
Net retirement system assets held in trust for
pension benefits . ... . — — — —
Encumbrances ........ .. 363,926 482,541 — 3,922,414
Unemployment benefits ......... ... ... .. . . i — — — —
DEDt SEIVICE . . — — 1,628,693 —
Tax stabilization ........ ... .. . . . 472,935 — — —
Other specified pUrpoSes . ....... .ot 375,180 8,500 — 20,538

UNFESEIVEA . . .ot 433,670 (27,139) 438,667 (4,170,585)
Investmentin fixed assets ........ ... .. i — — — —
Contributed capital . ........... — — — —
Retained earnings . . .. ...t — — — —

Total equity (deficit) and other credits ................... 1,645,711 463,902 2,067,360 (227,633)
Total liabilities, equity (deficit) and other credits .......... $ 10,645,341 $ 4,700,401 $ 2,184573 $ 1,168,297

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



EXHIBIT A
Fiduciary Component
Account Groups Fund Types Units
General College and Trust Public
General Long-Term University and Benefit
Fixed Assets Obligations Funds Agency Corporations
— $ —_ $ 3,403,485 $ 7,856,599 $ 26,212,779
— — — 111,008,692 —
— — — 913,318 —
— — — 339 —
— — — — 22,547,899
— — 610,857 2,542,697 2,478,111
— — 439,350 360,993 —
9,432,246 — 8,050,385 — 30,329,349
— — 41,079 8,781,319 7,335,293
— 2,067,360 — — —
— 32,265,168 — — —

9,432,246 $ 34,332,528

$ 12,545,156 $ 131,463,957

$ 88,903,431

— $ — $ — $ 1,459,951 $ —
— — 1,232,435 13,769,369 12,064,692
— 141,942 — — 339,396
— — — 155,464 523,488
— — — 34,406 —
— — 130,697 6,678 1,037,522
— — — — 1,110,928
— 4,640,107 — — 47,841,490
— 23,953,997 6,472,464 — —
— 5,596,482 — — 2,953,775
— 34,332,528 7,835,596 15,425,868 65,871,291
_ _ — 112,723,142 —
_ _ — 1,475,607 —
— — 1,209,572 1,839,340 —
9,432,246 — 3,499,988 — —
— — — — 11,856,040
— — — — 11,176,100
9,432,246 — 4,709,560 116,038,089 23,032,140

9,432,246 $ 34,332,528 $ 12,545,156 $ 131,463,957

$ 88,903,431

STATE OF NEW YORK
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Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures EXHIBIT B
and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits)

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Fiduciary
Governmental Fund Types Fund Type
Special Debt Capital Expendable
General Revenue Service Projects Trust
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Personal inCome . .. ...ttt $ 20,429,324 $ 582,156 $ — $ — $ —
Consumption and USe . . .. ..o vttt 7,320,283 324,903 2,019,151 493,459 —
BUSINESS . ..\ 4,851,574 1,016,392 — 518,370 —
unemployment . ... — — — — 1,616,662
Other . 1,122,395 — 195,378 112,000 —
Federal grants . . ...t e e — 22,859,428 — 1,273,081 25,039
Lottery .. — 3,697,631 — — —
Patientfees . ... ... . — — 386,377 — —
Miscellaneous . . ... .. 2,754,106 620,996 117,137 124,607 2,756,156
Total revenuUes . ... ...t 36,477,682 29,101,506 2,718,043 2,521,517 4,397,857
EXPENDITURES:
Local assistance grants:
SOoCial SEIVICES .. oot 9,251,957 16,826,682 — — —
Education . ........ .. 12,175,154 3,843,791 — 4,331 —
Mental hygiene . ...... ... . i 913,324 132,264 — 32,664 —
General PUIPOSE . . .. oot 910,193 — — — —
Health and environment . ........... ... ... .. ... ... ..... 642,669 697,265 — 269,971 —
Transportation . .. .. ..ot 443,475 185,066 — 11,868 —
Criminal JUStICe .. ... i 281,464 41,469 — — —
Miscellaneous . . . ... ... 348,464 500,778 — 34,780 2,767
Departmental operations:
Personal service . ......... . 6,151,979 651,216 — — 891
Non-personal service . ............. ... 2,257,524 2,938,654 5,380 — 2,171,091
Pension contribution .. ....... .. .. 118,392 20,675 — — —
Other fringe benefits . .. ... . ... ... 1,650,443 134,829 — — 686
Capital construction . ...... ... .. i — — — 3,393,450 —
Debt service, including payments on financing
arrangementsS . .. ... 20,994 — 2,868,014 — —
Unemployment benefits . ......... ... ... ... .. . . . .. — — — — 1,764,328
Total expenditures ......... ..o 35,166,032 25,972,689 2,873,394 3,747,064 3,939,763
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures ........ 1,311,650 3,128,817 (155,351)  (1,225,547) 458,094
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating transfers fromotherfunds . ...................... 4,285,498 814,737 4,525,392 246,646 628,428
Operating transferstootherfunds ......................... (4,580,102)  (2,752,528) (4,257,627) (527,466) (930,324)
Operating transfers from public benefit corporations ........... 88,667 11,184 — — —
Operating transfers to public benefit corporations ............. (343,957)  (1,319,708) — (181,534) (100)
Proceeds of general obligationbonds . ..................... — — — 357,612 —
Proceeds from financing arrangements/advance
refundings .. ... 316,666 — 2,073,882 1,483,884 —
Payments on advance refundings . ......... ... ... ... ... — — (1,977,437) — —
Net other financing sources (Uses) ...................... (233,228) (3,246,315) 364,210 1,379,142 (301,996)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other financing uses ....... 1,078,422 (117,498) 208,859 153,595 156,098
Fund balances (deficit) at April 1,1998 ..................... 567,289 581,400 1,858,501 (381,228) 3,139,286
Fund balances (deficit) at March 31,1999 ................... $ 1,645711 $ 463,902 $ 2,067,360 $  (227,633)$ 3,295,384

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Combined Statement of EXHIBIT C
Cash Receipts and Disbursements
Budgetary Basis — Financial Plan and Actual

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

General Special Revenue
Favorable Favorable
Financial (Unfavorable) Financial (Unfavorable)
Plan Actual Variance Plan Actual Variance
RECEIPTS:
TaXeS . oot $ 33,279,000 $33,319,300 $ 40,300 $ 1,932,000 $ 1,934,100 $ 2,100
Miscellaneous . .......... .. i 1,544,000 1,501,000 (43,000) 5,812,000 5,813,100 1,100
Federalgrants . ............. ..., — 4,000 4,000 22,016,000 21,421,300 (594,700)
Total receipts .. ..o 34,823,000 34,824,300 1,300 29,760,000 29,168,500 (591,500)
DISBURSEMENTS:
Local assistance grants ...................... 24,889,000 24,693,500 195,500 23,486,000 23,447,400 38,600
Departmental operations . .................... 6,650,000 6,671,500 (21,500) 6,183,000 5,920,200 262,800
General statecharges ....................... 2,286,000 2,259,300 26,700 326,000 275,600 50,400
Debtservice .............. i 11,000 8,700 2,300 — — —
Capital projects .. ... i — — — 7,000 5,500 1,500
Total disbursements . .................. 33,836,000 33,633,000 203,000 30,002,000 29,648,700 353,300
Excess (deficiency) of receipts
over disbursements ............. ... ... .. 987,000 1,191,300 204,300 (242,000) (480,200) (238,200)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond and note proceeds, net .................. — — — — — —
Transfers from otherfunds . ................... 1,952,000 1,917,300 (34,700) 2,417,000 2,444,300 27,300
Transferstootherfunds ...................... (2,778,000) (2,854,400) (76,400) (1,940,000) (1,908,100) 31,900
Net other financing sources (uses) ...... (826,000) (937,100) (111,100) 477,000 536,200 59,200
Excess (deficiency) of receipts and other
financing sources over disbursements
and other financinguses .................... $ 161,000 $ 254,200 $ 93,200 $ 235,00 $ 56,000 $ (179,000)
(Continued)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Combined Statement of EXHIBIT C
Cash Receipts and Disbursements
Budgetary Basis — Financial Plan and Actual (cont’d)

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Debt Service Capital Projects
Favorable Favorable
Financial (Unfavorable) Financial (Unfavorable)
Plan Actual Variance Plan Actual Variance
RECEIPTS:
TAXES &« ottt $ 2,223,000 $ 2,204,100 $ (18,900)$ 1,107,000 $ 1,123,400 $ 16,400
Miscellaneous .. ......... ... .. ... .. ... 622,000 630,100 8,100 1,805,000 1,566,600 (238,400)
Federalgrants .. ...... ... ... .. .. it — — — 1,249,000 1,219,300 (29,700)
Totalreceipts . ... 2,845,000 2,834,200 (10,800) 4,161,000 3,909,300 (251,700)
DISBURSEMENTS:
Local assistancegrants ...................... — 695,000 437,900 257,100

Departmental operations . .................... 6,000 4,000 2,000 — — —
General statecharges ....................... — — — — _ _

Debtservice ............. i, 3,289,000 3,266,300 22,700 — — —
Capital projects .. ......... i — — — 3,573,000 3,624,600 (51,600)
Total disbursements . .................. 3,295,000 3,270,300 24,700 4,268,000 4,062,500 205,500
Excess (deficiency) of receipts
over disbursements .......... ... ... ... ... (450,000) (436,100) 13,900 (107,000) (153,200) (46,200)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond and note proceeds,net .................. — — — 331,000 249,000 (82,000)
Transfers from otherfunds . ................... 4,338,000 4,369,600 31,600 274,000 273,600 (400)
Transferstootherfunds ...................... (3,886,000) (3,877,800) 8,200 (423,000) (422,800) 200
Net other financing sources (uses) ...... 452,000 491,800 39,800 182,000 99,800 (82,200)
Excess (deficiency) of receipts and other
financing sources over disbursements
and other financinguses .................... $ 2,000 $ 55,700 $ 53,700 $ 75,000 $  (53,400)$  (128,400)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Combined Statement of Revenues, EXHIBIT D
Expenses and Changes in
Retained Earnings/Fund Balances

NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS AND
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Fiduciary Component
Fund Type Units
Nonexpendable Public Benefit
Trust Corporations

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for SEIVICES . ..o v ittt e e e $ — $ 8,200,592
FINanCiNg iNCOME . . . ..ot e e e e e e e e — 1,272,042
INVESIMENE INCOME . . . .o e e e e e e e e 3,128 1,027,686
Miscellaneous . ... ... . 3,121 580,057
Total Operating reVENUES . .. ..ottt e 6,249 11,080,377

OPERATING EXPENSES:
(@] o T= =] o 1,214 10,435,272
Depreciation and amortization . . ... . — 1,173,757
L= =] — 1,389,135
Total operating EXPENSES . .. ..ttt 1,214 12,998,164
Operating iNnComMe (I0SS) . . ..ottt e e e e e 5,035 (1,917,787)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Non-State subsidies and grants . . . . ... ... — 1,040,476
INTErESErEVENUES . . . . . — 255,304
INTEIESt EXPENSES . . . . ottt — (768,206)
Other, NEt . .. — (94,324)
Net nonoperating revenues (EXPENSES) . ...ttt ittt — 433,250
Income (loss) before operating transfers ........... ... . .. . i 5,035 (1,484,537)
Operating transfers from primary government ... ........ . ...ttt — 1,967,439
Operating transfers to primary gOVernMeNt . . . ... ..ottt e — (31,165)
Income before extraordinary items . ... .. 5,035 451,737
Extraordinary item—refinancing charges ............ ... i — (31,752)
Net INCOME . ... e 5,035 419,985
Depreciation charged to contributed capital ............. .. . i — 576,922
Increase in retained earnings/fund balances .......... ... ... . . .. 5,035 996,907
Retained earnings/fund balances at beginning of year, asrestated ...................... 14,528 10,179,193
Retained earnings/fund balances atend ofyear ........... .. .. .. i $ 19,563 $ 11,176,100

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Combined Statement of EXHIBIT E
Cash Flows

NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS AND
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Fiduciary Component
Fund Type Units
Nonexpendable Public Benefit
Trust Corporations

SOURCES OF CASH AND INVESTMENTS:
Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating iNComME (I0SS) . .« . v v ottt et e e e e e $ 5035 $ (1,917,787)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization . . . ... e — 1,173,798
Interest paid on operating debt . . ... ... — 2,379,677
Interest and dividends on investments ... ........ ... (3,128) (1,027,686)
Component units using governmental fund accounting . ............. .. .. .. . ... — (141,843)
L 1 T — (154,690)
Change in assets and liabilities:
Change inloans and leasesreceivables . . .......... ... . i — (996,164)
Change in otherreceivables . . ... ... ... — (181,964)
Change in Other @ssets . .. ... ..ot — (5,409,278)
Change in payable to local government . ........... ... 100 —
Change in accrued liabilities . . ... ... 7 969,838
Change in pension contributions payable . ......... ... ... . . . — 16,509
Change inaccounts payable .. ... . . 71 (19,789)
Change in dUE t0 . . ... i (47) —
Change in deferred revenUE ... ... ...ttt e — 49,094
Total adjustments to operating income (I0SS) . ... ..ot (3,011) (3,342,498)
Net cash (used for) operating activities ........... ... ... . . i 2,024 (5,260,285)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Borrowing of operating debt . . .. ... ... — 3,973,115
Repayment of operating debt . .. ... . — (2,645,067)
Interest paid on operating debt .. ... . .. — (2,386,758)
Operating grants reCeiVed . . .. .. .. it — 1,012,951
Operating transfers from primary government . ............. ...ttt — 1,998,211
Operating transfers to primary government . . . ... ..ottt e — (16,448)
Repayment of other long-term liabilities .. ........ ... .. .. . . — (33,925)
Proceeds from other long-term liabilities . ... ........ ... . . . . — 87,776
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities ................. — 1,989,855
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds fromissuance of bonds . ......... ... ... — 15,113,672
Proceeds fromissuance of NOtES .. ... ... . ..ttt — 273,605
Repayment of bonds . ... ... . — (6,778,719)
Repayment of NOtES . . . .. ..o — (11,639)
Interest paid on bonds and NOES . .. .. .. .ottt — (799,637)
Capital contributions . . ... . — 1,446,943
Acquisition and construction of capital assets .. ......... .. — (4,947,527)
L 1 T — 360,295
Net cash (used for) capital and related financing activities ..................... — 4,656,993

(Continued)



Combined Statement of
Cash Flows (cont’d)

NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS AND
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investment SECUNLIES . . . . ... i
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investment securities .. ........... ... .. .. .. ... ...
Interest and dividends on iNVeStMENtS ... ... .. ...t e

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities . ............ ... .. .. .. ... ...
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ......... ... ... . . ...
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningofyear .......... ... .. . .. . ..

Cash and cash equivalents atend of year ........... ... .. ..

Reconciliation:
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year .......... ... . ...
Cash and cash equivalents, Expendable Trustand Agency . .................oiiiinin...
Cash and cash equivalents of certain component units using
governmental fund acCoUNtING . .. ..ottt e
NV MBS . . . o

Cash and investments per EXhibit A ... ... ... . .

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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EXHIBIT E

Component
Units

Nonexpendable

Public Benefit

Trust Corporations
— (50,217,949)
— 48,416,336
3,128 1,221,089
3,128 (580,524)
5,152 806,039
14,622 390,552
19,774  $ 1,196,591
19,774  $ 1,196,591
7,836,825 —
— 43,224
— 24,972,964
7,856,599 $ 26,212,779
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Combined Statement of EXHIBIT F
Changes in Fund Balances

COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Current Funds

Total Endowment
(Memorandum and Similar Plant
Unrestricted  Restricted Only) Loan Funds Funds Funds
Revenues and other additions:
Unrestricted current fund revenues ............... $ 2772314 $ — $ 2,772,314 $ — $ — $ —
New York City appropriations .................... — 4,225 4,225 — — —
Government grants and contracts:
Federal ....... ... ... . . . . . . . .. — 507,786 507,786 1,948 — —
New York State .......... ... ... ... ... — 171,834 171,834 — — —
New York City . .....ovi e — 28,489 28,489 — — —
Other . ... — 8,407 8,407 — — —
Private gifts, grants and contracts ................ — 135,147 135,147 49 6,622 1,189
Investmentincome ............. ... — 18,230 18,230 606 492 118,149
Realized and unrealized gains ................... — 6,510 6,510 — 103,136 —
Interest on loans receivable ..................... — — — 4,194 — —
U.S. governmentadvances ..................... — — — 870 — —
Expended for plant facilities ..................... — — — — — 177,919
Retirement indebtedness ....................... — — — — — 213,196
Other additions . ............ .. .. ... .. — 5,801 5,801 1,586 765 2,627
Total revenues and other
additions ... . 2,772,314 886,429 3,658,743 9,253 111,015 513,080
Expenditures and other deductions:
Educational and general expenditures ............. 3,329,440 886,606 4,216,046 — — —
Hospitalsand clinics . ........ ... .. ... ... ... .. 780,150 52 780,202 — — —
Auxiliary enterprises expenditures ................ 353,685 417 354,102 — — —
Indirect costrecovered ............ ... ... — 102,431 102,431 — — —
Refundedtograntors .......................... — — — 267 — —
Loan cancellations and write-offs . ................ — — — 3,082 — —
Administration costs . ............. i — — — 1,689 — —
Expended for plant facilities ..................... — — — — — 191,455
Additional Indebtedness incurred to
effectrefinancing .. ........ ... .. ... . . ... — — — — — 22,312
Debt service:
Principal ...... ... ... .. .. — — — — — 213,196
Interest ... ... .. — — — — — 350,401
Plant and equipment write-offs and
disposals . ... — — — — — 58,000
Lossondebtrefinancing . .......... ... .. ... ..... — — — — — 22,415
Otherdeductions ............. .. ..., — — — 135 — 4,248
Total expenditures and
other deductions ...................... 4,463,275 989,506 5,452,781 5,173 — 862,027
Transfers from (to) other funds:
Mandatory:
Debt service and reserve
requirements . ....... .. (370,030) — (370,030) — — 370,030
Renewals and replacements .................. (650) — (650) 650 — —
Loan fund matchinggrant .. ................... (237) — (237) 237 — —
Nonmandatory:
Interfund transfers .. ......... ... .. ... ... .. ... (49,158) (2,998) (52,156) (163) 1,996 50,323
State appropriations .. ............ . 2,137,256 114,854 2,252,110 — — 281,410
Total transfers from (to)
otherfunds ............ ... ... ... ...... 1,717,181 111,856 1,829,037 724 1,996 701,763
Net increase fortheyear ........................ 26,220 8,779 34,999 4,804 113,011 352,816
Fund balances at April 1,1998 ................... 123,408 177,703 301,111 149,967 605,680 3,147,172
Fund balances at March 31,1999 ................. $ 149628 $ 186,482 $ 336,110 $ 154,771 $ 718,691 $ 3,499,988

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Combined Statement of Current Funds EXHIBIT G
Revenues, Expenditures and Other Changes

COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Total
(Memorandum
Unrestricted Restricted Only)
Revenues:
Tuition and fEeS . .. .. o $ 1,148,768 $ — $ 1,148,768
Governmental appropriations:
Federal . ... 19,084 — 19,084
NEW YOrK City . . oottt e 22,953 4,225 27,178
Government grants and contracts:
Federal . ... 128,009 421,027 549,036
New York State . ... ... 20,333 170,042 190,375
NEW YOrK City . . oot e 3,234 26,668 29,902
LOCal . . 3,195 7,692 10,887
Private gifts, grantsand contracts ........... ... .. i 152,081 116,490 268,571
Endowment inCOmMe . .. ... ... 4,112 15,060 19,172
Sales and services:
University hospitals and clinics . ........... .. i 753,305 — 753,305
Educational activities . .. ... 27,390 112 27,502
AuXiliary ENteIPIISES . . o\ttt 402,798 62 402,860
Other o 87,052 10,843 97,895
Total FEVENUES .o\ttt 2,772,314 772,221 3,544,535
Expenditures and mandatory transfers:
Educational and general:
INSHIUCKION . . . oo 1,546,315 128,997 1,675,312
Research ... ... 141,714 269,937 411,651
PUDIIC SEIVICE . . . o 94,249 66,274 160,523
ACAdEMIC SUPPOIT . oottt e 265,087 32,032 297,119
StUAENE SEIVICES . . o ittt 233,483 17,257 250,740
Institutional SUPPOIT . . ..ot 551,179 45,861 597,040
Operation and maintenance ofplant . .......... ... ... ... ... .. . ... 439,444 2,805 442,249
Scholarships and fellowships . . .. ... ..o i 57,969 323,443 381,412
Educational and general expenditures ........... ... .. ... ... ... 3,329,440 886,606 4,216,046
Mandatory transfers:
Debt ServiCe . ... 307,712 — 307,712
Loan fund matching grant . ............ i 887 — 887
Total educational and general .......... .. ... ... . .. 3,638,039 886,606 4,524,645
Hospitals and clinics:
EXPenditures . .. ... .. 780,150 52 780,202
Mandatory transfers for debtservice ........... ... ... .. ... .. . . ... 20,441 — 20,441
Total hospitalsand clinics .......... ... . i 800,591 52 800,643
Auxiliary enterprises:
EXPenditures . . ... . 353,685 417 354,102
Mandatory transfers for debtservice ........... ... .. ... ... .. . .. 41,877 — 41,877
Total auxiliary enterprises . ....... ... 395,562 417 395,979
Total expenditures and mandatory transfers ...................... 4,834,192 887,075 5,721,267
Other transfers and additions (deductions):
Excess of restricted additions over expenditures ............. ... ... ... ... — 11,777 11,777
Transfer from (to):
Endowment and similarfunds ........... ... .. (2,567) (198) (2,765)
Loan funds . ... .. 156 (37) 119
Plantfunds . ... ... (49,512) (811) (50,323)
State appropriations . . . ... ..o 2,137,256 114,854 2,252,110
Other 2,765 (1,952) 813
Total other transfers and additions (deductions) .................. 2,088,098 123,633 2,211,731
Net increasein fund balances .................coiiiinnnon.. $ 26,220 $ 8,779 % 34,999

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statement of Changes 1n Net Plan Assets EXHIBIT H
STATE AND LOCAL RETIREMENT SYSTEMS
Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Employees Police & Fire
Retirement Retirement
System System Total
Additions:
INVESIMENT INCOME . . . ..o e $ 8,238,544 % 1,534,268 $ 9,772,812
Less securities lending eXpPeNSes . ... ... e (367,545) (68,448) (435,993)
Less iNVESIMENt EXPENSES . . .o\ttt ettt e e (94,473) (17,594) (112,067)
Netinvestmentincome . ....... ... . 7,776,526 1,448,226 9,224,752
Contributions:
EMPIOYerS o 239,670 52,012 291,682
EMplOyees . . .o 398,705 1,115 399,820
O NS 84,344 26,459 110,803
Total contributions . ... ... 722,719 79,586 802,305
Total additions .. ... . 8,499,245 1,527,812 10,027,057
Deductions:
Benefits paid ... ... . 2,986,313 584,172 3,570,485
Administrative eXPenSEesS . .. .. ..t 46,059 6,547 52,606
Total dedUCHiONS ... .. . 3,032,372 590,719 3,623,091
NELINCIBASE . ..ttt e e e 5,466,873 937,093 6,403,966
Net assets held in trust for pension
benefits at beginning ofyear ........ ... ... . . 89,730,033 16,589,143 106,319,176
Net assets held in trust for pension
benefitsatend of year ... $ 95,196,906 $ 17,526,236 $ 112,723,142

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 1999

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying general purpose financial statements
of the State of New York (State) have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) for governments as prescribed by the Govern-
mental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) which is the
standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles.

The general purpose financial statements have
been prepared primarily from accounts maintained by
the State Comptroller. Additional data has been derived
from reports prescribed by the State Comptroller and
prepared by State departments, agencies, public benefit
corporations and other entities based on independent
or subsidiary accounting systems maintained by them.

a. Reporting Entity

The general purpose financial statements include all
funds and account groups of the primary government,
which is the State, as well as the component units and
other organizational entities determined to be included
in the State’s financial reporting entity.

The decision to include a potential component
unit in the State’s reporting entity is based on several
criteria including legal standing, fiscal dependency,
and financial accountability. Based on the application
of these criteria, the following is a brief review of certain
entities included in the State’s reporting entity.

New York Local Government Assistance Corporation

The New York Local Government Assistance Corpora-
tion (Corporation) was created by Chapter 220 of the
Laws of 1990. The Corporation is administered by three
directors consisting of the State Comptroller and the
Director of the Division of the Budget, serving ex
officio, and one director appointed by the Governor.
The Corporation was created to issue long-term debt on
behalf of the State to finance certain local assistance aid
payments plus amounts necessary to fund a capital
reserve fund and other issuance costs. Therefore, the
Corporation is a component unit, part of the primary
government and reported in the Debt Service Funds.

State and Local Retirement System

The State and Local Retirement System (System) was
established by State statute with the State Comptrol-
ler designated as sole trustee and administrative head
of the System. The System’s costs, based upon actuarial
valuations, are funded by the State, participating gov-
ernmental employers and participants. The System is a
part of the primary government and is reported in the
Fiduciary Funds.

College and University Funds

For financial reporting purposes, the State University
of New York (SUNY) and the senior colleges of the
City University of New York (CUNY) are included as
part of the primary government (excluding commu-
nity colleges) and reported in the College and Uni-
versity Funds. Included within the College and
University Funds are the Research Foundations at both
SUNY and CUNY, the State and City University Con-
struction Funds, auxiliary service corporations and
other affiliated operations.

Component Units

The Discretely Presented Component Units—Public
Benefit Corporations (Corporations) listed in Note 16
were established by State statute with full corporate
powers. The Governor, with the approval of the State
Senate, appoints most members of the board of direc-
tors of most Corporations and either the Governor or
the board of directors selects the chairman and chief
operating officer. Corporations generally submit annual
reports to the Governor, the Legislature, and the State
Comptroller on their operations and finances accom-
panied by an independent auditor’s report thereon.
Corporations also submit to the Governor and the Leg-
islature annual budget information on operations and
capital construction. The State Comptroller is empow-
ered to conduct financial and management audits of
the Corporations. Financial assistance was provided in
the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999 to certain Cor-
porations and such assistance is expected to be required
in future years. Accordingly, the fiscal condition of the
State is related to the fiscal stability of the Corpora-
tions. Since the Corporations are legally separate orga-
nizations for which the Governor and Legislature are
financially accountable, they are discretely presented as
component units of the State.

Related Organizations

The State’s officials are also responsible for appoint-
ing the members of the boards of other organizations,
but the state’s accountability for these organizations
does not extend beyond making the appointments.
The Governor appoints the board of the Municipal
Assistance Corporation for the City of New York (MAC),
which is the State’s only significant related organiza-
tion. MAC was created by the state to provide financing
assistance and fiscal oversight for the City of New York
(the City). Because of its integral relationship with the
City, it is included as a component unit of the City’s
reporting entity.
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b. Fund Accounting

The State uses funds and account groups to report on
its financial position and the results of its operations.
Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal com-
pliance and to aid financial management by segregat-
ing transactions related to certain government
functions or activities.

A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-
balancing set of accounts. An account group, on the
other hand, is a financial reporting device designed
to provide accountability for certain assets and liabili-
ties that are not recorded in the funds because they
do not directly affect net expendable available financial
resources.

The State records its transactions in the fund types
and account groups described below. Transactions
between funds within a fund type, if any, have been
eliminated.

Governmental Fund Types:

General—is the general operating fund of the State
and is used to account for all financial transactions
except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

Special Revenue—is used to account for the proceeds
of specific revenue sources (other than debt service,
expendable trust or major capital projects) such as
Federal grants, that are legally restricted to expendi-
tures for specified purposes. These legal restrictions
may be imposed by either the State Legislature or
outside parties.

Debt Service—is used to account for the accumulation
of resources for, and the payment of, principal, interest,
and related costs of general long-term obligations. The
operations and debt service related activities of the
New York Local Government Assistance Corporation
are included in the Debt Service Funds.

Capital Projects—is used to account for the financial
resources used for acquisition or construction of major
state-owned capital facilities and for capital assistance
grants to local governments.

Account Groups:

General Fixed Assets Account Group—is used to
account for general fixed assets of the State exclusive of
fixed assets reported by the College and University
Funds and the Discretely Presented Component
Units—Public Benefit Corporations.

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group—is
used to account for long-term obligations of the State
including bonds, most obligations under lease/pur-
chase and other financing arrangements, certain
pension contributions and other long-term obligations
exclusive of liabilities of the College and University
Funds and the Discretely Presented Component
Units—Public Benefit Corporations.

College and University Funds:

College and University Funds account for the opera-
tions of both SUNY and CUNY. The accounts of the
College and University Funds are derived from their
annual financial statements for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998.

Transactions reported by SUNY and CUNY are dis-
played in the College and University Funds described
below:

Current funds include those assets which can be
expended for any purpose in performing the primary
objectives of the College and University. Resources
restricted by donors or other outside agencies for spe-
cific operating purposes are accounted for as restricted
current funds.

Loan funds include gifts and grants which are
limited by the terms of the donors for the purpose of
making loans to students.

Endowment and similar funds are subject to the
restrictions of gift instruments, requiring in perpetu-
ity that the principal be invested and the income only
be utilized.

Plant funds include resources that have been or
are to be invested in fixed assets and funds reserved
to retire debt incurred to finance facilities.

Fiduciary Fund Types:

Fiduciary Funds include Expendable and Nonex-
pendable Trust Funds, Agency Funds and the State
and Local Retirement System. The Expendable and
Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Agency Funds are
used to account for assets held by the State in a trustee
capacity (e.g., unemployment compensation) or as an
agent for individuals, private organizations and other
governments. The accounts of the State and Local
Retirement System are derived from their annual finan-
cial statements for the year ended March 31, 1999.
Additional information about the State and Local
Retirement System is provided in Note 15.

Component Units:

Component Units include the accounts of public
benefit corporations, public authorities, not-for-profit
corporations and similar entities. Amounts reported
in the accompanying general purpose financial state-
ments are derived from their most recently issued
annual financial statements. Additional information
about Component Units is provided in Note 16.

c. Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment
applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus. All Governmental Funds and Expendable Trust
Funds are accounted for using a current financial
resources measurement focus. Nonexpendable Trust
Funds, the State and Local Retirement System and
Component Units—Public Benefit Corporations are
accounted for on a flow of economic resources mea-
surement focus.
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Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust
Funds are accounted for on the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Revenues and related receivables are
recorded in the accounting period that they become
both measurable and available, i.e., earned and col-
lected or expected to be collected within the next 12
months. Tax revenues are recorded by the State as tax-
payers earn income (personal income, general busi-
ness and other taxes), as sales are made (consumption
and use taxes) and as the taxable event occurs (mis-
cellaneous taxes), net of estimated overpayments
(refunds). Receivables not expected to be collected
within the next 12 months are offset by deferred rev-
enues. Expenditures and related liabilities are recorded
in the accounting period the liability is incurred to the
extent it is expected to be paid within the next 12
months, except for vacation leave and interest on
general long-term obligations which are recorded when
paid and certain pension contributions. The portion of
the liabilities which are expected to be paid beyond 12
months is recorded in the General Long-Term Obliga-
tions Account Group except for certain lease/purchase
arrangements (see Note 10).

Financial statements for College and University
Funds have been prepared in accordance with the prin-
ciples of fund accounting for colleges and universities
on the accrual basis, except that no provision has been
made for the depreciation of fixed assets. The state-
ment of current funds revenues, expenditures and
other changes is a statement of financial activities of
current funds related to the current reporting period.
Student revenues are recognized in the accounting
period earned. Included in non-mandatory transfers
from State appropriations are transfers from the State
used to support operating expenditures. State appro-
priation transfers are recognized as the expenditures
are incurred. A receivable is recorded for amounts to
be received in support of expenditures to be paid from
appropriations of the current fiscal year which lapse
90 days after year-end. Also included in due from other
funds are amounts to be provided by the General Fund
of the State for certain compensated absences and
fringe benefits.

Nonexpendable Trust Funds and the State and
Local Retirement System are accounted for on the
accrual basis. Agency Funds are custodial in nature
(assets equal liabilities) and generally are accounted
for on the cash basis which approximates the modi-
fied accrual basis of accounting.

Component Units—Public Benefit Corporations are
accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting and
apply all applicable GASB pronouncements and all
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) State-
ments and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board
(APB) Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins
(ARB) issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless
they conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.
The Power Authority of the State of New York and the

Long Island Power Authority have elected to continue
to apply all FASB Statements and Interpretations issued
after November 30, 1989, except for those that con-
flict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

d. Cash and Investments

Cash balances of funds held in the State Treasury are
commingled in a general checking account and several
special purpose bank accounts. The available cash
balance in the general checking account beyond imme-
diate need is pooled for short-term investment pur-
poses. The balances pooled are limited to legally
stipulated investments which are reported at cost which
approximates fair value. At March 31, 1999, there were
no non-interest bearing compensated balances included
in cash and investments. At various times during the
year, compensating balances could be substantially
higher. Cash balances not held in the State Treasury
and controlled by various State officials are generally
deposited in interest-bearing accounts or other legally
stipulated investments (see Note 2).

Generally, for purposes of reporting cash flows,
cash includes cash and cash equivalents and short-term
investments with maturities, when purchased, of three
months or less. The Combined Statement of Cash Flows
presented in Exhibit E uses the indirect method of
reporting cash flows.

In March 1997, the GASB issued Statement No.
31, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools,” which
establishes accounting and financial reporting stan-
dards for all investments held by governments and
governmental external investment pools. The State
has adopted the provisions of this statement for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 1999 and the impact was
insignificant. In accordance with this pronouncement,
all investments with a maturity of more than a year
are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value and
all investment income, including changes in the fair
value of investments, are reported as revenue in
Exhibits B and D. Investments of the short-term invest-
ment pool have a maturity of one year or less and are
recorded at cost in accordance with Statement No.
31. Fair values were determined using market values at
March 31, 1999.

e. Receivables

Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for
uncollectible amounts, which are determined based
upon past collection experience and current economic
conditions. Due from Federal Government represents
amounts owed to the State to reimburse it for expen-
ditures incurred pursuant to federally funded pro-
grams. Other receivables represent amounts owed to
the State, including lottery revenues, student loans
and patient fees of SUNY and Health Department hos-
pitals and various Mental Hygiene facilities.
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f. Fixed Assets

The State reports fixed assets in the General Fixed
Assets Account Group, while SUNY and CUNY report
fixed assets in the Plant Fund within the College and
University Funds. Fixed assets consist of: (1) land in
urban centers, rural areas, and forest preserves; (2)
land improvements; (3) buildings which house State
offices, correctional facilities, hospitals, and educa-
tional facilities; (4) equipment used in construction
work, hospitals, offices, etc.; (5) library books; and (6)
construction in progress. Fixed assets in the General
Fixed Assets Account Group and the College and Uni-
versity Funds are reported at historical cost or esti-
mated historical cost if actual historical cost is not
available. Donated fixed assets are valued at their esti-
mated fair value on the date donated.

Generally, equipment which has a cost in excess
of $25 thousand at the date of acquisition and has an
expected useful life of two or more years is capitalized.
All initial building costs and land are capitalized. Land
improvements in excess of $100 thousand are capital-
ized. Building improvements and renovations in excess
of $100 thousand are capitalized if 75% of the useful life
of the component has expired and if the useful life of
the asset has been extended as a result of the renovation
or the improvement has a useful life of two or more
years. Interest incurred during construction is not cap-
italized. Fixed assets are not depreciated. Infrastruc-
ture (e.g., roads, bridges, dams, canals, etc.) is not
reported in the General Fixed Assets Account Group.

g. Long-Term Obligations

The liabilities reported in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group include the State’s general
obligation bonds, most obligations under lease/pur-
chase and other financing arrangements, certain
pension contributions and other long-term liabilities
including vacation leave, sick leave, litigation, Medicaid
(State and Federal share), workers’ compensation and
other insurance related liabilities pertaining to the
Governmental Funds.

h. Compensated Absences

The State records vacation leave as an expenditure
when paid. The estimated liability at March 31, 1999 of
$582 million is reported in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group. This represents a decrease
of $38 million over the prior year. State employees
accrue vacation leave based primarily on the number of
years employed up to a maximum rate of 25 days a
year, but may accumulate no more than a maximum of
40 days.

SUNY employees accrue vacation leave based pri-
marily on the number of years employed up to a
maximum rate of 21 days per year and may accumulate
no more than a maximum of 40 days. CUNY employees
accrue vacation leave based upon the number of years

employed, with the maximum accumulation generally
ranging from 45 to 50 days. The liability for vacation
leave approximated $110 million and $30 million for
SUNY and CUNY, respectively, at June 30, 1998, and
is reported in the College and University Funds.

State, SUNY and CUNY employees earn sick leave
credits which are considered termination payments.
Sick leave credits earned by State and SUNY employees
may be used to pay the employees’ share of post-retire-
ment health insurance premiums. CUNY employees
may receive payments of up to 50% of the value of
their accumulated sick leave as of the date of retire-
ment from CUNY. The sick leave liability for State
employees, reported in the General Long-Term Oblig-
ations Account Group at March 31, 1999, was $715
million and represents an increase of $17 million from
the prior year. SUNY and CUNY reported a liability of
$183 million and $6 million, respectively, for sick leave
credits in the College and University Funds.

i. Lease Accounting

The construction of certain State office buildings, campus
facilities, and other public facilities has been financed
through bonds and notes issued by public benefit cor-
porations or local governments pursuant to lease/pur-
chase agreements with the State (see Note 10).

These lease/purchase contracts are capital leases
for which the State’s rental payments over the dura-
tion of the agreements constitute long-term liabilities.
The amount included in obligations under lease/pur-
chase and other financing arrangements consists of
total future principal payments and equals the out-
standing balance of the related bonds and notes.

j- State Lottery

The State Lottery is accounted for within two funds.
The revenues, administrative costs, aid to education
and the expenditures for amounts allocated to prizes
are reported in a Special Revenue Fund. Uncollected
ticket sales at March 31, 1999 are accrued. Monies allo-
cated to prizes are accumulated in an Agency Fund to
be distributed at the appropriate time. Such monies
are invested in United States government backed oblig-
ations which are recorded at fair value. Lottery long-
term prize liabilities are recorded at a discounted value
equivalent to the related investments. At March 31,
1999, the long-term prize liabilities of approximately
$2.8 billion were reported at a discounted value of
approximately $1.5 billion (at interest rates of 3.01%
to 13.55%).

k. Reservations of Fund Balance

Employees’ Pension Benefits

Employees’ pension benefits represents the State and
Local Retirement System net assets available to finance
pension benefit obligations (see Note 15).
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Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase
orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve
that portion of the applicable appropriation, is
employed in the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds
and Capital Projects Funds. The cost of construction
contract commitments generally is recorded as an
encumbrance of Capital Projects Funds and is pre-
sented as a reserve for encumbrances. These commit-
ted amounts generally will become liabilities in future
periods as the construction work is performed by the
contractors. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end
are reported as reservations of fund balances since
they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

Unemployment Benefits
Fund balance reserved for unemployment benefits rep-
resents net assets available to fund future unemploy-
ment benefit payments.

Debt Service

Fund balance reserved for debt service represents
various capital reserve assets available to finance future
debt service payments in accordance with the under-
lying bond indentures.

Tax Stabilization

Pursuant to law, receipts in excess of disbursements of
the Local Assistance and State Purposes Accounts not
otherwise appropriated are required to be transferred
to the Tax Stabilization Reserve Account at the end of
each fiscal year. These amounts may be borrowed by
these two accounts temporarily and repaid within the
same fiscal year. They may also be borrowed to cover an
operating deficit at year-end. Generally, these loans
must be repaid within six years in no less than three
equal annual installments. During the year the State
increased the reserve by $73 million.

Other Specified Purposes

The amount of fund balance reserved for other speci-
fied purposes represents the net amount of appropri-
ated loans receivable (see Note 4), the Contingency
Reserve ($107 million), Community Projects ($246
million) and amounts available to fund various fidu-
ciary arrangements. The amount reported for other
specified purposes in the College and University Funds
consists of unrestricted and restricted current funds,
loan funds, endowment and similar funds and expend-
able plant funds.

1. Post-Retirement Benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits, the State is
statutorily required to provide health insurance cov-
erage and survivor benefits for retired employees and
their survivors. Substantially all of the State’s employees
may become eligible for these benefits if they reach
normal retirement age while working for the State.

Health care benefits are provided through plans whose
premiums are based on the benefits paid during the
year. The cost of providing post-retirement benefits is
shared between the State and the retired employee.
The State recognizes the cost of providing health insur-
ance by recording its share of insurance premiums
($408 million for 112,513 retirees and their depen-
dents) as an expenditure in the General Fund in the
year paid. Additionally, the survivor’s benefit program
provides for a death benefit to be paid by the State to a
retiree’s designated beneficiary. During the year, approx-
imately $9.2 million was paid on behalf of 3,179 retirees
and recorded as an expenditure in the General Fund.

m. Deficit Fund Balances

As of March 31, 1999, fund deficits were reported in the
State Housing Debt Fund ($11.7 million), the Dedi-
cated Highway and Bridge Trust Fund ($42.5 million),
the Environmental Quality Protection Fund ($23.0
million), the Accelerated Capacity and Transportation
Improvements Fund ($47.0 million), the Division for
Youth Facilities Improvement Fund ($10.6 million),
the Housing Program Fund ($76.0 million), the Depart-
ment of Transportation Engineering Services Fund
($185.8 million), the Mental Hygiene Facilities Capital
Improvement Fund ($170.5 million), the Correctional
Facilities Capital Improvement Fund ($86.3 million),
and the Miscellaneous Capital Projects Fund ($28.3
million). The deficits related to the Capital Projects
Funds are the result of differences in cash flow timing
relating to the reimbursement of capital project costs
from bond proceeds and are routinely resolved during
subsequent fiscal years.

n. Total (Memorandum Only)

Total columns in Exhibits F and G in the general
purpose financial statements are captioned “memo-
randum only” to indicate that they are presented only
to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns
do not present results of operations in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is
such data comparable to a consolidation.

o. Estimates

The preparation of the general purpose financial state-
ments in conformity with generally accepted account-
ing principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements.
Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues
and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
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Cash and Investments

Custodians are authorized by various statutes to deposit
funds in checking accounts or interest-bearing accounts
including certificates of deposit. Legally authorized
investments vary by fund but generally include: oblig-
ations of or guaranteed by the United States; obligations
of New York State and its political subdivisions, and
repurchase agreements. Information on cash and
investments of the State and Local Retirement System
is presented in Note 15.

Cash

The State maintains approximately 3,000 bank accounts
for various purposes at locations throughout the State.
Bank deposits may be under the joint custody of the
State Comptroller and the Commissioner of Taxation
and Finance or under the sole custody of a specified
State official. Both the State Comptroller and the Com-
missioner of Taxation and Finance are also sole custo-
dians of certain accounts. Cash balances not required
for immediate use are invested either through a short-
term investment pool (STIP) administered by the State
Comptroller or by the fund custodian.

For demand or checking accounts, the State
requires that its depository banks pledge collateral
based on average daily available bank balances. All
securities pledged as collateral are held by the State’s
fiscal agent in the name of the State. The use of average
daily available balances to determine collateral
requirements results in the available balances being

under-collateralized at various times during the fiscal
year. The State’s cash management policy is to invest all
major revenues as soon as the monies are available
within the banking system which limits under collat-
eralization. The State’s deposits with financial institu-
tions were fully collateralized at fiscal year-end except
for accounts with a total book balance of $245 million
and bank balance of $239 million. The bank balance of
$239 million was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Investments

The State holds investments both for its own benefit and
as an agent for other parties. Major investment programs
conducted for the direct benefit of the State include
STIP which is used for the temporary investment of funds
not required for immediate payments, sole custody funds
administered by the Department of Taxation and
Finance, and funds of the Division of the Lottery.

The following table presents the carrying amount
and fair value of investments by type and categorizes the
carrying amounts as follows: Category 1 are those which
are insured or registered, or held by the State or its
agent in the State’s name. Category 2 are those which
are uninsured and unregistered, with securities held
by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the
State’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unreg-
istered investments for which the securities are held
by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent
but not in the State’s name (amounts in thousands):

Category

Reported Fair

1 2 3 Amount Value
Government securities . ............ .. $ 3,576,090 $ 443,043 $ 1,370,027 $ 5,389,160 $ 5,581,522
Repurchase agreements . .. ........... ... ... 2,262,655 1,025,740 188,253 3,476,648 3,507,827
Commercial paper . . . ... 6,139,260 — — 6,139,260 6,180,650
Corporate bonds/notes .. ... 100 — 27,181 27,281 27,281
Other . 99,473 61,612 836,708 997,793 997,793
Total .. $ 12,077,578 $ 1,530,395 $ 2,422,169 $ 16,030,142 $ 16,295,073

Disclosures relating to risk and type of investment
as presented above report positions held as of March 31,
1999.

Also included in the accompanying general purpose
financial statements are securities which either were
not acquired for investment purposes or cannot be
classified or categorized. The State holds cash and secu-
rities deposited by contractors in lieu of retainage on
contract payments (carrying amount and fair value of
$86 million). SUNY has investments for endowment
and similar funds of approximately $641 million (Cat-
egory 1). CUNY has investments in mutual funds and
amounts held by the Dormitory Authority of $5 million

and $92 million, respectively. In addition, CUNY lends
certain securities to broker-dealers and other entities
under a contractual agreement with its custodian. In
exchange for the securities loaned, CUNY receives col-
lateral, which has an underlying fair value in amounts
not less than 102% of securities lent. The custodian
may invest the cash collateral in U.S. Government secu-
rities or repurchase agreements, which are fully col-
lateralized by U.S. Government securities, high grade
corporate obligations, high grade asset-backed securi-
ties or domestic money market instruments (carrying
amount and fair value of $32 million) (Category 3).
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Taxes Receivable and Tax Refunds Payable

Taxes Receivable

Taxes receivable represent amounts owed by taxpay-
ers for the 1998 calendar year and the first quarter of
the 1999 calendar year, including assessments for under-
payments, penalties and interest. Taxes receivable are
accrued when they become both measurable and avail-
able based on actual collections or estimates of amounts
to be collected during the next 12 months.

Personal income tax (PIT) revenues are reported
by the State as income is earned by the taxpayers. The
primary components of the PIT receivable are the esti-
mated and withholding payments which relate to the
first quarter of the 1999 calendar year, payments with
final returns which relate to the 1998 calendar year,
and assessments which relate to prior tax periods.

Consumption and use tax revenues are reported by
the State in the fiscal period when the sale is made.
The principal component of this receivable is sales tax
receivables which include sales tax due through March
31, 1999 and assessments.

General business tax revenues are reported by the
State as businesses earn income. General business tax
receivables are comprised of estimated tax payments,
payments remitted with final returns, and assessments.

Unemployment tax receivables represent taxes on
payrolls incurred by employers prior to April 1, 1999
and received by the State after March 31, 1999.

Taxes receivable at March 31, 1999 are summa-
rized as follows (amounts in thousands):

Special Debt Capital Trust and
General Revenue Service Projects Agency
Personal income . ....... ...ttt $ 4,404,475 $ @ — $  — $  — $  —
Consumption @and USe . .. ..o it 537,017 20,363 147,548 45,539 —
BUSINESS . ittt 203,046 29,746 — 21,858 —
Unemployment .......... ... — — — — 913,318
Other . 257,460 — 22,455 — —
Total .o $ 5,401,998 $ 50,109 $ 170,003 $ 67,397 $ 913,318
Tax Refunds Payable

Tax refunds payable primarily represent amounts owed
to taxpayers because of overpayments of their 1998 cal-
endar year and first quarter 1999 calendar year tax lia-
bilities. Tax refunds payable, which reduce respective
tax revenues, are accrued to the extent they are mea-
surable based on payments and estimates. The amount
of PIT refunds payable is comprised of estimates of

Personal income
Consumption and use
Business

overpayments of the first calendar quarter (1999) tax
liability and payments of 1998 calendar and prior year
refunds. The remaining portion of tax refunds payable
is comprised of payments made subsequent to the end
of the fiscal year and estimates of the refund liability.

Tax refunds payable at March 31, 1999 are sum-
marized as follows (amounts in thousands):

Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects
$ 2,857,382 % — $ — $ —
25,296 1,031 8,211 2,446
479,205 58,373 — 1,405
53,864 — 827 —
$ 3,415,747 % 59,404 $ 9,038 $ 3,851
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Other Receivables

Other receivables at March 31, 1999 are summarized as
follows (amounts in thousands):

College
Special Debt Capital and Trust and
General Revenue Service Projects University Agency
Miscellaneous receivables:
LOteIY vttt $ — $ 57,925 $ — $  — $  — $ 64,260
Patientfees ............ ... .. ... . ... — — 212,947 — 343,065 —
Studentloans ............. ... ... .. ... — — — — 197,522 —
State and local retirement system ........... — — — — — 2,227,309
Other . ... 598,028 119,302 93,404 7,416 323,357 251,128
598,028 177,227 306,351 7,416 863,944 2,542,697
Allowance for uncollectibles . . ................ (7,699) (12,445) (142,305) (1,006) (253,087) —
590,329 164,782 164,046 6,410 610,857 2,542,697
Appropriated loans:
Assessments ... 3,067 — 9,278 — —
Due from local governments . .............. 5 — 24,603 — —
Due from public benefit corporations . ... ... .. 18,888 8,500 — 186,369 — —
21,960 8,500 — 220,250 — —
Allowance for uncollectibles . . ................ (16,335) — (199,712) — —
5,625 8,500 — 20,538 — —
Total .o $ 595,954 $ 173,282 $ 164,046 $ 26,948 $ 610,857 $ 2,542,697

Appropriated loans represent monies appropri-
ated in the form of loans or advances from the General
Fund and a Special Revenue Fund to finance agency,
local government or public benefit corporations’ oper-
ations, or from various Capital Projects Funds to finance
construction or debt service of public benefit corpo-
rations or local governments. The underlying appro-
priation bills provide that amounts will be repaid
pursuant to repayment agreements with public benefit
corporations or local governments. The loans are

reported net of estimated uncollectible amounts and as
a reservation of fund balance.

Pursuant to an agreement with the Port Authority of
New York and New Jersey, the State sold its lease rights at
the World Trade Center in return for a series of pay-
ments to the State over a period of 30 years (see Note
17). A receivable for $493 million has been recorded in
the General Fund (included as other in the table above)
and offset by deferred revenues of $479 million which
represents the long-term portion of the receivable.

Fixed Assets

The following is a summary of changes in fixed assets
in the General Fixed Assets Account Group for the year
ended March 31, 1999 (amounts in thousands):

Classes

Land
Land improvements
Buildings

EQUIPMENT .« . .o
CoNStruCtion iN ProgreSs . . ..o vt it

Total

Balance Balance
April 1, 1998 Additions Deletions March 31, 1999
$ 887,011 $ 58,341 $ 1,990 $ 943,362

315,896 15,176 294 330,778
5,888,559 282,011 22,960 6,147,610
705,680 37,834 16,217 727,297
1,245,428 266,868 229,097 1,283,199

$ 9,042574 $ 660,230 $ 270,558 % 9,432,246




The following represents year-end balances of fixed
assets for the year ended June 30, 1998 for SUNY and
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CUNY as reported in the College and University Funds
(amounts in thousands):

Classes SUNY CUNY Total
Land and IMProVeMENES . . ..ttt ettt e e e e e e e $ 383,206 $ 150,457 $ 533,663
BUIINGS . . . oo 3,379,353 2,211,065 5,590,418
EQUIDMENT . 1,076,824 391,571 1,468,395
CONSLIUCHON IN PIrOGIESS . . . o e vt et et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 268,534 183,465 451,999
ATWOTK . o e — 5,910 5,910
L L $ 5,107,917 $ 2,942,468 $ 8,050,385
Liabilities
The following summarizes payable to local governments
at March 31, 1999 (amounts in thousands):
Special Capital Trust and
General Revenue Projects Agency
Handicapped pupil education programs . .............c.ouuneeinneenn..n $ 700609 $ — $  — $  —
Other education Programs . . ... ...... ittt 86,958 64,809 — —
Temporary and disability assistance programs . ............... ... 233,969 487,505 — —
Local health programs . ......... . 130,673 38,352 — —
Mental hygiene programs . . .. ...ttt 58,125 20,145 — —
Criminal JUSEICe Programs . . . .. .ottt e 87,472 6,147 — —
Child and family services programs . ...t 69,833 35,291 — —
Personal income tax offsets . .......... ... .. . . . 184,789 — — —
Local share of salestaxrevenues ...................oiiiiiininann... — — — 764,473
AgeENCY fUNAS .. .o — — — 695,453
Miscellaneous . . . .. ..o 114,014 67,819 35,573 25
L= L $ 1,666,442 $ 720,068 $ 35573 $ 1,459,951
The following summarizes accrued liabilities at
March 31, 1999 (amounts in thousands):
College
Special Capital and Trust and
General Revenue Projects University Agency
Payroll .. ... $ 293,356 $ 23,604 $ 12,265 $ 98,207 $ —
Fringe benefits . ...... ... .. .. . 147,972 6,346 3,625 49,514 —
Compensated absences . ..., — — — 413,037 —
Medicaid ... ... .. 1,463,139 2,304,588 — — —
Litigation . ... .. 47,044 — — 60,196 —
Escheat property settlement . .......... ... ... ... ... 17,675 — — — 416,135
Workers’ compensationclaims ............. ... ... .. .... 154,410 — — — —
Interestpayable . ......... . — — — 214,756 —
Agency funds ... .. — — — — 4,040,409
Retirement Systems (See Note 15) . .................... — — — — 9,171,221
Miscellaneous . ....... ... 33,864 14,240 22,764 396,725 141,604
Total ... $ 2,157,460 $ 2,348,778 $ 38,654 $ 1,232,435 $ 13,769,369

Short-Term Financing

Notes, including commercial paper and bond antici-
pation notes, are issued by the State in anticipation of
the proceeds of voter-authorized bond issues. Notes
may be issued for a term not exceeding two years. The
notes may be redeemed only from the proceeds of per-
manent bonds or reissued notes. Notes outstanding at
March 31, 1999 were issued at rates of 1.60% to 4.25%

in the form of commercial paper. The notes require
the issuance of a line of credit to cover total outstanding
obligations. At March 31, 1999, the State’s line of credit
related to the outstanding notes totaled $300 million
with an expiration date of November 24, 1999. Interest
on short-term financing is paid from the General Fund.



40 < Notes to Financial Statements

Changes in Capital Projects Fund’s notes during the
year (not including renewals) were as follows (amounts
in thousands):

Purpose

Accelerated capacity and transportation improvements of the nineties

Clean water/clean air:

Environmental restoration .. ........... ..
Clean Water . . ... ...
Solid Waste .. ...
Energy conservation through improved transportation . . ................

Environmental quality (1986):

Land acquisition .. ... ...
Solid waste management . .......... ..

Environmental quality protection (1972):

ATl
Landandwetlands . ............ . ... . .
VatEr . .

Rebuild New York—transportation infrastructure renewal:

Highways, parkways, bridges .. ........ ... ... . . i
Total .

Outstanding

Outstanding

April 1, 1998 Issued Redeemed  March 31, 1999
$ 216,000 $ — $ 148,000 $ 68,000
150 — — 150

57,750 — — 57,750

— 12,000 — 12,000
1,200 — 600 600

7,000 2,500 1,000 8,500

— 3,500 — 3,500

500 25,000 — 25,500

4,000 500 — 4,500

3,000 500 3,000 500

4,000 1,000 1,000 4,000

$ 293,600 $ 45,000 $ 153,600 $ 185,000

Bonds Payable

General obligation bonds are backed by the full faith
and credit of the State and must be repaid in equal
annual installments beginning not more than one year

Purpose

Accelerated capacity and transportation improvements of the nineties (3.75%-7.1%) ...
Clear water/clean air (4.1%-6.4%) . . . .ottt

Environmental quality (1986):

Land acquisition (4.0%-7.1%) . . ... ..t
Solid waste management (4.0%-6.9%) .. ...

Environmental quality protection (1972):

Al (A.5%-7.8%) . . oot
Land and wetlands (4.0%-12.0%) . ... ...ttt
Water (3.75%-12.090) . ..ottt
Higher education (2.0%-6.5%) . ....... ...

Housing:

Low income (1.0%-7.09) .. ...ttt
Middle income (3.4%-6.75%) . . ...t
Urban renewal (4.25%-7.8%) . .. ..o
Outdoor recreation development (4.1%-7.8%) .. ...,
Parks and recreation land acquisition (4.25%-7.8%) ...................
Pure waters (2.0%-12.0%) . .. ..ottt
Rail preservation (4.0%-12.0%) . ...ttt

Transportation capital facilities:

Highways . . ..o
Mass transportation (2.0%-12.0%) . ........otii i
Aviation (3.0%0-12.0%0) . . . ..ttt

Energy conservation through improved transportation (4.0%-12.0%)
Rebuild New York—transportation infrastructure renewal:

Highways, parkways, bridges (4.1%-7.1%) . .........cciiiiae.o..
Ports, canals, waterways (4.1%-7.8%) ... ..... ...t
Rapid transit, rail, aviation (4.1%-7.8%) ........... ... ...

Total .. e

Debt service expenditures related to the above
general obligation bonds during the year were $739
million.

Outstanding

after issuance of such bonds. Changes for the year were
as follows (amounts in thousands):

Outstanding

April 1, 1998 Issued Redeemed March 31, 1999
$ 1,759,132 $ 166,917 $ 185,385 $ 1,740,664
102,204 106,668 6,255 202,617
146,716 2,536 11,582 137,670
687,774 91,336 32,891 746,219
18,773 90 3,157 15,706
120,806 5,977 10,531 116,252
333,239 4,009 22,923 314,325
27,280 — 5,800 21,480
223,201 — 18,797 204,404
89,043 — 3,197 85,846
3,469 13 822 2,660

4,568 6 1,956 2,618
....... 786 3 222 567
319,545 5,130 31,560 293,115
94,567 541 5,712 89,396
4,500 — 4,500 —
273,762 685 35,102 239,345
108,025 337 9,724 98,638
143,829 2,583 18,181 128,231
166,223 1,033 68,210 99,046
16,853 89 3,380 13,562
94,974 452 7,680 87,746

$ 4,739,269 $ 388,405 $ 487,567 $ 4,640,107
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Debt service requirements for general obligation
bonds in future years, which are financed by transfers
from the General Fund, are as follows (amounts in
thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2000 ....... $ 477,785 $ 242,099 $ 719,884
2001 ....... 435,527 215,474 651,001
2002 ....... 385,593 191,943 577,536
2003 ....... 350,399 171,637 522,036
2004 ....... 293,567 154,803 448,370
Thereafter . . . 2,697,236 871,445 3,568,681
Total ..... $ 4,640,107 $ 1,847,401 $ 6,487,508

The total amount of general obligation bonds
authorized but not issued at March 81, 1999 was $2.033
billion.

In July 1998, $557 million General Obligation
refunding issue (Series 98F) was completed. The issue
refunded $526 million in existing debt with a cash flow
savings of $35 million and present value savings of $28
million.

Local Government Assistance Corporation

In past years certain payments due to the State’s local
government units in the first quarter of the State’s
fiscal year exceeded available State funds. To meet
these payments in the past, the State issued short-term
tax and revenue anticipation notes called the annual
spring borrowing. The New York Local Government
Assistance Corporation (Corporation) was established
by Chapter 220 of the Laws of 1990 (as amended by
Chapter 2 of the Laws of 1991) to issue up to $4.7
billion in long-term debt to finance certain local assis-
tance aid payments plus amounts necessary to fund a
capital reserve fund and other issuance costs. Issuance
of the entire $4.7 billion bond authorization as of
March 31, 1996 eliminated the need for the State’s
annual spring borrowing.

Payments of debt service on the Corporation’s
bonds will be made from funds received from the State.
Pursuant to the Act establishing the Corporation, the
State deposits 25% of the total State sales and use tax
collected into the Local Government Assistance Tax
Fund (a Debt Service Fund) which is to be used to
make payments to the Corporation. Amounts in excess
of the Corporation’s needs are subsequently trans-
ferred to the General Fund. Payments to the Corpo-
ration are subject to annual appropriations by the
Legislature. The Corporation’s bondholders do not
have a lien on monies deposited in the Local Govern-
ment Assistance Tax Fund.

Any issuance of bonds by the Corporation in the
future will be for refunding purposes only. In October
of 1998, the Corporation issued $307 million in series
1998A refunding bonds to defease $292 million of prin-
cipal of outstanding series 1991B, 1992B and C, and
1995A bonds. This refunding resulted in a cash flow
savings of $22.5 million and a present value savings of
$17 million.

The Corporation’s general bond resolution requires
one or more capital reserve accounts be established
and funded in an amount equal to the maximum
amount of principal, sinking fund installments or
redemption price of and interest on all bonds out-
standing or on any related reimbursement obligations
coming due during the then current or any succeed-
ing fiscal year. The Corporation may also fund a capital
reserve account with a surety bond or other similar
instrument. The capital reserve ($436 million) is
reported as cash and investments in the Debt Service
Funds with a corresponding reservation of fund balance.

For purposes of calculating future interest pay-
ments on the Series 1993A, 1994B and 1995B - G vari-
able interest rate bonds, a constant rate of 6% has been
used. All other bonds have interest rates ranging from
4.1% to 7.0%. Debt Service requirements for future
years are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2000 ....... $ 11,725 $ 273,172 $ 384,897
2001 ....... 116,520 266,640 383,160
2002 ....... 123,120 259,352 382,472
2003 ....... 130,175 251,962 382,137
2004 ....... 133,725 244,562 378,287
Thereafter . . . 4,499,295 2,883,120 7,382,415
Total ..... $ 5114560 $ 4,178,808 $ 9,293,368

The use of the Corporation’s bond proceeds to
fund $4.7 billion in local assistance payments had the
effect of reducing the General Fund accumulated
deficit. The General Fund fund balance, reported in
Exhibit A, would have been an accumulated deficit of
$2.935 billion without the Corporation’s bond proceeds.

At March 31, 1999, approximately $2.59 billion of
refunded bonds from prior years remain outstanding.



42 « Notes to Financial Statements

Obligations Under Lease/Purchase and Other Financing Arrangements

The State has entered into lease/purchase agreements
with certain public benefit corporations, municipali-
ties and other entities for various capital assets. Under
these agreements, construction costs are initially paid
by the State from appropriations (reported as capital
construction expenditures in the Capital Projects
Funds). These appropriations are then repaid to the
State from the proceeds of bonds issued by the public
benefit corporations or other entities (reported as pro-
ceeds from financing arrangements in the Capital Pro-
jects Funds). The State becomes the tenant of the
facility under a lease/purchase agreement which pro-
vides for the payment of rentals sufficient to cover the
related bond debt service and for the passage of title to
the State after the bonds have been repaid.

The State has also entered into contractual oblig-
ation financing arrangements (also referred to as
“service contract bonds”) with certain public benefit
corporations. The terms of these arrangements require
the State to fund the debt service requirements of the

Issuer

Public Benefit Corporations (see Note 16):

Housing FINanCe AgENCY . .. ..ottt
Dormitory Authority—Other . .. ........ ... ... .

Dormitory Authority—Mental Health

Services Facilities .. ...
Thruway AUthority . ... ...
Triborough Bridge & Tunnel Authority . .. .......... .. ... ... ...
Metropolitan Transportation Authority ... ........ ... ... ... ......
Urban Development Corporation . ...............iuiiueneann..
Community Enhancement Facilities Assistance Program ...........
Environmental Facilities Corporation ................ ... .. .. ....
Energy Research & Development Authority . .....................

Total PBCS ..o

Other Entities:

County of Albany . ... ..
Total PBCs and other entities ............. ... ... ... .....

Certificates of Participation . ............. i

Local Government Assistance Corporation (seeNote 9) ...........
Total L

Debt service expenditures for the aforementioned
obligations during the year were $2.1 billion. These
expenditures were financed primarily by the revenues
reported in the Debt Service Funds, transfers of Med-
icaid monies from the Special Revenue Funds and
transfers from the General Fund (see Note 11).

specific debt issued by these entities. The public benefit
corporations retain title to the assets acquired with the
bond proceeds.

During the year, the State entered into various
arrangements for the refinancing and purchase of equip-
ment and real property through the issuance of certifi-
cates of participation. These certificates are issued
through a trustee and the State is responsible for pay-
ments to the trustee that approximate the interest and
principal payments made by the trustee to the certifi-
cate holders. The State maintains custody and use of the
equipment and real property. However, title is held by
the trustees as security for the certificate holders until
such time as the certificates are fully paid. Proceeds from
the issuance of these certificates and the related capital
construction expenditures are accounted for in essen-
tially the same manner as lease/purchase agreements.

Changes in lease/purchase and other financing
arrangements for the year were as follows (amounts
in thousands):

Outstanding Outstanding
April 1, 1998 Issued Redeemed March 31, 1999

$ 1,057,341 $ 99,200 $ 29,500 $ 1,127,041

2,031,167 160,955 216,351 1,975,771
3,595,129 813,335 651,990 3,756,474
3,912,200 1,346,350 522,360 4,736,190
411,140 — 22,375 388,765
2,061,119 124,675 171,060 2,014,734
3,512,370 419,010 79,668 3,851,712
—_ 187,050 —_ 187,050
325,655 30,765 22,310 334,110
89,790 14,345 7,235 96,900
16,995,911 3,195,685 1,722,849 18,468,747
44775 — 17,335 27,440
17,040,686 3,195,685 1,740,184 18,496,187
250,115 179,135 86,000 343,250
5,199,315 307,290 392,045 5,114,560

$ 22,490,116 $ 3,682,110 $ 2,218,229 $ 23,953,997

Certain of the underlying bond indentures require
the maintenance of various reserves. Such amounts
($1.6 billion) are reported as cash of the appropriate
Debt Service Fund with a corresponding reservation of
fund balance.



Following is a summary of the future minimum
rental payments for lease/purchase and contractual
obligations financing arrangements including interest
at rates between 2.9% and 10% (amounts in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2000 ....... $ 824430 $ 1015611 $ 1,840,041
2001 ....... 901,996 971,129 1,873,125
2002 ....... 939,079 921,120 1,860,199
2003 ....... 932,547 868,795 1,801,342
2004 ....... 889,252 817,849 1,707,101
Thereafter . . . 14,008,883 7,281,154 21,290,037
Total ... .. $ 18,496,187 $ 11,875,658 $ 30,371,845

Certain certificates of participation issues require
the maintenance of a reserve. These amounts ($33
million) are reported as cash of the appropriate Debt
Service Fund with a corresponding reservation of fund
balance.

Debt service requirements for certificates of par-
ticipation, which are financed by transfers from the
General Fund, including interest at rates of 4.0% to
7.75%, are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2000 ....... $ 102,270 $ 14,356 $ 116,626
2001 ....... 87,995 9,874 97,869
2002 ....... 73,720 6,002 79,722
2003 ....... 47,505 3,030 50,535
2004 ....... 26,580 1,136 27,716
Thereafter . . . 5,180 363 5,543
Total ..... $ 343,250 $ 34,761 $ 378,011

Issue Description
Dormitory Authority:

Mental Health Services—1998D . ............ ... . ...
Mental Health Services—1998G . ............ ..o,
Mental Health Services—1999C . ......... ... .t
Department of Health—Series 1998 . ....... ... ... ... .. ... ... ..

State Portion of CUNY Community Colleges:

Refunded by Series 1998A, 1998B, & 1998 Series1 .............
Refunded by 1998 Series 2 . ....... ... i

Total Dormitory Authority ......... ... .. .. ... ...

Metropolitan Transportation Authority:

Transit & Commuter Facilities—SeriesR . ........................

Thruway Authority:

Local Highway & Bridge Bonds—Series 1998A . ..................
Local Highway and Bridge Bonds—Series 1998B . . ................
Highway & Bridge Trust Fund Bonds—1999A .. ...................

Total Thruway Authority ........ .. ... . . ..
Total ..

The assets and liabilities relating to the refunded
bonds are not reported in the accompanying general
purpose financial statements. At March 31, 1999,

STATE OF NEW YORK ¢ 43

The State is also committed under numerous capital
leases covering EDP and telecommunications equip-
ment. Debt service expenditures for these obligations
during the year were $7 million. The liability for the
remaining principal of $95 million is reported in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group as
other long-term liabilities. Included with these capital
leases are several real property capital leases which will
require principal payments in the amount of $28 million
and interest payments in the amount of $23 million
throughout the lives of the leases.

Following is a summary of the principal and inter-
est payments, which are financed by transfers from the
General Fund, for the remaining lease periods of these
capital leases (amounts in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2000 ....... $ 18,286 $ 4,463 $ 22,749
2001 ....... 18,796 4,230 23,026
2002 ....... 19,024 3,238 22,262
2003 ....... 13,805 2,251 16,056
2004 ....... 779 1,497 2,276
Thereafter . .. 24,475 15,579 40,054
Total ..... $ 95,165 $ 31,258 % 126,423

During the year ended March 31, 1999 there were
ten refunding issues relating to lease/purchase agree-
ments. The impact of these issues is presented in the fol-
lowing table (amounts in thousands):

Refunding Refunded Cash Flow Present
Amount Amount Gain Value Gain

$ 328,130 $ 293,005 $ 13,276 $ 11,158

90,030 81,025 2,737 2,539
175,870 166,015 7,424 4,844
50,510 43,610 3,007 1,824
15,752 13,819 527 509
3,476 3,192 172 143
663,768 600,666 27,143 21,017
124,675 116,955 18,209 15,628
101,940 95,885 3,851 2,654
133,245 125,245 4,980 3,464
78,260 76,385 2,807 2,132
313,445 297,515 11,638 8,250

$ 1,101,888 $ 1,015,136 $ 56,990 $ 44,895

approximately $7.2 billion of such bonds, including
college and university debt, are outstanding.
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In March 1989, the State refinanced certain
lease/purchase agreement rental payments. The refi-
nancing plan required the Urban Development Cor-
poration to sell $128 million in capital appreciation
bonds and loaned the proceeds to the General Fund for
the purpose of funding the next four semi-annual lease
payments which are normally funded by transfers from
the General Fund to the Debt Service Funds. The
bonds have sinking fund requirements which began
in 1998, maturity dates ranging from 1998 to 2011,
interest rates ranging from 7.7% to 8.1% and total pay-
ments remaining amount to $390 million on the
remaining debt. The liability relating to the outstand-
ing principal balance and any accrued interest on the
bonds is reported as other liabilities within the General
Fund. The fund liability reflects a loan from a compo-
nent unit, Urban Development Corporation, operat-
ing as the Empire State Development Corporation to
the General Fund.

The State is also committed under numerous oper-
ating leases covering real property and equipment.
Rental expenditures reported for the year ended March
31, 1999 under such operating leases totaled $300
million and were financed primarily from the General

Public Benefit Corporations (See Note 16):

Dormitory Authority—CUNY . ... ...
Dormitory Authority—SUNY ... ...
Dormitory Authority—SUNY Educational Facilities .................

Total lease/purchase ........... .
Certificates of Participation .......... .. .. .. ... ..
Capital Lease Commitments . ........ ...t

Following is a summary of the future minimum
rental payments for lease/purchase and contractual
obligations financing arrangements for SUNY and

Fiscal Year

Total minimum lease payments . .............. i,
Less amount representinginterest . ............ . i
Less unamortized original issue discount .. ............. ... .. .. ...

Present value of net minimum lease payments . ................

Fund. Following is a summary of the future minimum
rental commitments under real property and equip-
ment leases with terms exceeding one year (amounts in
thousands):

Fiscal Year Amount

2000 ... $ 111,103
2001 ... 95,963
2002 e 91,735
2003 e 80,278
2004 .. 71,379
Thereafter .......... .. ... ... . . ... . ... .. 219,385

Total ... ... $ 669,843

College and University Debt
The DA issues debt on behalf of SUNY and CUNY. The
debt service is funded from subsidies from the General
Fund and certain student fees. The following tables
present information for lease/purchase debt, certificates
of participation financing and capital and operating lease
data relating to college and university operations.

The following represents year-end balances for
SUNY and CUNY lease/purchase and other financing
arrangements (amounts in thousands):

Outstanding
End of Year

........................................ $ 2,366,351
........................................ 229,230
........................................ 3,631,391

........................................ 6,226,972
........................................ 204,889
........................................ 40,603

........................................ $ 6,472,464

CUNY including interest rates ranging from 4.4% to
8.2% (amounts in thousands):

SUNY CUNY Total
.................. $ 339,245 $ 219,110 $ 558,355
.................. 343,198 221,239 564,437
.................. 341,502 218,569 560,071
.................. 339,331 216,396 555,727
.................. 336,221 221,869 558,090
.................. 5,286,376 3,293,377 8,579,753
.................. 6,985,873 4,390,560 11,376,433

.................. (3125,252)  (1,969,877)  (5,095,129)

— (54,332) (54,332)

.................. $ 3,860,621 $ 2,366,351 $ 6,226,972




Subsequent to June 30, 1998 fiscal year-end for
both SUNY and CUNY, the following debt exclusive of
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refunding issues was issued by the DA in the amounts
indicated (amounts in thousands):

Issue Date Issue Title/Series Amount
July 10,1998 . . . CUNY Consolidated Revenue Bonds 1998—Series 2 ......... $ 192,468
August 13,1998 . .. .. SUNY Educational Faciliies—Series 1998 B . ... ............ 301,345

Debt service requirements for certificates of par-
ticipation including interest rates of 3.9% to 7.9% are
as follows (amounts in thousands):

Fiscal Year

Total minimum lease payments . ...,
Less amount representing interest . ........... ..

Subtotal ...
Unamortized premium .. ... ..o e

Present value of net minimum lease payments .................

SUNY and CUNY also have numerous capital lease
commitments covering EDP, telecommunications equip-
ment, and renovation of building space. Following is a

Fiscal Year

Total minimum lease payments ............... i,
Less amount representing interest . ............. i

Present value of net minimum lease payments .................

The liability for lease/purchase debt, certificates of
participation and capital leases are reported as oblig-
ations under lease/purchase and other financing
arrangements in the College and University Funds.

Debt service expenditures for all of the afore-
mentioned obligations during the year totaled $564
million. The funding source for these expenditures is
primarily from State appropriations.

Fiscal Year

Total . e

SUNY CUNY Total
.................. $ 9,689 $ 20373 $ 30,062
.................. 6,580 20,355 26,935
.................. 5,004 20,331 25,335
.................. 3,135 20,291 23,426
.................. 1,152 20,100 21,252
.................. 2,629 139,960 142,589
.................. 28,189 241,410 269,599
.................. (3,717) (61,556) (65,273)
.................. 24,472 179,854 204,326
.................. — 563 563

.................. $ 24,472  $ 180,417 $ 204,889

summary of the principal and interest payments for the
remaining lease periods of these capital leases including
interest rates of 4% to 10% (amounts in thousands):

SUNY CUNY Total
.................. $ 8,857 $ 698 $ 9,555
.................. 8,460 698 9,158
.................. 7,783 698 8,481
.................. 5,925 698 6,623
.................. 3,950 698 4,648
.................. 7,603 6,978 14,581
.................. 42,578 10,468 53,046
.................. (7,387) (5,056) (12,443)
.................. $ 35191 $ 5412 $ 40,603

SUNY and CUNY are also committed under numer-
ous operating leases covering real property and equip-
ment. Rental expenditures reported for the year ended
June 30, 1998, under such operating leases totaled $51
million. Following is a summary of the future minimum
rental commitments under real property and equip-
ment operating leases with terms exceeding one year
(amounts in thousands):

SUNY CUNY Total
.................. $ 19,173  $ 23,627 $ 42,800
.................. 18,040 23,833 41,873
.................. 15,981 23,693 39,674
.................. 14,632 22,606 37,238
.................. 13,440 18,916 32,356
.................. 19,205 44,846 64,051

.................. $ 100,471  $ 157,521 $ 257,992
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During the year ended March 31, 1999, there were
five refunding issues relating to lease/purchase agree-

Issue Description

Dormitory Authority:
CUNY Senior Colleges:

Refunded by Series 1998A, 1998B, & 1998 Series1 .............
Refunded by 1998 Series 2 ........ ..t

Refunded by Series 1993 Series, C, D and E

(cross over State University of New York) ....................

State University of New York:

SUNY Series 1998A . . ...
SUNY Athletic Series 1998 . . ... ... .. i

Total Dormitory Authority . ........ ... ... .. ..

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 1997, the
DA entered into a five-year interest rate swap agreement
for $125 million of its fixed rate SUNY Educational Facil-
ities Bonds which are supported by a lease purchase
agreement with the State. Based upon the swap agree-
ment, the DA owes interest calculated at a variable rate
based upon the Public Securities Association (PSA) index.
In return the counterparty owes the DA interest based
upon the fix rate that matches the rate required by the
bonds. Only the net difference in the interest payments
is actually exchanged with the counterparty. The $125
million in bond principal is not exchanged; it is only the
basis on which the interest payments are calculated. A
separate and concurrent agreement between the State
and the DA provides that the State, pursuant to an appro-
priation, will fund any payment required to be made by
the DA to the counterparty under the swap agreement.

ments. The impact of these issues is presented in the fol-
lowing table (amounts in thousands):

Refunding Refunded Cash Flow Present
Amount Amount Gain Value Gain
...... $ 158,506 $ 139,052 $ 5298 $ 5,122
...... 43,872 40,286 2,176 1,809
...... 93,255 91,435 22,555 5,516
...... 255,850 231,135 8,659 6,308
...... 26,165 24,510 4,266 3,047

...... $ 577,648 $ 526,418 $ 42,954 $ 21,802

The DA continues to pay interest to the bond-
holders at the fixed rate provided by the bonds.
However, during the term of the swap agreement, the
DA effectively pays interest at the variable rate on the
debt. The debt service requirements to maturity for
these bonds is based upon the fixed rate. The DA will
be exposed to variable interest rates during the term of
the swap, unless the counterparty to the swap defaults
or the swap is terminated. A termination of the swap
agreement may also result in the DA making or receiv-
ing a termination payment.

During the year ended March 31, 1999, the DA
received payments under the swap agreement in the
amount of $712 thousand which was used to reduce
the payments the State made to the DA under the lease
purchase agreement.

Interfund Transactions

Operating Transfers

Operating transfers constitute the transfer of resources
from the fund that receives the resources to the fund
which utilizes them. The more significant transfers
include the transfer of General Fund revenues to Capital
Projects Funds ($246 million), to College and Univer-
sity Funds ($1.8 billion) and to Debt Service Funds ($2.1
billion), and the transfer of excess revenues of Debt
Service Funds to the General Fund. The transfers from
Debt Service Funds in support of certain health, mental
health and retardation expenditures ($1.9 billion) are
made after first satisfying debt service and rental reserve
requirements using revenues provided by patient fees.
The transfers from Debt Service Funds to the General
Fund for expenditures in support of general govern-
ment ($1.6 billion) represent excess sales tax receipts of
the Local Government Assistance Tax Fund not needed
for debt service, excess real property tax receipts from the
Clean Water and Air Fund ($187 million) and transfers
to College and University Funds ($537 million). Transfers
to the General Fund from Expendable Trust Funds of
$268 million represented excess abandoned property
funds not needed to pay claims. Operating transfers from

Special Revenue Funds are comprised of the Federal
share of Medicaid payments for a variety of purposes
including transfers to Debt Service Funds for recipients
residing in State-operated mental health and retarda-
tion facilities ($1.8 billion) and transfers from/to Expend-
able Trust Funds for reimbursement of medical assistance
payments ($625 million). Operating transfers from
Capital Projects Funds to Debt Service Funds include
funding for payment of debt service on lease purchase
bonds issued to finance local highways and bridge projects
($397 million). Operating transfers from the Govern-
mental Funds to the College and University Funds are
reported as operating transfers to other funds by the
Governmental Funds and as nonmandatory transfers
from State appropriations by the College and University
Funds. As explained in Note 1, the amounts reported
for the College and University Funds are derived from
their annual financial statements for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998. Therefore, because of the different fiscal
year-end for the College and University Funds, total oper-
ating transfers to other funds exceed total operating
transfers from other funds by $287 million.



Each year the General Fund, Special Revenue
Funds and Capital Projects Funds make operating trans-
fers to certain Public Benefit Corporations to subsi-
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Fund Type/Fund Due From Due To

DEBT SERVICE:

dize operations and to acquire capital assets. For the
fiscal year ended March 31, 1999, the General Fund,
Special Revenue Funds and Capital Projects Funds
made operating transfers to public benefit corpora-
tions totaling more than $1.8 billion. The more sig-
nificant transfers include the transfers from the General
Fund to Roswell Park of $150 million, $87 million to the
Urban Development Corporation and $41 million to
the Metropolitan Transportation Authority. The trans-
fers from Special Revenue Funds were to the Metro-
politan Transportation Authority for $1.3 billion. The
transfers from Capital Projects Funds include the trans-
fer of $51 million to the Housing Trust Finance Cor-
poration and $43 million to the Thruway Authority.
During the same time, certain Public Benefit Corpo-
rations made operating transfers to the General Fund
and Special Revenue Funds amounting to $89 million
and $11 million, respectively. These amounts differ
from amounts reported on Exhibit D as operating trans-
fers from primary government and operating trans-
fers to primary government, totaling $1.4 billion and
$36 million, respectively, because certain Public Benefit
Corporations have fiscal years different than the State’s.
In addition, those operating transfers from the primary
government to the public benefit corporations that
are used to acquire capital assets are reported as capital

Mental Hygiene Services ....... 74,906 —
Department of Health Income . . . . . 8,385 —
83,291 —

CAPITAL PROJECTS:

contributions by the Public Benefit Corporations.

Due From/To Other Funds

The following is a summary of due from other funds
and due to other funds at March 31, 1999 (amounts

in thousands):

Fund Type/Fund
GENERAL ............. ... ....

SPECIAL REVENUE:
Disproportionate Share

Due From

Due To

$ 1,033,472 $ 340,178

Medical Assistance .......... 29,666 —
Federal USDA—FNS .......... 83 34,821
Federal DHHS ................ 1,755 442,246
Federal Education ............. 1,129 26,162
Federal DHHS Block Grant . . .. .. 7 16,718
Federal Operating Grants . . ..... 641 54,280
ENCON Special Revenue . ... ... 319 1,946
Conservation ................. 735 673
Environmental Protection and

Oil Spill Compensation .. ..... 19 278
Hazardous Waste Removal .. ... 278 805
Mass Transportation

Operating Assistance ........ — 1,281
CleanAir ....... ... .. ... .. ... 68 212
Unemployment Insurance

Administration .............. 1,398 11,053
Federal Job Training Partnership . — 131
Miscellaneous Special Revenue . . 1,428 8,185

37,526 598,791

State Capital Projects ......... 805 16,845
Dedicated Highway and

Bridge Trust . .............. 481 26,551
Environmental Protection ...... — 8
Federal Capital Projects ....... 193 145,627
Division for Youth

Facilities Improvement .. .... — 8,984
Housing Program ............ — 75,936
DOT Engineering Services . .. .. 98 129,789
Mental Hygiene Facilities

Capital Improvement .. ...... 30 147,543
Correctional Facilities

Capital Improvement . ....... 1,261 57,280
Miscellaneous Capital Projects . . . 335 21,556

3,203 630,119
COLLEGE AND
UNIVERSITY . ............... 439,350 —
TRUST AND AGENCY:
Combined Expendable Trust . . .. 701 593
Miscellaneous Expendable Trust . . 121,545 27
Combined Trusts, Gifts,

Bequests ................. — 17
Employees Health Insurance .. .. 1 1,349
Social Security Contribution . . .. 167 —
NYS Employee Payroll

Withholding ............... 300 63
Employee Dental Insurance ... .. 107 —
Fringe Benefit Escrow . ......... 192,270 274
CUNY Senior College Operating . . 623 296
MMIS Statewide Escrow . ....... 7,717 16,104
SoleCustody . ................ 9,896 —
Miscellaneous Agency . .. ....... 27,666 15,683

360,993 34,406

Total ....... ... ... .. ... $ 1,957,835 $ 1,603,494

The more significant balances due to/from other
funds include $943 million due to the General Fund to
cover cash overdrafts in the short-term investment pool.
These temporary interfund loans include $541 million
to various Capital Projects Funds and $402 million to
the Special Revenue Funds. In addition, $74.9 million
due from the Federal DHHS Fund to the Mental
Hygiene Services Fund for Medicaid reimbursement,
and $126 million due to the Fringe Benefit Escrow
Fund for fringe benefits on payrolls of the Govern-
mental Funds.

As explained in Note 1, the amounts reported for
the College and University Funds are derived from
their annual financial statements for fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998. Therefore, because of the different fiscal
year-end of the College and University Funds, the total
amount reported as due from other funds exceeds the
total amount reported as due to other funds by $354
million.
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Budgetary Basis Reporting

The State Constitution requires the Governor to submit
annually an Executive Budget which contains a com-
plete plan for all funds of expenditures for the ensuing
fiscal year and all monies and revenues estimated to
be available. The Executive Budget is accompanied by
bills containing all recommended appropriations or
reappropriations and any proposed legislation neces-
sary to provide monies and revenues sufficient to meet
such proposed expenditures. Budgets are prepared
and enacted for all funds. Included in the proposed
appropriation bills is a provision for spending author-
ity for unanticipated revenues or unforeseen emer-
gencies in accordance with statutory requirements.
The Executive Budget includes a cash basis financial
plan which must be in balance, i.e., disbursements must
not exceed available receipts.

The Legislature enacts appropriation bills and
revenue measures embodying those parts of the Exec-
utive Budget it has approved or modified. The Legis-
lature may also enact a supplemental appropriation
bill and special appropriation bills. When the Legisla-
ture convenes in January, it may enact a deficiency
appropriation bill which authorizes additional unfore-
seen expenditures for the then current fiscal year. The
Legislature did not enact any supplemental appropri-
ations during the year.

An appropriation is a statutory authorization
against which expenditures may be made during a spe-
cific fiscal year, and from which disbursements may be
made, for the purposes designated, up to the stated
amount of the appropriation. An appropriation rep-
resents the maximum spending authority and is not a
mandate to spend. The State’s central accounting
system includes controls over disbursements to ensure
that the maximum spending authority is not exceeded
during the life of the appropriation. Disbursements
are controlled at the major object level within each
program/project of each State agency in accordance
with the underlying approved appropriation bills. The
major object and program/project levels vary among
State agencies. For example, the program level report-
ing would provide information for programs such as
Medicaid and Food Stamps. Project level information
relates primarily to capital construction project appro-
priations. Compliance with the level of legal control
is reported in a separate document entitled, “Appro-
priation/Segregation Accounts.” This document reports
both disbursements and encumbrances, which reserve
a portion of the applicable appropriation, thereby

ensuring that the appropriations are not exceeded.
Encumbrances are not considered a disbursement in
the financial plan or an expenditure in the financial
statements. Appropriations do not lapse at fiscal year-
end. Generally, all appropriations lapse on September
15, following the end of the fiscal year, except for state
operations appropriations which lapse on June 30. Dis-
bursements related to prior year appropriations and
made during the lapse period are included in the sub-
sequent fiscal year financial plan. The funds appro-
priated are determined in accordance with
constitutional and statutory requirements. Many appro-
priations enacted are not intended to be used although
required by law. These types of appropriations will gen-
erally cause total appropriation authorizations to exceed
cash basis financial plan (Exhibit C) disbursement
amounts. Actual disbursements exceeded financial
plan disbursements as reported on Exhibit C but did
not exceed total appropriations. Most Capital Projects
appropriations and many State operations appropria-
tions are reappropriated each year by the Legislature
and therefore the lives of such appropriations may be
many years.

The annual budget cycle normally begins during
the summer prior to the commencement of the fiscal
year with the State departments developing their budget
requests for submission to the Division of the Budget in
September. During the fall, the departmental requests
are analyzed by the Division of the Budget, formal
budget hearings are held and major policy decisions
are made by the Governor and his staff. The Executive
Branch phase of the process culminates in the submis-
sion of the Executive Budget to the Legislature in
January. The Legislative fiscal committees review the
Executive Budget, the Legislature holds public hear-
ings and modifies the proposed Executive Budget, and
appropriation bills are expected to be enacted into law
by the April 1 start of the fiscal year. If the budget is
not enacted by April 1, the legislature could enact emer-
gency appropriations to continue State operations.

Once the appropriation and revenue bills become
law, the cash basis and the GAAP basis financial plans
are revised by the Governor to reflect the impact result-
ing from changes in appropriations and revenue bills.
The cash basis financial plan, which serves as the basis
for the administration of the State’s finances during
the fiscal year, authorizes spending at amounts less
than or equal to the appropriations enacted by the
Legislature. Accordingly, the cash basis financial plan
is generally considered to be the State’s “Budget” and
the appropriate plan to present in Exhibit C.



The Governor is required to provide a quarterly
report to the Legislature showing a comparison of the
actual year-to-date results with the latest revised plans
providing an explanation of any major deviations and
any significant changes to the financial plans. Such
revisions to the financial plan do not require that

GENERAL
Receipts:

TAXES vttt e e
Miscellaneous . ... ... ..

Total reCeIPtS . .ot

Disbursements:

Local assistance grants . . .. ...t
Departmental Operations . .. ...ttt
General state charges . . ...t
DeEbESEIVICE . . ..o

Total disbursements ......... ... ... .. .

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers fromotherfunds . ........ ... ... .. .. .. .. .. . ... . .. ...
Transfersto otherfunds ........... ... .. ... ... .. i i

Net other financing sources (US€S) . .........co i,

Receipts and other financing sources over (under) disbursements

and other financinQ uses .......... ...

SPECIAL REVENUE

Receipts:

TAXES v vttt
Miscellaneous . .. ...
Federal grants .. ........ .t

Total reCeIPtS . .ot

Disbursements:

Local assistance grants .. ........... .t
Departmental operations . ...t e
General statecharges . .......... ... i i
Capital Projects . ... ...

Total disbursements ....... ... ... ... ..

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers fromotherfunds . ........ ... ... .. ... .. ... . ... . ... ...
Transfersto otherfunds .......... ... ... ... .. i
Bond and note proceeds, net . .......... ...

Net other financing sources (US€S) .. ...,

Receipts and other financing sources (under) over disbursements

and other financing uses ............ .ot

DEBT SERVICE
Receipts:

KBS .+ vttt
Miscellaneous .. ... ...

Total receiptsS . ..o

Disbursements:

Departmental operations . .. ......... ..
Debtservice . . ... ...

Total disbursements .......... .. ... . .

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers fromotherfunds ........... ... ... ... .. ... ...........
Transferstootherfunds ........... ... .. .. .. ... . .. .

Net other financing sources (US€S) .. ...,

Receipts and other financing sources over (under) disbursements

and other financinQ usSes ... ...t
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balance be maintained between receipts and dis-
bursements. The following represents a comparison
of the State’s cash basis financial plan as originally pub-
lished by the Governor in April 1998 with subsequent
published modifications by the Governor to reflect
changes during the fiscal year (amounts in millions):

April February
1998 Modifications 1999

........... $ 34,360 $ (1,081) $ 33,279
........... 1,404 140 1,544
........... 35,764 (941) 34,823
........... 25,141 (252) 24,889
........... 6,704 (54) 6,650
........... 2,215 71 2,286
........... 11 — 11
........... 34,071 (235) 33,836
........... 1,796 156 1,952
........... (2,708) (70) (2,778)
........... (912) 86 (826)
........... $ 781 % (620) $ 161
........... $ 2,068 $ (136) $ 1,932
........... 5,582 230 5,812
........... 21,724 292 22,016
........... 29,374 386 29,760
........... 23,653 (167) 23,486
........... 5,968 215 6,183
........... 346 (20) 326
........... 7 — 7
........... 29,974 28 30,002
........... 2,321 96 2,417
........... (12,907) (33) (1,940)
........... 9 9) —
........... 423 54 477
........... $ ar7) % 412 $ 235
........... $ 2,127  $ % $ 2,223
........... 615 7 622
........... 2,742 103 2,845
........... 5 1 6
........... 3,355 (66) 3,289
........... 3,360 (65) 3,295
........... 4,430 (92) 4,338
........... (3,753) (133) (3,886)
........... 677 (225) 452
........... $ 5 $ (57) $ 2
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CAPITAL PROJECTS
Receipts:

TAXES .« v vttt
Miscellaneous . ... ... e
Federal grants . ....... ..o

Total reCEIPLS ..ot

Disbursements:

Local assistance grants .. ... s
Capital projects . . ... i

Total disbursements .......... ... ... i

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers fromotherfunds . ......... ... ... ... ... ... . ... . ... ...
Transferstootherfunds ......... ... ... ... . .. . . .
Bond and note proceeds, net . .......... ...

Net other financing sources (US€S) . .........c ...

Receipts and other financing sources over (under) disbursements

and other financing uses . ........... it

The modifications indicated above generally reflect
revisions to projections based on actual receipts and
disbursements for interim periods.

Exhibit C provides a comparison of the estimated
data in the February 1999 Financial Plan with the actual

Excess (deficiency) of receipts and other financing sources

over disbursements and other financing uses per ExhibitC .. ..........

Entity differences:
Receipts and other financing sources over (under) disbursements
and other financing uses for funds and accounts not included

in the cash basis financialplan .. ............. ... .. ... .. .. ....

Perspective differences:
Receipts and other financing sources over (under) disbursements
and other financing uses for funds treated as Special Revenue
Funds in the financial plan and part of the General Fund for

GAAP reporting . . .« ottt
College and University Funds .. ...
Temporary interfund cashloans ............. .. ... ... . ...

Basis of accounting differences:

Netincrease intaxesreceivable ......... ... ... ... .. .. .
Net increase in due from Federal government .......................
Net increase (decrease) in other receivables and miscellaneous assets . . . . .
Net increase in due fromotherfunds ......... ... ... .. .. .. .. .....
Net (increase) decrease in deferred revenues .......................
Net (increase) decrease in tax refunds payable ......................

Net decrease in payable to local governments .......................
Net (increase) decrease in other payables and accrued liabilities ........
Net (increase) decrease in due tootherfunds .......................

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources over

expenditures and other financing uses per ExhibitB ...............

The entity differences relate to the inclusion of
certain funds considered to be Proprietary Funds for
purposes of the cash basis financial plan. In addition,
the inclusion of New York Local Government Assis-
tance Corporation and related entities as well as certain
sole custody bank accounts, which are not included in
the Governmental Funds cash basis financial plan, con-
tribute to the entity difference.

April February
1998 Modifications 1999
............ $ 1,077 % 30 $ 1,107
............ 1,670 135 1,805
............ 1,194 55 1,249
............ 3,941 220 4,161
............ 818 (123) 695
............ 3,321 252 3,573
........... 4,139 129 4,268
........... 202 72 274
........... (441) 18 (423)
............ 528 (297) 331
........... 289 (107) 182
........... $ 91 $ (16) $ 75

results on the cash basis of accounting, whereas Exhibit B
presents operating results in conformity with GAAP. The
following presents a reconciliation of the budgetary cash
basis operating results per Exhibit C with the GAAP based
operating results per Exhibit B (amounts in thousands):

Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects
$ 254200 $ 56,000 $ 55,700 $ (53,400)
(101,387) (3,388) 127,317 72,324
164,268 (164,268) — —
— 11,369 (1,855) (16,906)
(21,129) (21,478) — 42,607
516,087 2,730 12,296 129
— 33,788 — 38,235
(165,662) 181,561 (7,426) (615)
80,579 23,487 16,658 13
68,701 (208,356) 6,073 (5,562)
(102,095) (14,822) 346 546
261,661 249,803 — 7,154
75,673 (239,289) (250) 144,842
47,526 (24,635) — (75,772)
$ 1,078,422 $ (117,498) $ 208859 % 153,595

Perspective differences relate to variations in the
presentation of the cash basis financial plan fund struc-
ture versus GAAP fund structure. A perspective differ-
ence for temporary interfund loans occurs when a fund
temporarily overdraws its share of the pooled investment
funds. These temporary loans are covered by the General
Fund’s and a Special Revenue Fund’s share of the pool.
The establishment of the College and University Funds
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creates a perspective difference because certain SUNY
and CUNY operations are included in the Governmental
Fund Types for purposes of the cash basis financial plan
yet this activity is reported in the College and University
Funds for GAAP. A perspective difference relating to the
Infrastructure Trust Fund and Earmarked Revenue
Accounts occurs because these funds are included in the

Special Revenue Funds cash basis financial plan while
the GAAP based presentation includes them in the
General Fund. Receipts relating to the perspective dif-
ference attributed to variations between cash basis and
GAAP reporting totaled $5,915 million offset by dis-
bursements totaling $5,743 million for a net increase in
cash of $172 million.

Commitments and Contingencies

The State receives significant financial assistance from
the Federal government in the form of grants and enti-
tlements. Receipt of grants is generally conditioned upon
compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agree-
ments and applicable Federal regulations, including the
expenditure of resources for eligible purposes. Substan-
tially all grants are subject to either the Federal Single
Audit Act or to financial and compliance audits by grantor
agencies of the Federal government or their designees.
Disallowances by Federal program officials as a result of
these audits may become liabilities of the State.

The Dormitory Authority of the State of New York
has $1,082 million outstanding of Secured Hospital
Revenue Bonds for the purpose of financing mortgage
loans to various hospitals in New York City. The hospi-
tals are committed to pay the debt service, and reserves
have been established to cover deficiencies incurred
by the hospitals. However, if both of these funding
sources are inadequate, the State may be called upon to
pay the debt service. Any such payments would require
authorization by the State Legislature.

The New York State Constitution provides that the
State may guarantee repayment of certain borrowings
of the Job Development Authority (JDA) to carry out
designated projects. The State has never been called
upon to make any direct payments pursuant to such
guarantees. As of March 31, 1999, JDA had $187 million
of State-guaranteed bonds outstanding (with an addi-
tional $563 million authorized but not issued).

In order to provide additional inducement to
investors to purchase the obligations of certain public
benefit corporations, the legislation creating these cor-
porations authorizes the State to make up any defi-
ciencies in their debt service reserve funds, subject to
legislative appropriation (effectively, a “moral obliga-
tion” to back the corporations’ credit). Such “moral
obligation” does not constitute full faith and credit
obligations of the State. As of March 31, 1999, approx-
imately $628 million in moral obligation bonds were
outstanding. During the year the State was not called on
to make any payments.

Health care providers have a right to appeal Med-
icaid reimbursement rates. Based on an analysis of appeals

a liability of $824 million has been recognized of which
$162 million is expected to be paid within the next 12
months and is recorded in the Governmental Funds.
The remainder, $662 million, is reported in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group and represents
a decrease of $289 million from the prior year.

In 1977-78, the State required that reserve funds
held by insurance companies which underwrite the
State employee health insurance programs be paid to
the General Fund. The State is liable to replenish these
reserve funds if needed to pay insured benefits or if
the contracts with the insurance companies are termi-
nated. Accordingly, based on actuarial calculations, the
State has recorded a liability of $196 million. The
amount is reported in the General Long-Term Obliga-
tions Account Group and represents a decrease of $27
million from the amount reported in the prior year.

Generally, the State does not insure its buildings,
contents or related risks and does not insure its State-
owned automobiles for bodily injury and property
damages, but the State does have fidelity and health
insurance on State employees. Routine uninsured losses
are recorded as expenditures in the General Fund as
paid, while significant uninsured losses usually are the
result of litigation which is discussed further in Note 14.

Workers’ compensation is provided with the State
Insurance Fund acting as the State’s administrator and
claims processing agent. Under an agreement with the
State Insurance Fund, the State pays only what is nec-
essary to fund claims. Based on actuarial calculations,
discounted at 5% as of March 31, 1999, the State is
liable for unfunded claims and incurred but not
reported claims totaling approximately $857 million.
The portion expected to be paid in the next 12 months,
$154 million, is reported as a liability of the General
Fund. The remaining amount, $703 million, is reported
in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group
and represents an increase of $44 million from the
amount reported in the prior year.

Changes in the State’s liability relating to workers’
compensation claims, litigation (see Note 14) and auto
claims in fiscal years 1998 and 1999 were (amounts in
thousands):

Payments and

Claim Liability Increase in Decreases in Claim Liability
Fiscal Year Beginning of Year Liability Estimate Liability Estimate End of Year
1997-1998 . . ..o $ 1,171,455 $ 777581 % 267,562 $ 1,681,474
1998-1999 . ..t 1,681,474 959,410 886,576 1,754,308
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The State Abandoned Property Law requires the
deposit of certain defined and unclaimed assets into a
State-managed Abandoned Property Fund (Expend-
able Trust). The State Finance Law provides that when-
ever the cash balance of the Fund exceeds $750
thousand at fiscal year-end, the excess must be remitted
to the General Fund where it is reported as operating
transfers from other funds. However, during the year,
in accordance with the statute, the Fund has had cash
balances which exceeded $750 thousand in order to
meet anticipated cash flow demands. At March 31,
1999, the Fund included $235 million of securities not
yet liquidated and funds restricted by Federal require-
ments which were not subject to transfer to the General
Fund. The amounts remitted during the year approx-
imated $268 million. Net collections from inception
(1942) to March 31, 1999 of approximately $4.4 billion,
excluding interest, represent a contingent liability to the
State since claims for refund may be filed by the owners
of such property.

A liability and a corresponding reduction of revenue
representing the probable amount of escheat property
which will be reclaimed and paid to claimants is
reported in the Abandoned Property Fund (Fund). To
the extent that assets in the Fund are less than the
claimant liability, a receivable (due from other funds) is
reported in that Fund and an equal liability (due to
other funds) is reported in the General Fund. At March
31, 1999, the amount reported in the Fund for claimant
liability is $416 million and the amount reported in the
General Fund as due to the Fund is $122 million. Since
revenues in the Fund are expected to be adequate to pay
current claims, it is not expected that General Fund
support for that purpose will be required. Claims paid
from the Fund during the year totaled $65 million.

Since fiscal year 1982-83, amounts have been trans-
ferred to the General Fund and the Capital Projects
Fund from the State Insurance Fund and from several
nongovernmental funds. The legislation authorizing
the transfers requires the Legislature to enact annual
appropriations from the General Fund to cover the
State’s contingent liability to repay these transfers. Pay-
ments from these appropriations will be made only if
the affected funds become insolvent and have no other
monies available to meet their statutory obligations.
To date, no payments from these appropriations have
been required. As of March 31, 1999, the appropriation
was $1.7 billion. However, due to the State Insurance
Fund’s accumulated deficit, exclusive of the contin-
gent receivable from the State, it has been determined
that a liability may exist. As a result, a liability of $461
million has been reported in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group and represents a decrease
of $156 million from the prior year. A related receivable
is reflected in the accounts of the State Insurance Fund
(see Note 16).

The State is liable for costs relating to the closure
and post-closure of landfills totaling $13 million. $3
million is expected to be paid in the next 12 months
and is recorded in Capital Projects funds. The remain-
ing $10 million is recorded in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group. Closure and post-closure
requirements are generally governed by Title 6, Part
360 of the New York Code of Rules and Regulations.
Since most landfills are inactive, the liability reflects
the total estimated closure and post-closure cost at
year-end. Liability estimates are based on engineering
studies or on estimates by agency officials which are
updated annually.

Litigation

The State is a defendant in numerous legal proceedings
pertaining to matters incidental to the performance
of routine governmental operations. Such litigation
includes, but is not limited to, claims asserted against
the State arising from alleged torts, alleged breaches of
contracts, condemnation proceedings and other alleged
violations of State and Federal laws.

Included in the State’s outstanding litigation are a
number of cases challenging the legality or the ade-
quacy of a variety of significant social welfare programs
primarily involving the State’s Medicaid and mental
health programs. Adverse judgments in these matters
generally could result in injunctive relief coupled with
prospective changes in patient care which could require
substantial increased financing of the litigated programs
in the future. Because of the prospective nature of these

matters, no provision for this potential exposure has
been made in the accompanying general purpose finan-
cial statements.

Actions commenced by several Indian nations claim
that significant amounts of land were unconstitutionally
taken from the Indians in violation of various treaties and
agreements during the eighteenth and nineteenth cen-
turies. The claimants seek recovery of thousands of acres
of land as well as compensatory and punitive damages.

In addition, the State is party to other claims and lit-
igation which its legal counsel has advised are not prob-
able of adverse court decisions. Although the amounts
of potential losses, if any, are not presently deter-
minable, it is the State’s opinion that its ultimate liability
in these cases is not expected to have a material adverse
effect on the State’s financial position.



STATE OF NEW YORK ¢ 53

With respect to pending and threatened litigation,
the State has reported liabilities of $895 million for
awarded and anticipated unfavorable judgments. The
portion of the liability expected to be paid within the
next 12 months, $132 million, is reported in the General
Fund. The remainder, $763 million, is reported in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group and

represents a decrease of $19 million from the prior year.
Included within the reported liabilities is the anticipated
judgment relating to the Yonkers Board of Education
in which the State is held liable for not taking appro-
priate steps to eliminate segregation within the Yonkers
school system.

State and Local Retirement System

There are three systems within the State and Local
Retirement System for employees of the State and its
localities (except employees of New York City and
teachers, essentially all of whom are covered by separate
pension plans). The systems, known and reported col-
lectively as the New York State and Local Retirement
Systems (System), are the New York State and Local
Employees’ Retirement System (ERS), the New York
State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System
(PFRS), and the New York State and Local Public
Employees’ Group Life Insurance Plan (GLIP). GLIP
provides death benefits in the form of life insurance. In
these statements, GLIP amounts are apportioned and
included in either ERS or PFRS. The State Comptrol-
ler is sole trustee and administrative head of the System.
The System is a cost sharing multiple-employer public
employee retirement system. On March 31, 1999, there
were 2,843 participating government employers.
Employees of the State constituted about 37% of the
members of the System during the 1998-99 fiscal year.

The System provides retirement benefits as well
as death and disability benefits. Benefits vest after 5
years of credited service. Retirement benefits are estab-
lished by the New York State Retirement and Social
Security Law and are dependent upon the point in
time at which the employees last joined the System.
Contributory and noncontributory requirements also
depend upon the point in time at which an employee
last joined the System. Most members of ERS who
joined the System on or before July 26, 1976 are
enrolled in a noncontributory plan. Most members of
PFRS are not required to make employee contribu-
tions. Employees who last joined ERS subsequent to
July 26, 1976 are enrolled in a contributory plan which
requires a 3% contribution of their salary. Less than 1%
of other members are contributory. Members cannot
be required to begin making contributions or make
increased contributions beyond what was required
when membership began. Generally, members of the
System may retire at age 55; however, members of Tiers
2, 3 and 4 will receive a reduced benefit if they retire
before age 62 with less than 30 years of service. An
employee with less than 10 years of service may with-
draw and obtain a refund, including interest, of the
accumulated employee contributions.

The System’s financial statements are prepared
using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is rec-
ognized when earned and liabilities are recognized
when incurred. Employer contributions are recognized
when billed. Investments are reported at fair value.
Stocks traded on a national or international exchange
are valued at market value at current exchange rates.
Bonds are valued from independent pricing services at
current exchange rates. Mortgages are valued on the
basis of future principal and interest payments, and
are discounted at prevailing interest rates for similar
instruments. The fair value of real estate investments is
based on independent appraisals made every three
years. Investments that do not have an established
market are reported at estimated fair value. The System
trades in foreign exchange contracts in the normal
course of its investing activities in order to manage
exposure to market risks. Such contracts, which are
generally for a period of less than one year, are used to
purchase and sell foreign currency at a guaranteed
future price. These contracts are recorded at market
value using foreign currency forward exchange rates.

Investments are held by the System or its custo-
dial agent in the name of the State Comptroller as
trustee. Investments of the System are categorized by
the level of custodial credit risk (the risk that a counter
party to an investment transaction will not fulfill its
obligations). All investments of the System are desig-
nated as Category 1, the lowest risk, which includes
investments that are insured or registered or for which
the securities are held by the System or its agent, in
the System’s name.

Section 177-D of the Retirement and Social Secu-
rity Law authorizes the System to enter into security
loan agreements with broker/dealers and New York
state or national banks. The System has designated its
master custodian bank to manage a securities lending
program. This program is subject to a written contract
between the System and the Custodian who acts as
Security Lending Agent for the System. The Custodian
is authorized to lend securities within the borrower
limits and guidelines established by the System. Types
of collateral received from borrowers for securities
loaned are cash and government securities. The Cus-
todian is authorized to invest the cash collateral in
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short-term investments that meet the same criteria
used by the System, including: bankers’ acceptances,
domestic commercial paper, obligations of federal
agencies and repurchase agreements. The System has
no right to the government securities pledged unless
there is a default by the borrowers. The System has not
experienced any losses resulting from the default of a
borrower or lending agent during fiscal 1998-99 or in
the history of the program.

The System lends domestic fixed income, domes-
tic equity, and international equity securities to
brokers/dealers approved by the System. Collateral for
securities loaned equals 102% of fair market value for
domestic securities and 105% for international secu-
rities. Investment guidelines provided to the Custo-
dian by the System minimize the risk that the cash
collateral could be invested in securities which may
default. The Custodian acknowledges responsibility to
reimburse the System for losses which may arise from
managing the program in a manner inconsistent with
the contract. The System manages its credit risk by
recording investments at market value daily and main-
taining the value of the collateral held by the System in
excess of the value of the securities loaned.

All security loans can be terminated on demand
by either the System or borrower. The average term of
the securities loaned is four days while the overall
average term to maturity of invested collateral for the
System is 24 days. To provide sufficient liquidity, the
policy of the System is to maintain a minimum of 10%
of collateral in overnight investments.

The System issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the System. The report
may be obtained by writing to the New York State and
Local Retirement Systems, Office of the State Comp-
troller, A. E. Smith State Office Building, Albany, New
York, 12244.

FUNDING STATUS

Participating employers are required under the New
York State Retirement and Social Security Law to con-
tribute annually to the System.

The funding of the System is accomplished
through member and employer contributions and the

investment earnings on these contributions, according
to the New York State Retirement and Social Security
Law. The aggregate actuarial funding method is used
by the System. Generally, participating employers that
have adopted the same benefit plans contribute at the
same rate of payroll. The total employer contribution
rate as a percentage of salary includes rates for admin-
istrative expenses, GLIP, and supplemental benefits.
GLIP is a one-year term insurance plan. Consequently,
the GLIP rates are determined so as to pay for the
current year’s GLIP costs. Similarly, the administra-
tive rates are determined so as to pay the current year’s
administrative expenses. Employers may make other
contributions due to legislation, such as retirement
incentives, the 17-year amortization, and deficiency
payments (which an employer may incur when joining
the System and are payable for up to 25 years).

Incentive program costs receivable from New York
State as of March 31, 1999 totaled $210 million. Section
803 costs are also receivable from the State as of March
31, 1999 in the amount of $0.4 million. Annual bills
for employer contributions accrue interest at the actu-
arial interest rate applicable during the year. For fiscal
year ended March 31, 1999, the rate was 8.5%. Interest
on amounts amortized over a fixed number of years
remains at the fixed rate in effect at the time the
payment schedule was established. The State’s contri-
bution to the System for years ended March 31, 1999,
1998, and 1997 were $136 million, $288 million, and
$271 million, respectively, which equaled 100% of the
required contributions for each respective year.

As aresult of the enactment of Chapter 62, Laws of
1989, employer contributions due from other than the
State for the fiscal years ended March 31, 1989 and
1988, are to be amortized over 17 years, with the initial
payment paid December 15, 1989. The net balance of
the deferred contributions is approximately $48
million. In addition, the receivable for the incentive
program is $154 million and $30 million for the Section
803 costs. Annual bills for employer contributions
accrue interest at the actuarial rate applicable during
the year. For fiscal year ended March 31, 1999, the rate
was 8.5%. Interest on amounts amortized over a fixed
number of years remains at the fixed rate in effect at the
time the payment schedule was established.
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STATEMENT OF PLAN NET ASSETS
March 31, 1999
(Amounts in thousands)

Assets:
Investments:

Short-term investments . ............... it
Governmentbonds . ........ .
Corporate bonds . ... ...
Domestic StOCKS ... .o
International stocks . ....... .. ...
Alternative investments . ........... .. .
Real property owned .. ... ... ...
Mortgage [0ans . . ... ...

Total investments ............. i

Securities lending collateral, invested . ........... ... ... .. ... ...
Forward foreign exchange contracts . .. .......... .. .. ... ... ....
Receivables . ... ... . .
Other assets . ........ ...t

Total @SSetS ...

Liabilities:

Securities lending collateral, due to borrowers . ...................
Forward foreign exchange contracts . .. ............ .. ... ........
Investment purchases . ........... ... . i
Benefits payable ........ .. .. ..
Other liabilities . ........ ... .

Total liabilities . ........ ..
Net assets held in trust for pension benefits . ..................

EMPLOYER ACCOUNTING

The pension contribution expenditure reported in the
Governmental Funds includes $139 million relating to
employee services rendered during the year, retire-
ment incentives and certain benefit enhancements.
Pension contributions payable reported in the General
Fund includes $65 million for the retirement incen-
tive programs and $5 million related to certain benefit

Employees’ Police & Fire
Retirement Retirement
System System Total

............ $ 2143541 $ 398,282 $ 2,541,823

............ 21,004,365 3,902,727 24,907,092
............ 7,927,773 1,473,024 9,400,797
............ 47,463,686 8,819,015 56,282,701
............ 8,530,145 1,584,948 10,115,093
............ 2,664,704 495,116 3,159,820
............ 2,607,374 484,465 3,091,839
............ 1,272,997 236,530 1,509,527
............ 93,614,585 17,394,107 111,008,692
............ 5,804,150 1,078,443 6,882,593
............ 1,491,102 277,055 1,768,157
............ 2,027,002 200,307 2,227,309
............ 6,419 1,193 7,612
............ 102,943,258 18,951,105 121,894,363
............ 5,804,150 1,078,443 6,882,593
............ 1,492,410 277,298 1,769,708
............ 240,985 44,776 285,761
............ 76,687 7,205 83,892
............ 132,120 17,147 149,267
............ 7,746,352 1,424,869 9,171,221

............ $ 95,196,906 $ 17,526,236 $ 112,723,142

enhancements. In addition, $140 million of the pension
incentive programs, and $2 million of Section 803 costs
are reported in the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group. Liabilities reported in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group for the pension
incentive programs and Section 803 costs decreased
$28 million and $9 million, respectively.
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Component Units—Public Benefit Corporations

Component Units—Public Benefit Corporations (Cor-
porations) (as defined in Note 1) are legally separate
entities that are not operating departments of the State.
The Corporations are managed independently, outside
the appropriated budget process, and their powers
generally are vested in a governing board. Corpora-
tions are established for a variety of purposes for the
benefit of the State’s citizenry such as economic devel-
opment, financing and public transportation. They are
not subject to State constitutional restrictions on the
incurrence of debt, which apply to the State itself, and
may issue bonds and notes within legislatively autho-
rized amounts.

Corporations are generally supported by revenues
derived from their activities, although the State has pro-
vided financial assistance, in some cases of a recurring
nature, to certain corporations for operating and other
expenses. Financial assistance in the form of appropriated
loans, contributed capital or operating subsidies for
certain corporations, principally the Roswell Park Cancer
Institute, the Metropolitan Transportation Authority,
and the Urban Development Corporation was provided
in the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999 and such assis-
tance is expected to be required in future years. Accord-
ingly, the fiscal condition of the State is related to the
fiscal stability of public benefit corporations.

The amounts presented in the accompanying
general purpose financial statements for the Corpora-
tions include the following entities for the fiscal years
indicated:

Entity Fiscal Year-End

Aggregate TrustFund ................. December 31, 1998
Agriculture and New York State

Horse Breeding Development

Fund Corporation ................... December 31, 1998
Battery Park City Authority .............. October 31, 1998
Capital District Transportation Authority . . .. March 31, 1999
Central New York Regional

Transportation Authority . ............. March 31, 1999
Dormitory Authority of the State

of NewYork ....................... March 31, 1999
Health Research, Inc. .................. March 31, 1999
Homeless Housing and

Assistance Corporation .............. March 31, 1999
Housing Trust Fund Corporation ......... March 31, 1999
Hudson River-Black River

Regulating District . ................. June 30, 1998
Industrial Exhibit Authority .............. March 31, 1999
Long Island Power Authority . ........... December 31, 1998
Metropolitan Transportation Authority . . ... December 31, 1998

MTA Excess Loss Trust Fund .. ........ December 31, 1998

Entity
Manhattan and Bronx Surface

Transit Operating Authority . .......

Metro-North Commuter Railroad

company ...
Metropolitan Suburban Bus Authority . . .
New York City Transit Authority .......

Staten Island Rapid Transit

Operating Authority ..............
The Long Island Rail Road Company . ..

Triborough Bridge and Tunnel

Authority ........ ... .
Municipal Bond Bank Agency . ..........
Natural Heritage Trust ................

Nelson A. Rockefeller Empire State

Plaza Performing Arts Center . .......

New York City Convention Center

Operating Corporation ..............

New York State Affordable

Housing Corporation ...............
New York State Bridge Authority ........

New York State Energy Research

and Development Authority ..........

New York State Environmental

Facilities Corporation . ..............

New York State Higher Education

Services Corporation ...............
New York State Housing Finance Agency . .

New York State Job Development

Authority ...... ... . .

New York State Olympic Regional

Development Authority .. ............
New York State Project Finance Agency . . .

New York State Science and

Technology Foundation .............
New York State Theatre Institute ........

New York State Thoroughbred
Breeding and Development

Fund Corporation ....................

New York State Thoroughbred Racing

Capital Investment Fund . ...........
New York State Thruway Authority . ... ...
Niagara Frontier Transportation Authority . .
Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority . . ..
Port of Oswego Authority ..............
Power Authority of the State of New York ..

Research Foundation for Mental

Hygiene, Inc. .....................

Rochester-Genesee Regional

Transportation Authority . ............
Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation . . .
Roswell Park Cancer Institute ..........
State Insurance Fund . .. ..............
State of New York Mortgage Agency . . ...
Urban Development Corporation ... .....

Fiscal Year-End

December 31, 1998

December 31, 1998
December 31, 1998
December 31, 1998

December 31, 1998
December 31, 1998

December 31, 1998
October 31, 1998
March 31, 1999

March 31, 1999
March 31, 1999

March 31, 1999
December 31, 1998

March 31, 1999
March 31, 1999

March 31, 1998
October 31, 1998

March 31, 1999

March 31, 1999
October 31, 1998

March 31, 1999
March 31, 1999

December 31, 1997

December 31, 1997
December 31, 1998
March 31, 1999
March 31, 1999
March 31, 1999
December 31, 1998

March 31, 1999

March 31, 1998
March 31, 1999
March 31, 1999
December 31, 1998
October 31, 1998
March 31, 1999
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Financial Information

Substantially all of the financial data was derived from
audited annual financial statements and summarized
into the accompanying format. The Corporations follow
the accrual basis of accounting. A few of the individual
component units, primarily, the State Insurance Fund,
do not fully conform to the accrual basis; however, the
impact of these variances is not material to the Cor-
porations in total. Nine of the forty-two entities pre-
sented comprise 88% of the combined assets and 92%
of the combined operating revenues (before elimina-
tions). Retained earnings at the beginning of the year
has been increased to reflect a $169 million restate-
ment. This restatement is due to accounting changes
implemented by certain of the corporations to conform
to the Governmental Accounting Board’s Statement
No. 31 which requires investments to be reported at
fair value. The remaining portion of this note contains
a brief description of the operations of the nine largest
entities followed by a presentation of their accounts
(amounts in thousands). Additional information about
each of the Corporations can be obtained by contacting
the Corporations directly and requesting a copy of
their annual financial reports.

Certain Corporations issue Revenue Bonds for
independent third-party entities to provide funding
for the projects of those third-parties. These bonds
which are considered conduit debt are secured by pay-
ments made by the third-party entities and in some
cases certain other pledged funds. These bonds do not
constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the
corporations or the State. The Dormitory Authority,
the Environmental Facilities Corporation (EFC) and
the Energy Research and Development Authority
(ERDA) have issued conduit debt and have elected dif-
ferent, but permissible, methods of accounting for it
under generally accepted accounting principles. The
Dormitory Authority has elected to report conduit debt
and related assets on its balance sheet. At March 31,
1999 the liability for such debt, the related assets and
equity totaled $15,732 million, $16,301 million, and
$569 million, respectively. At March 31, 1999 EFC’s
balance sheet did not include $406 million in bonds it
issued for certain private companies and $334 million
in bonds it issued for the State, the latter of which is
included in the State’s General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group. ERDA has issued conduit debt for par-
ticipating gas and electric companies and other third
party entities, the principal of which totaled approxi-
mately $4.0 billion at March 31, 1999, which is not
included on ERDA’s balance sheet.

Power Authority

The Power Authority of the State of New York (Author-
ity) was created in 1931 to help provide a continuous
adequate supply of dependable electric power and
energy to the people of the State. The Authority gen-
erates, transmits, and sells electric power and energy
principally at wholesale to various customers includ-
ing private and municipal utilities.

Two of the Authority’s largest facilities are the
Niagara Power Project at Lewiston and the St. Lawrence-
Franklin D. Roosevelt Power Project at Massena. These
hydroelectric facilities produced net power generation
during calendar 1998 of 17 billion kilowatt-hours and 7
billion kilowatt-hours, respectively. The Authority also
operates two nuclear powered facilities: the James A.
FitzPatrick Nuclear Power Plant at Scriba and the Indian
Point 3 Nuclear Power Plant at Buchanan.

Thruway Authority

The New York State Thruway Authority (Authority)
was created as a public benefit corporation by the Leg-
islature in 1950 with powers to construct, operate and
maintain a Thruway system. The Authority has also
been authorized by the Legislature to act as a financing
agent for issuing Emergency Highway Reconditioning
and Preservation (EHR) Bonds and Emergency
Highway Construction and Reconstruction (EHC)
Bonds to finance improvements to State highways. In
1991, the Legislature empowered the Authority to issue
Local Highway and Bridge Service Contract (LHB)
Bonds to provide funds to municipalities throughout
the State for qualifying capital expenditures under
State programs. The Authority has also issued Cross
Westchester Expressway Special Obligation Bonds to
fund the Authority’s March 1991 purchase of Inter-
state 287 from the State. In August 1992, the State leg-
islature created the New York State Canal Corporation
(NYSCC) as a subsidiary corporation of the Authority
to accept jurisdiction and control over the State Canal
System from the State. In 1993, the Legislature autho-
rized the Authority to issue Highway and Bridge Trust
Fund Bonds (HBTF) to reimburse the State for expen-
ditures made by the State’s Department of Trans-
portation in connection with the State’s multi-year
Highway and Bridge Capital Program.

In the financial information presented for the
Public Benefit Corporations, the special bond pro-
grams (EHR, EHC, LHB, and HBTF) are reported in
the columns headed “Other Entities” and include $4.5
billion in bonds which are reported in the State’s
General Long-Term Obligation Account Group.
Columns headed “Thruway Authority” reflect the oper-
ations of the Thruway system and the NYSCC.
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Metropolitan Transportation Authority

The Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Authority)
was created to continue, develop and improve public
transportation and to develop and implement a unified
public transportation policy in the New York metro-
politan area. The accounts presented as the Authority
are the combined accounts of the nine subsidiaries.

The Authority, excluding TBTA, has ongoing
capital programs, subject to the approval of the New
York State Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Capital Review Board (CPRB), designed to improve
public transportation in the New York metropolitan
area. In November 1995, the MTA Board approved a
proposed 1995-1999 Capital Program totaling approx-
imately $12.2 billion. In September 1996, the Governor
signed legislation to increase the current bonding
authority for capital projects and approved additional
changes to the provisions governing capital programs.
In July 1997, the Authority received CPRB approval of
its 1995-1999 Capital Program in the revised amount of
$12.4 billion. During February 1999, the MTA Board
amended the 1995-1999 Capital Program, raising the
amount to $12.6 billion. These amendments have been
approved by the CPRB.

In November 1995, the MTA Board approved a
1995-1999 Capital Program for TBTA totaling $665
million which was increased in December 1997 to $669
million. This plan includes the last two years of the
1992-1996 Capital Program and provides funding for
three additional years. In February 1999, this amount
was increased to $670 million. The plan does not
require the approval of the CPRB. At December 31,
1998, authorized funding for the TBTA 1992-1999
capital programs totaled $1.1 billion.

Dormitory Authority

The Dormitory Authority (Authority) is a public benefit
corporation established in 1944. The Authority’s
purpose is to finance, design, construct, purchase,
reconstruct and/or rehabilitate buildings, (projects)
for use by educational and other not-for-profit institu-
tions (institutions) located within the State, certain
State agencies, and cities and counties with respect to
court facilities. The Authority is also authorized to
make, finance, and purchase loans related to students
enrolled at participating institutions of higher educa-
tion in the State and finance the purchase of equip-
ment and various short-term capital projects.

The Authority’s outstanding bonds and notes of
$28.0 billion consist mainly of debt issued for health
care facilities ($9.6 billion), independent institutions
($4.2 billion), State University projects ($4.6 billion),
City University projects ($3.4 billion) and New York
State Agency projects ($5.1 billion). The remaining
debt was issued for projects for municipal facilities.

The Authority adopted GASB Statement 31 as of
March 31, 1999. The effect of adopting the provisions
of this statement required the Authority to restate its
fund equity balance from $840.1 million to $907.5
million at March 31, 1998 for an increase of $67.4
million.

Long Island Power Authority

The Long Island Power Authority (Authority) was estab-
lished as a corporate municipal instrumentality of the
State. On May 28, 1998, the LIPA Acquisition Corpo-
ration, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Authority, was
merged with and into the Long Island Lighting
Company (LILCO) pursuant to an Agreement and
Plan of Merger dated as of June 26, 1997. The Author-
ity and its subsidiaries conduct the electric transmis-
sion and distribution business in Nassau and Suffolk
counties which covers a service area of approximately
1,230 square miles and a population of approximately
2.75 million persons.

The Authority financed the cost of the merger and
the refinancing of certain of the LILCO’s outstanding
debt by the issuance of $6.73 billion aggregate princi-
pal amount of Electric System General Revenue Bonds
and Electric System Subordinated Revenue Bonds. In
addition, the Authority assumed $1.19 billion of
LILCO’s General and Refunding Bonds which were
defeased immediately upon the closing of the merger.
The excess of the acquisition costs over the fair value of
net assets acquired ($4.0 billion) has been reported as
an “other asset,” which is being amortized over a 35
year period.

Urban Development Corporation

The New York State Urban Development Corporation
(UDC) was established by legislative act in 1968 as a
corporate governmental agency of the State. UDC now
conducts business as the Empire State Development
Corporation. UDC is engaged in three principal activ-
ities: Special projects financed by revenue bonds, eco-
nomic development projects and real estate projects
financed by general and corporate purpose bonds. A
brief description of these activities follows:

UDC issues special project revenue bonds, the pro-
ceeds of which are primarily used to construct correc-
tional facilities for the State, to refinance State office
facilities or to construct technology facilities for uni-
versities located within the State, to finance construc-
tion and rehabilitation of youth facilities, and to
construct or improve various sports facilities. Under
the related agreements, UDC is reimbursed by the State
in amounts sufficient to amortize the debt service on
the bonds.
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UDC’s efforts in economic development projects
are funded by State appropriations and are primarily
directed at several activities involving civic, commer-
cial, high technology and industrial development within
the State. UDC also provides financial assistance, includ-
ing low cost project financing in the form of loans,
loan guarantees and interest subsidy grants; planning
and feasibility studies; and technical assistance in man-
agement, financing and design of a project.

Real estate projects financed by general and cor-
porate purpose bonds are primarily in large-scale devel-
opment of housing for low, moderate and middle
income persons and families, financing nonresiden-
tial, commercial, civic and industrial properties and in
development of new communities. Since the mid-1970’s
UDC activity in this area has been limited to the mon-
itoring and loan servicing of existing projects.

State Insurance Fund

The State Insurance Fund (Fund) is comprised of the
Workers” Compensation Fund and the Disability Ben-
efits Fund and is primarily engaged in providing
workers’ compensation and disability benefit insur-
ance for employers in the State of New York.

Pursuant to various State laws, the Fund has trans-
ferred approximately $1.3 billion to the State’s General
and Capital Projects Funds through December 31,
1998. The statutes under which these transfers were
made require that the State appropriate amounts annu-
ally for the potential repayment of the transfers. Such
repayment is required only to maintain the solvency, as
defined, of the Workers” Compensation Fund.

These transactions have been recorded as operat-
ing transfers by the State. However, if the entire receiv-
able and related equity had been eliminated from the
State Insurance Fund’s financial statements, a deficit of
approximately $461 million would have resulted. Since
the State’s Governmental Funds are responsible for
the Fund’s solvency, the receivable and equity have
been eliminated only to the extent that fund equity is
reduced to zero and a liability of $461 million has been
recorded in the State’s General Long-Term Obliga-
tions Account Group (see Note 12).

State of New York Mortgage Agency

The State of New York Mortgage Agency (Agency)
makes mortgages available to first-time home buyers
through its Forward Commitment Home Ownership
Programs and provides mortgage insurance for quali-
fying real property loans through its Mortgage Insur-
ance Program. To accomplish this purpose, the Agency
issues tax-exempt mortgage revenue bonds for direct
issuance of forward commitments for new mortgage
loans through participating financial institutions.

By statute, all costs of providing mortgage insur-
ance are recovered from a state mortgage recording
tax surcharge, which is a dedicated tax revenue stream
received directly by the Agency.

The Agency provides certain financial guarantees
that are not fully recognized in the financial statements.
As of October 31, 1997, the Agency had issued guar-
antees of approximately $1.5 billion, of which 20% has
been provided as part of the fund balance, for poten-
tial claims. When an insured mortgage is in default,
the insured value is established as a liability reserve.

The Agency changed its method of recording
investments from the lower of cost or fair value to fair
value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31 as
of October 31, 1998. The effect of adopting the provi-
sions of this statement required the Agency to restate its
beginning equity balance for the 1998 fiscal year by an
increase of $43 million.

Environmental Facilities Corporation

The New York State Environmental Facilities Corpo-
ration (EFC) is a public benefit corporation, formed
pursuant to the New York Environmental Facilities Cor-
poration Act, that promotes environmental quality by
providing low-cost capital and expert technical assis-
tance to municipalities, state agencies and businesses for
environmental projects throughout New York State.
Its purpose is to help public and private entities comply
with federal and state environmental requirements.
EFC s governed by a board of directors which consists
of seven members.

The services offered by EFC include providing low-
cost capital for both water quality protection and water
supply projects through the Clean Water and Drink-
ing Water State Revolving Funds; assisting municipali-
ties, businesses, and State agencies to understand and
comply with environmental laws and regulations
through the Technical Advisory Services Program
including protecting the New York City Watershed and
helping small businesses comply with air pollution stan-
dards; and providing low-cost capital and other finan-
cial assistance to New York businesses for environmental
protection projects through the Industrial Finance and
Financial Assistance to Business programs.

Eliminations

Eliminations are made primarily to avoid duplicate
reporting. As explained in Note 10, the State services a
significant portion of the bonds and notes payable of
certain Corporations. Since this liability is reported in
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group
and the College and University Funds, an equivalent
amount ($24.7 billion) of bonds payable and related
assets is eliminated as is the applicable financing
income and interest expense of $983 million, and oper-
ating transfers from the primary government and inter-
est expenses of $168 million. Another elimination ($85
million) is to delete a receivable and payable between
the Urban Development Corporation and the Project
Finance Agency.
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Metropolitan Long Island Urban
Power Thruway Transportation Dormitory Power Development
Authority Authority Authority Authority Authority Corporation
ASSETS:
Cashandinvestments .. ............oviririniennn.. $ 1,318,705 $ 335,845 $ 5573,161 $ 7,436,832 $ 712,236 $ 880,156
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:
Loansandleases ................ciiiiiiiiia. — — — 21,868,735 — 4,655,155
Other ... 152,505 59,188 2,260,728 582,299 207,671 21,028
Fixedassets ..............iiiiiiiiiii 3,308,236 2,856,991 20,571,457 29,212 2,072,304 36,066
Other assets . ...........ouiuiiiiiiniiinanaan. 398,279 12,904 1,479,888 — 5,198,565 54,781
Total @SSets . ... ... $ 5177725 $ 3,264,928 $ 29,885234 $ 29,917,078 $ 8,190,776 $ 5,647,186
LIABILITIES:
Accrued liabilities ............ ... . oo $ 238326 $ 63,186 $ 1436458 $ 990,713  $ 300,874 $ 339,014
Pension contributions payable ....................... — — 339,274 — — —
Accounts payable ............ ... — — 429,349 — — —
Deferredrevenues . .............c.oiiiiiiin. 177,347 19,800 268,103 37,766 — 14,671
Notes payable . ....... ... 1,105,773 — — — — 84,681
Bonds payable . . .. 1,263,455 1,211,921 11,799,042 27,982,081 7,955,898 4,730,829
Other long-term liabilities . .......................... 747,836 — 1,665,459 — 34,059 440,920
Total liabilities .......... .. ... . it 3,632,737 1,294,907 15,937,685 29,010,560 8,290,831 5,610,115
EQUITY (DEFICIT):
Contributed capital .......... ... .. . — — 9,331,608 — — —
Retained earnings . . ... 1,644,988 1,970,021 4,615,941 906,518 (100,055) 37,071
Total equity (deficit) ............ ... .. ....... 1,644,988 1,970,021 13,947,549 906,518 (100,055) 37,071
Total liabilities and equity (deficit) ............. $ 5177,725 $ 3,264,928 $ 29,885234 $ 29,917,078 $ 8,190,776 $ 5,647,186
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services . ... . $ 1,483939 $ 373931 $ 3,627,782 $ 62,038 $ 1,377,605 $ —
Financingincome .............. . i — — — 1,333,099 — 75,642
Investmentearnings . ............ ..o — — — 184,077 — 44,310
Miscellaneous . ........... i 13,246 20,160 104,883 100,987 — 10,936
Total operating revenues ..................... 1,497,185 394,091 3,732,665 1,680,201 1,377,605 130,888
OPERATING EXPENSES:
OPErations . . . ..ottt 1,119,766 235,594 4,524,014 272,480 1,201,465 299,180
Depreciation and amortization ....................... 248,421 — 781,495 2,777 53,256 2,204
Interest ... ... — — — 1,399,117 — 267,121
Total operating eXpenses . .................... 1,368,187 235,594 5,305,509 1,674,374 1,254,721 568,505
Operating income (I0SS) . . ... vvvveeeennn .. 128,998 158,497 (1,572,844) 5,827 122,884 (437,617)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Non-State subsidiesand grants . ..................... — 41,123 636,294 — — 27,066
Interestrevenues . ............ ... .. 99,690 23,501 60,476 — 35,021 —
INterest EXPENSES . .. ...t (145,025) (68,308) (381,485) — (233,785) —
Other, Net . . ..ottt (2,209) (39,486) 1,348 — (978) —
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) ........ (47,544) (43,170) 316,633 — (199,742) 27,066
Income (loss) before operating transfers ........ 81,454 115,327 (1,256,211) 5,827 (76,858) (410,551)
Operating transfers from primary government ........... — — 1,249,180 — — 452,072
Operating transfers to primary government ............. — — — (6,770) — —
Income (loss) before extraordinary items .......... 81,454 115,327 (7,031) (943) (76,858) 41,521
Extraordinary item—refinancing charges ............... (18,487) — — — — —
Netincome (I0SS) ......... ... 62,967 115,327 (7,031) (943) (76,858) 41,521
Depreciation charged to contributed capital ............. — — 533,924 — — —
Increase (decrease) in retained earnings ............ 62,967 115,327 526,893 (943) (76,858) 41,521
Retained earnings (deficit) at beginning of year,
asrestated . ... .. 1,582,021 1,854,694 4,089,048 907,461 (23,197) (4,450)
Retained earnings (deficit) atend ofyear .............. $ 1644988 $ 1,970,021 $ 4,615941 $ 906,518 $ (100,055) $ 37,071

(Continued)
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ASSETS:
Cashandinvestments .. .......... .. ...,
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:
Loansandleases ...............c.. i
Other ...
Fixed assets .. ...t
Other assets . ....... ...

Total @SSets . ... ...

LIABILITIES:
Accrued liabilities ........... .. ... oo
Pension contributions payable .......................
Accountspayable ............. ... i
Deferredrevenues ................. .. ... ...
Notespayable ......... ... ... ... ... ... ...
Bondspayable . ......... ... .
Other long-term liabilities . .......... ... .. .. ........

Total liabilities . .......... ... . i

EQUITY (DEFICIT):
Contributed capital .......... ... . i
Retainedearnings . ............... ..

Total equity (deficit) .......... ... ... .. .....
Total liabilities and equity (deficit) .............

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services . ...,
Financingincome ............ ... . i
Investmentearnings . ...............iiiiii...
Miscellaneous . ....... ...

Total operating revenues .....................

OPERATING EXPENSES:
OPErationsS . . . ..ttt
Depreciation and amortization .......................
INterest ... ..o

Total operating eXpenses .....................
Operating income (I0SS) .. .. ...

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Non-State subsidiesand grants . .....................
Interestrevenues .............. ...
Interest eXpenses . ...t
Other, net . . ...

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) ..........

Income (loss) before operating transfers .........
Operating transfers from primary government ...........
Operating transfers to primary government . ............

Income (loss) before extraordinary items . .........
Extraordinary item—refinancing charges ...............

Netincome (I0SS) ...,
Depreciation charged to contributed capital .............

Increase (decrease) in retained earnings . ............
Retained earnings (deficit) at beginning of year,
asrestated . ...

Retained earnings (deficit)atend of year ..............

State SONY Environmental Total Public
Insurance Mortgage Facilities Other Benefit

Fund Agency Corporation Entities Eliminations Corporations
7,130,237 $ 1,468,079 $ 1,829,002 $ 3,001,497 $ (3,472,971) $ 26,212,779
— 3,465,096 3,571,667 4,242,064 (15,254,818) 22,547,899
687,379 31,523 78,446 4,323,774 (5,926,430) 2,478,111
9,482 — 39 1,718,847 (273,285) 30,329,349
20,304 64,835 — 106,140 (403) 7,335,293
7,847,402 $ 5,029,533 $ 5,479,154 $ 13,392,322 $ (24,927,907) $ 88,903,431
7,654,995 $ 162,911 $ 127,953 % 803,046 $ (52,784) $ 12,064,692
— — — 122 — 339,396
— — — 95,754 (1,615) 523,488
192,407 — — 337,266 (9,838) 1,037,522
— — — 5,155 (84,681) 1,110,928
— 4,030,019 3,421,079 10,160,842 (24,713,676) 47,841,490
— — 7,566 115,435 (57,500) 2,953,775
7,847,402 4,192,930 3,556,598 11,517,620 (24,920,094) 65,871,291
— — 1,799,752 724,680 — 11,856,040
— 836,603 122,804 1,150,022 (7,813) 11,176,100
— 836,603 1,922,556 1,874,702 (7,813) 23,032,140
7,847,402 $ 5,029,533 $ 5,479,154 $ 13,392,322 $ (24,927,907) $ 88,903,431
985,835 $ — $ 3,369 $ 286,093 $ — $ 8,200,592
— 257,259 187,308 401,455 (982,721) 1,272,042
566,583 71,912 97,567 63,237 — 1,027,686
35,452 114,781 40 181,863 (2,291) 580,057
1,587,870 443,952 288,284 932,648 (985,012) 11,080,377
1,502,973 72,886 103,307 1,140,296 (36,689) 10,435,272
282 2,367 13 82,983 (41) 1,173,757

— 251,133 182,453 272,032 (982,721) 1,389,135
1,503,255 326,386 285,773 1,495,311 (1,019,451) 12,998,164
84,615 117,566 2,511 (562,663) 34,439 (1,917,787)
— — 4,066 366,778 (34,851) 1,040,476
— — — 37,671 (1,055) 255,304
— — — (53,476) 113,873 (768,206)
(84,615) — — 31,616 — (94,324)
(84,615) — 4,066 382,589 77,967 433,250
— 117,566 6,577 (180,074) 112,406 (1,484,537)
— — 22,171 357,366 (113,350) 1,967,439
— — — (24,395) — (31,165)
— 117,566 28,748 152,897 (944) 451,737
— (6,622) — (6,643) — (31,752)
— 110,944 28,748 146,254 (944) 419,985
— — — 42,998 — 576,922
— 110,944 28,748 189,252 (944) 996,907
— 725,659 94,056 960,770 (6,869) 10,179,193
— $ 836,603 $ 122,804 $ 1,150,022 $ (7,813) $ 11,176,100
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Joint Ventures

A joint venture is an entity that results from a contrac-
tual arrangement and that is owned, operated, or gov-
erned by two or more participants as a separate and
specific activity subject to joint control, in which the
participants retain an ongoing financial interest or an
ongoing financial responsibility. The only material joint
venture in which the State has a financial interest is
the Port Authority of New York and New Jersey (Port
Authority).

The Port Authority is a municipal corporate instru-
mentality of the States of New York and New Jersey
created by compact between the two states in 1921 with
the consent of the Congress of the United States. It is
authorized and directed to plan, develop and operate
terminals and other facilities of transportation and
commerce, and to advance projects in the general fields
of transportation, economic development, and world
trade that contribute to promoting and protecting the
commerce and economy of the Port District, defined in
the compact, which comprises an area of about 1,500
square miles in both states, centering about New York
Harbor.

The Governor of each state appoints six of the
twelve members of the governing Board of Commis-
sioners, subject to confirmation by the respective State
Senate. Each Governor has from time to time exer-
cised the statutory power to veto the actions of the
commissioners from their state.

The commissioners serve six-year overlapping
terms as public officials without compensation. They
establish Port Authority policy, appoint an Executive
Director to implement it, and also appoint a General
Counsel to act as legal advisor to the Board and to the
Executive Director.

The compact envisions the Port Authority as being
financially self-sustaining and, as such, it must obtain
the funds necessary for the construction or acquisi-
tion of facilities upon the basis of its own credit. The
Port Authority has neither the power to pledge the
credit of either state or any municipality nor to levy
taxes or assessments.

Pursuant to an agreement between the Port
Authority and the States, the Fund for Regional Devel-
opment (Fund) was established in 1983 to sublease
certain space, as vacated, held by the State of New York
as tenant. The Port Authority and the States entered
into an agreement on January 1, 1990 providing for
the termination of the agreement creating the Fund. In
consideration of the termination of the Fund, the
Authority has agreed to make a series of payments to
the States over a period of 30 years (see Note 4).

The liabilities of the Port Authority include $5.6
billion of consolidated bonds and notes. Consolidated
bonds and notes are equally and ratably secured by a
pledge of the net revenues of all existing facilities and
any additional facilities which may be financed in whole
or in part through the medium of consolidated bonds
and notes.

The Authority’s Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report is available from the Government and Com-
munity Affairs Department, The Port Authority of New
York and New Jersey, One World Trade Center, New
York, New York, 10048.

Consolidated financial statements of the Port
Authority for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998
disclosed the following (amounts in thousands):

Financial Position

Total @sSets ... $ 13,562,444
Total liabilities ... ........ ... ... ... .. ... (9,377,263)

Netassets ............. ..., $ 4,185,181

Operating Results

Operating revenues . ..................... $ 2,361,202
Operating eXPeNSeS . . . ..o v v v (1,569,258)
Depreciation and amortization . ............. (395,738)
Income fromoperations . .................. 396,206
Net passenger facilities charge revenues . . ... 113,020
Financial income (expense), net ............ (209,724)
Loss on disposition of assets . .. ............ 172)

Netincome ........ ... ... ........ $ 299,330

Changes in Net Assets

Balance, January 1,1998 . ................ $ 3,848,861
Netincome .............. .. ... ... ...... 299,330
Capital funding provided by others .......... 36,990

Balance, December 31,1998 ......... $ 4,185,181
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Schedule of Required Supplementary Information

YEAR 2000 DISCLOSURE
(Unaudited)

New York State is currently addressing year 2000 (Y2K)
data processing compliance issues. The Y2K issue arises
because many computer software programs use a two-
digit date convention to represent the year based on the
assumption that the first two digits will be “19”. There-
fore, such programs may interpret the year 2000 as the
year 1900. Computer programs have to be adjusted to
recognize the difference between those two years or
the programs may fail or create errors. Finally, the Y2K
issue could adversely affect any system or electronic
equipment containing embedded computer chips that
rely on date recognition features.

In 1996, the State created the Office for Technol-
ogy (OFT) to help address statewide technology issues,
including the Y2K issue. OFT has identified approxi-
mately 380 State mission-critical and high-priority com-
puter applications that need to be Y2K compliant.
Mission-critical computer applications are those which
impact the health, safety and welfare of the State and its
citizens, and for which failure to be in Y2K compliance
could have a significant adverse impact upon State ser-
vices. High-priority computer applications are those
that are critical for a State agency to fulfill its mission
and deliver services, but for which there are manual
alternatives.

In April 1999 the State Comptroller released an
audit on the State’s Y2K compliance. The audit, which
reviewed the State’s Y2K compliance activities through
October 1998, found that the State had made progress
in achieving Y2K compliance, but needed to improve its
activities in several areas, including data interchanges
and contingency planning.

OFT is monitoring Y2K compliance, providing
assistance and assigning resources to accelerate com-
pliance for mission critical and high priority computer
applications. As of March 31, 1999, the awareness and
assessment stages have been completed for all mission-
critical and high priority applications. This means that
project plans have been completed; a budget has been
established; and, identification of the systems and com-
ponents for which Y2K work is needed has occurred.
The remediation stage, which refers to the phase in
which changes are made to correct the Y2K problem,
has been completed for 97 percent of the mission crit-
ical applications and 80 percent of the high priority
applications. The State has also procured independent

validation and verification services from a qualified
vendor to perform an automated review of corrected
programming code and a testing process review for all
mission critical applications. As of March 31, 1999, the
State has budgeted $144 million to address remaining
Y2K issues and the work is expected to be completed by
December 31, 1999. In addition, State agencies have
committed additional resources from their operating
budgets to address remaining Y2K issues.

The State is also addressing a number of other
issues related to bringing its systems into compliance
including: testing throughout 1999 of over 800 data
exchange interfaces with federal, State, local and private
data partners; completion of an inventory of priority
equipment and systems that may depend on embed-
ded chips and may therefore need remediation in 1999;
and contacting critical vendors and supply partners to
obtain Y2K compliance status information and assur-
ances. Since problems could be identified during the
compliance testing phase that could produce compli-
ance delays, State agencies were required to complete
contingency plans for mission critical and high prior-
ity systems and core business processes by March 31,
1999. OFT is currently reviewing the status of agency
contingency planning. The agency plans are being
tested and integrated into the State Emergency
Response Plan coordinated by the State Emergency
Management Office. In addition, the State Public
Service Commission ordered all State-regulated utilities
to complete Y2K activities for mission-critical systems,
including contingency plans, by July 1, 1999 and is
reviewing the utilities” monthly progress reports. The
State has also been working with local governments
since December 1996 to raise awareness, promote
action and provide assistance with Y2K compliance.

While the State is taking what it believes to be
appropriate action to address Y2K compliance, there
can be no guarantee that all of the State’s systems and
equipment will be Y2K compliant and that there will not
be an adverse impact upon State operations or finances
as a result. Since Y2K compliance by outside parties is
beyond the State’s control to remediate, the failure of
outside parties to achieve Y2K compliance could have
an adverse impact on State operations or finances as
well. If significant adverse impacts were to occur, the
State Emergency Response Plan would be activated.
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Combining
Financial Statements
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General Fund

The General Fund is the most significant of the State’s funds. Most tax revenues and
certain miscellaneous revenues are recorded in the General Fund.

The General Fund is divided into several accounts. Expenditures in the form of
aid to local governments for their general purposes (e.g., State-local revenue
sharing) and to school districts and municipalities for certain specific purposes
(e.g., education and social services) are made from the Local Assistance account.
These payments, often based on specific legislated formulas, are nevertheless
limited under the State Constitution to appropriations in force. Expenditures
from the Local Assistance account normally comprise approximately 60% of
General Fund expenditures.

The expenditures of operating the departments of the Executive Branch, the
Legislature and the Judiciary, as well as expenditures for general state charges such
as contributions to employee retirement systems, are paid primarily from the State
Purposes account and normally comprise approximately 40% of the General Fund
expenditures.
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General Fund —

Combining Schedule of Balance Sheet Accounts

March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Tax
Local State Stabilization Contingency
Assistance Purposes Reserve Reserve
ASSETS:
Cashandinvestments . ......... ... i, $ 1,233 $ 1,398,432 472,935 106,790
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:
TAXES . vttt e — 5,401,998 — —
Other ... 6,391 545,117 — —
Duefromotherfunds ........ ... .. .. . 2,004 1,073,795 — —
Other @SSelS ...t 684,574 88,413 — —
Total @SSetS . ... $ 694,202 $ 8,507,755 472,935 106,790
LIABILITIES:
Payable to local governments . ......... ... ... . i $ 1,447,740 $ 188,828 — —
Taxrefunds payable . ........ .. .. — 3,415,747 — —
Accrued liabilities . . ... e 1,465,480 658,148 — —
Pension contributions payable ........ .. ... ... i — 70,221 — —
Accounts payable . ........ ... — 214,627 — —
Duetootherfunds ........ ... it 6,963 261,974 — —
Deferred reVENUES . . . ..ot oo 4,029 785,705 — —
Otherliabilities . . ... — 163,125 — —
Total liabilities . ...... ... 2,924,212 5,758,375 — —
EQUITY (DEFICIT):
Fund balances (deficits):
Reserved for:
Encumbrances . . ... ... ... 126,439 101,646 — —
Tax stabilization . ......... ... . — — 472,935 —
Other specified purposes . ..., 1,063 1,557 — 106,790
UNreserved ... ... (2,357,512) 2,646,177 — —
Total equity (deficit) ......... ... i (2,230,010) 2,749,380 472,935 106,790
Total liabilities and equity (deficit) ...................... $ 694,202 $ 8,507,755 472,935 106,790
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Community Earmarked Totals
Projects Revenue Miscellaneous Eliminations 1999 1998
$ 312,485 $ 516,805 $ 30,986 $ — $ 2,839,666 $ 2,543,714
— — — — 5,401,998 4,885,911
— 34,087 10,359 — 595,954 645,097
— 14,531 37,349 (94,207) 1,033,472 952,893
397 860 7 — 774,251 890,770
$ 312,882 $ 566,283 $ 78,701  $ (94,207) $ 10,645,341 $ 9,918,385
$ 12,734 % 17,140 $ — $ — $ 1,666,442 $ 1,928,103
— — — — 3,415,747 3,313,652
24 29,495 4,313 — 2,157,460 2,286,494
— — — — 70,221 67,138
626 43,833 34,301 — 293,387 240,156
382 99,555 75,271 (94,207) 349,938 397,464
— 93,357 219 — 883,310 952,011
— — — — 163,125 166,078
13,766 283,380 114,104 (94,207) 8,999,630 9,351,096
53,313 57,988 24,540 — 363,926 324,609
— — — — 472,935 399,973
245,803 3,005 16,962 — 375,180 115,054
— 221,910 (76,905) — 433,670 (272,347)
299,116 282,903 (35,403) — 1,645,711 567,289
$ 312,882 $ 566,283 $ 78,701  $ (94,207) $ 10,645,341 $ 9,918,385




70 o STATE OF NEW YORK

General Fund —

Combining Schedule of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance (Deficit) Accounts

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Tax
Local State Stabilization Contingency
Assistance Purposes Reserve Reserve
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Personal iNCOME . . ...ttt e e $ — $ 20,429,324 $ — $ —
Consumption and USE . ... ..ottt — 7,320,283 — —
BUSINESS ... — 4,851,574 — —
O N — 1,122,395 — —
MisCellaneous . .. ... ... 6,234 1,166,010 — —
Total revenues . ... ... 6,234 34,889,586 — —
EXPENDITURES
Local assistance grants:
SOCIAI SEIVICES . . . .ot 8,687,588 — — —
Education . ... . 12,124,706 — — —
Mental hygiene . ........ . . 873,781 — — —
General PUIPOSE . ..ottt e e e 896,875 — — —
Health and environment .......... .. .. ... .. .. 476,287 — — —
Transportation . .. ... .. .t 443,025 — — —
Criminal JUSLICE . . ..o 257,040 — — —
Miscellaneous .. ... ... . 298,091 — — —
Departmental operations:
Personal service .......... .. ... — 4,175,683 — —
Non-personal ServiCe . . . ... ...t — 1,685,747 — —
Pension contribution . ........ . ... .. — 118,392 — —
Other fringe benefits .. ... ... ... . . . — 1,461,291 — —
Debt service, including payments on financing arrangements . .......... — 20,994 — —
Total expenditures . ...t 24,057,393 7,462,107 — —
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures ................ (24,051,159) 27,427,479 — —
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating transfers from otherfunds . ............ ... ... .. ... .... 24,637,090 2,190,740 72,962 38,577
Operating transfersto otherfunds . . .. ...... .. ... .. .. ... ... .... (739,707) (28,954,167) — —
Operating transfers from public benefit corporations ................ — 13,433 — —
Operating transfers to public benefit corporations .................. (140,113) (31,999) — —
Proceeds from financing arrangements .............. ... .. .. .. .. 316,666 — — —
Net other financing sources (US€S) . ..............c.ouvn.. 24,073,936 (26,781,993) 72,962 38,577
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures and other financinguses .................... 22,777 645,486 72,962 38,577
Fund balances (deficits) at April 1,1998 ... ........ ... ... (2,252,787) 2,103,894 399,973 68,213
Fund balances (deficits) at March 31,1999 ....................... $ (2,230,010) $ 2,749,380 $ 472935 $ 106,790




Community Earmarked Totals

Projects Revenue Miscellaneous Eliminations 1999 1998
— $ — $ — $ — $ 20,429,324 $ 18,695,967
— — — — 7,320,283 7,050,897
— — — — 4,851,574 5,103,233
— — — — 1,122,395 1,049,678
— 1,477,875 433,841 (329,854) 2,754,106 2,608,779
— 1,477,875 433,841 (329,854) 36,477,682 34,508,554
14,795 549,574 — — 9,251,957 9,233,415
46,357 4,091 — — 12,175,154 11,160,909
4,906 34,637 — — 913,324 886,693
13,318 — — — 910,193 581,466
10,085 156,297 — — 642,669 503,728
450 — — — 443,475 415,899
7,143 17,281 — — 281,464 289,632
44,747 5,626 — — 348,464 377,965
787 1,888,823 86,686 — 6,151,979 6,027,114
2,271 626,086 273,274 (329,854) 2,257,524 2,198,094
— — — — 118,392 112,980
— 143,217 45,935 — 1,650,443 1,530,590
— — — — 20,994 21,484
144,859 3,425,632 405,895 (329,854) 35,166,032 33,339,969
(144,859) (1,947,757) 27,946 — 1,311,650 1,168,585
311,040 2,243,497 62,508 (25,270,916) 4,285,498 4,511,293
— (69,415) (87,729) 25,270,916 (4,580,102) (4,317,329)
— 75,234 — — 88,667 93,966
(19,061) (152,784) — — (343,957) (170,746)
— — — — 316,666 276,034
291,979 2,096,532 (25,221) — (233,228) 393,218
147,120 148,775 2,725 — 1,078,422 1,561,803
151,996 134,128 (38,128) — 567,289 (994,514)
$ 299,116 $ 282,903 $ (35,403) $ — $ 1645711 $ 567,289

STATE OF NEW YORK o 71



A _..H'j'

R EG W ey
Bl il
aml o

By an gy WL

] I | .l:-..j

az2f
=il
=
=1

AL
Rl S Gal mdoan

T I R

T U1 -+ T B T R P
T

- ;.':J'r:.'r;u.';.'limr.ita'n‘-';l

Rl il E s i

1 _Gil_KN (LN

I
H |

1 |

-'_-'-|l B LA du mE oy s

b Bl GE) 3 g s wn

il il

il sl
- i
a

:‘i.'il- Eal il sy s g

Limdds
=] ]

-5- ;..h.ﬂu :
BR.AEly
-




Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Federal Funds—to account for federal grants received by the State that are ear-
marked for specific programs. The need to satisfy federal accounting and reporting
requirements dictate that federal grants be accounted for in a number of separate
funds, including the Federal USDA-Food and Nutrition Services Fund, the Federal
Health and Human Services Fund, the Federal Education Fund, the Federal HHS
Block Grant Fund, the Federal Operating Grants Fund, the Unemployment Insurance
Administration Fund and the Federal Job Training Partnership Fund.

Disproportionate Share Medical Assistance Fund—to account for bad debt and char-
ity pool hospital assessments that are earmarked for medical assistance.

Dedicated Mass Transportation Trust Fund—to account for monies that are earmarked
for mass transportation purposes.

State Lottery Fund—to account for lottery revenues that are earmarked for education
assistance to local school districts and the administrative costs of the Division of the Lottery.

ENCON Special Revenue Fund—to account for revenues of the Department of Envi-
ronmental Conservation earmarked for miscellaneous purposes.

Conservation Fund—to account for hunting and fishing license fees and related fines
and penalties that are dedicated to fish and wildlife programs.

Environmental Protection and Oil Spill Compensation Fund—to account for license fees
and penalties that are earmarked for oil spill clean-up costs and claims for damages.

Hazardous Waste Remedial Fund—to account for various assessments, fines and other
fees that are earmarked for hazardous waste site clean-up and site remediation activities.

Mass Transportation Operating Assistance Fund—to account for business and con-
sumption and use taxes that are dedicated for public mass transportation projects.

Clean Air Fund—to account for revenues dedicated to meet the State’s obligations
under the Clean Air Act for controlling stationary and mobile sources of air pollution.

Miscellaneous—to account for various fees, fines, user charges and other miscella-
neous revenues that are earmarked for specific State programs.
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Special Revenue Funds —
Combining Balance Sheet

March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Disproportionate  Dedicated Mass

Share Medical Transportation State Federal
Assistance Trust Lottery USDA-FNS
ASSETS:
Cashandinvestments ............................. $ 27,149 $ 73,429 $ 9,875 $ —
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:
TAXES e — 12,837 — —
Due from Federal government .................... — — — 129,347
Other . ... — — 57,925 87
Due fromotherfunds .......... ... ... ... ... ... ... 29,666 — — 83
Other assets . ...t e — — 6,642 341,451
Total @sSets ... $ 56,815 $ 86,266 $ 74,442 $ 470,968
LIABILITIES:
Payable to local governments . ...................... $ — $ 2,582 $ — $ 92,518
Taxrefundspayable .............. ... ... .. .. .. ... — 825 — —
Accrued liabilities . ........... .. . — — 14,766 696
Accountspayable .......... ... ... i — 2,423 15,558 1,528
Duetootherfunds ............. ... ... . — — — 34,821
Deferredrevenues . ..., — 551 2,566 341,405
Total liabilities . ........ ... ... ... ... .... — 6,381 32,890 470,968
EQUITY:
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances . ............ .. ... ... — 58,209 — 6,714
Other specified purposes ...................... — — — —
unreserved . ... 56,815 21,676 41,552 (6,714)
Totalequity . ... 56,815 79,885 41,552 —

Total liabilities and equity . .................. $ 56,815 $ 86,266 $ 74,442 $ 470,968
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Federal Federal ENCON
Federal Federal DHHS Block Operating Special
DHHS Education Grant Grants Revenue Conservation

— $ — $ — $ — $ 28,299 16,795

3,297,479 38,825 49,796 117,559 — —

— — 598 — 8,331 501
1,755 1,129 7 641 319 735
1,774 300 2,809 — — —

3,301,008 $ 40,254  $ 53,210 $ 118,200 $ 36,949 18,031

529,343 $ 11,305 $ 32,088 % 49,980 $ — —

2,309,645 2,787 1,810 3,643 1,365 1,135
19,774 — 2,594 6,738 1,847 744
442,246 26,162 16,718 54,280 1,946 673
— — — — 7,880 186
3,301,008 40,254 53,210 114,641 13,038 2,738
245,545 5,922 37,978 78,135 5,702 866
(245,545) (5,922) (37,978) (74,576) 18,209 14,427
— — — 3,559 23,911 15,293

3,301,008 $ 40,254 $ 53,210 $ 118,200 $ 36,949 18,031

(Continued)
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Special Reserve Funds —
Combining Balance Sheet (cont’d)

March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Environmental Mass
Protection and Hazardous Transportation
Qil Spill Waste Operating Clean
Compensation Remedial Assistance Air
ASSETS:
Cashandinvestments ............................. $ 3,792 10,184 161,086 13,815
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:
TAXES e — — 37,272 —
Due from Federal government .................... — — — —
Other ... 86,336 4,107 — 2,259
Due fromotherfunds .. ........ .. ... ... .. ... ... .... 19 278 — 68
Otherassets . ... i — — — 33
Total assets ... $ 90,147 14,569 198,358 16,175
LIABILITIES:
Payable to local governments ....................... $ — — 2,189 —
Taxrefundspayable .......... ... ... . ... .. .. .. ... — — 58,579 —
Accrued liabilities .. ........ .. 334 893 143 905
Accountspayable ......... ... .. .. i 3,229 294 113 1,786
Duetootherfunds ............ ... . i, 278 805 1,281 212
Deferredrevenues . ..., 82,586 3,885 207 2,137
Total liabilities .......... ... .. ... ... 86,427 5,877 62,512 5,040
EQUITY:
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances . ........... ... . . . 1,571 322 1,111 3,961
Other specified purposes ...................... — — — —
unreserved . ... 2,149 8,370 134,735 7,174
Total equity .. ... 3,720 8,692 135,846 11,135
Total liabilities and equity ................... $ 90,147 $ 14,569 198,358 16,175
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Unemployment Federal Job
Insurance Training Totals
Administration Partnership Miscellaneous 1999 1998
$ 1,086 $ 275  $ 82,970 $ 428,755  $ 550,520
— — — 50,109 47,379
21,964 182 214 3,655,366 3,621,578
— — 13,138 173,282 201,468
1,398 — 1,428 37,526 14,039
1,464 54 836 355,363 145,616
25912 $ 511 % 98,586 $ 4,700,401 $ 4,580,600
— $ 49 $ 14 3 720,068 $ 969,871
— — — 59,404 44,582
8,542 24 2,090 2,348,778 2,120,831
6,317 307 4,797 68,049 56,707
11,053 131 8,185 598,791 574,156
— — 6 441,409 233,053
25,912 511 15,092 4,236,499 3,999,200
26,402 — 10,103 482,541 231,901
— — 8,500 8,500 8,500
(26,402) — 64,891 (27,139) 340,999
— — 83,494 463,902 581,400

25912 $ 511 % 98,586 $ 4,700,401 $ 4,580,600
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Special Revenue Funds —
Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balances

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Disproportionate  Dedicated Mass

Share Medical Transportation State Federal
Assistance Trust Lottery USDA-FNS
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Personal income taX . ...........coeuuieeunnennn.. $ — $ — — $ —
Consumptionand use ...............ouuininen... — — — —
BUSINESS ... . — 304,440 — —
Federalgrants ............. . i, — — — 2,587,165
Lottery . — — 3,697,631 —
Miscellaneous ........ ... ... 41,123 3,302 158,882 97,358
Total revenues ..., 41,123 307,742 3,856,513 2,684,523
EXPENDITURES:
Local assistance grants:
SOCIal SEIVICES . . .. vt — — — 1,689,119
Education . ... — — 1,529,997 464,707
Mental hygiene . ...... ... ... .. . . i — — — —
Health and environment . ........................ — — — 474,768
Transportation .. ........... . — — — —
Criminal justice . ........... i — — — —
Miscellaneous . ....... ... ... i — — — 16,419
Departmental operations:
Personal service .......... ... .. . .. . ... — — 13,208 12,293
Non-personal service .. ..., — 4,136 2,425,498 21,043
Pension contribution ......... ... . ... ... L — — 812 348
Other fringe benefits .......... ... ... ... .. ... ..., — — 3,666 2,588
Total expenditures .............. ... .. ...... — 4,136 3,973,181 2,681,285
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures .. ... 41,123 303,606 (116,668) 3,238
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating transfers from other funds ................. 625,128 — 87,570 —
Operating transfers to otherfunds . . .. ................ (625,128) — — (3,238)
Operating transfers from public benefit corporations . .. .. — — — —
Operating transfers to public benefit corporations ... .... — (276,701) — —
Net other financing sources (uses) ........... — (276,701) 87,570 (3,238)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other
financing (USES) .. ... i 41,123 26,905 (29,098) —
Fund balances at April 1,1998 . ...................... 15,692 52,980 70,650 —
Fund balances at March 31,1999 .................... $ 56,815 $ 79,885 $ 41552 $ —
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Federal Federal ENCON
Federal Federal DHHS Block Operating Special
DHHS Education Grant Grants Revenue Conservation

— $ —_ $ — $ — $ —_ $ —
18,047,438 777,249 558,882 387,743 — —

— — 177 2,623 46,768 36,743
18,047,438 777,249 559,059 390,366 46,768 36,743
14,835,384 — 296,559 5,620 — —

555,809 691,012 504 11,304 — —

14,033 3,540 98,746 10,479 — —
178,478 — 43,895 — — —

— — — 12,707 — —

— — 21 41,312 — —

71,400 — 59,926 98,631 — —
142,976 33,591 26,133 123,486 28,101 20,313
150,705 20,861 25,349 51,875 20,238 7,655

2,847 2,338 751 3,477 1,213 1,081
21,196 17,406 5,591 25,882 5,471 4,880
15,972,828 768,748 557,475 384,773 55,023 33,929
2,074,610 8,501 1,584 5,593 (8,255) 2,814

— — — — 6,822 —

(2,074,610) (8,501) (1,584) (3,355) (2,500) (1,673)

— — — — 3,625 —

— — — (3,165) — —

(2,074,610) (8,501) (1,584) (6,520) 7,947 (1,673)

— — — (927) (308) 1,141

— — — 4,486 24,219 14,152

— $ —_ $ — $ 3559 % 23911 % 15,293

(Continued)
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Special Revenue Funds —

Combining Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances (cont’d)

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Environmental Mass
Protection and Hazardous Transportation
Qil Spill Waste Operating Clean
Compensation Remedial Assistance Air
REVENUES:
Taxes:
Personal income taX . ...........coeuuieuunnennn.. $ — — $ — $ —
Consumptionand use ...............ouuininen... — — 324,903 —
BUSINESS ... . — — 711,951 —
Federalgrants ............. .. — — — —
Lottery ... — — — —
Miscellaneous .. ...... ... .. 37,579 15,915 9,676 28,511
Total revenues ..., 37,579 15,915 1,046,530 28,511
EXPENDITURES:
Local assistance grants:
SOCIal SEIVICES . . .. vt — — — —
Education .. ... ... ... — — — —
Mental hygiene . ......... .. .. .. . . i — — — —
Health and environment . ........................ — — — —
Transportation . ........ ... .. — — 172,359 —
Criminal justice . ........... i — — — —
Miscellaneous . ....... ... . i — — — —
Departmental operations:
Personal service .......... ... .. . .. . ... 6,386 17,539 2,888 17,634
Non-personal service .. ..., 21,436 1,128 850 10,504
Pension contribution ......... ... . ... . L 338 915 153 951
Other fringe benefits ........ ... .. ... ... .. ... ..., 1,527 4,129 690 4,292
Total expenditures .............. ... .. ...... 29,687 23,711 176,940 33,381
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures .. ... 7,892 (7,796) 869,590 (4,870)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating transfers from other funds ................. 10,500 38,150 — —
Operating transfers to otherfunds . . .................. (18,537) (27,771) — (65)
Operating transfers from public benefit corporations . .. .. — — — —
Operating transfers to public benefit corporations ... .... — — (1,036,540) —
Net other financing sources (uses) ........... (8,037) 10,379 (1,036,540) (65)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other
financing (USES) .. ... i (145) 2,583 (166,950) (4,935)
Fund balances at April 1,1998 . ...................... 3,865 6,109 302,796 16,070
Fund balances at March 31,1999 .................... $ 3,720 $ 8,692 $ 135,846 $ 11,135
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Unemployment Federal Job
Insurance Training Totals
Administration Partnership Miscellaneous Eliminations 1999 1998
— — 582,156 $ — 582,156 $ —

— — — — 324,903 306,630

— — 1 — 1,016,392 1,057,456
248,851 232,870 19,230 — 22,859,428 22,088,839

— — — — 3,697,631 3,943,096
3,180 — 139,159 — 620,996 597,428

252,031 232,870 740,546 — 29,101,506 27,993,449

— — — — 16,826,682 16,398,037

29 1,462 588,967 — 3,843,791 3,138,599

— — 5,466 — 132,264 117,118

— — 124 — 697,265 508,935

— — — — 185,066 171,991

— — 136 — 41,469 29,490

— 202,804 51,598 — 500,778 445,482
164,012 562 42,094 — 651,216 587,975
75,674 3,054 98,648 — 2,938,654 3,092,561

4,392 15 1,044 — 20,675 31,554

32,693 111 4,707 — 134,829 142,497
276,800 208,008 792,784 — 25,972,689 24,664,239
(24,769) 24,862 (52,238) — 3,128,817 3,329,210
24,769 — 67,308 (45,510) 814,737 717,787
— (24,862) (6,214) 45,510 (2,752,528) (2,866,093)

— — 7,559 — 11,184 14,005
— — (3,302) — (1,319,708) (1,145,887)
24,769 (24,862) 65,351 — (3,246,315) (3,280,188)

— — 13,113 — (117,498) 49,022

— — 70,381 — 581,400 532,378

$ — — 83,494 % — 463,902 $ 581,400
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Special Revenue Funds —

Combining Schedule of Cash Receipts

and Disbursements

Budgetary Basis — Financial Plan and Actual

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

State Lottery Federal USDA-FNS
Favorable Favorable
Financial (Unfavorable) Financial (Unfavorable)
Plan Actual Variance Plan Actual Variance
RECEIPTS:
TaXES « et $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Miscellaneous . .................. 1,587,000 1,575,900 (11,100) 92,000 97,300 5,300
Federalgrants . .................. — — — 1,063,000 1,093,300 30,300
Total receipts . .............. 1,587,000 1,575,900 (11,100) 1,155,000 1,190,600 35,600
DISBURSEMENTS:
Local assistance grants ........... 1,530,000 1,530,000 — 1,112,000 1,176,700 (64,700)
Departmental operations .......... 132,000 125,900 6,100 29,000 34,100 (5,100)
General state charges ............ 5,000 3,900 1,100 4,000 3,200 800
Capital projects .. ................ — — — — — —
Total disbursements ... ...... 1,667,000 1,659,800 7,200 1,145,000 1,214,000 (69,000)
Excess (deficiency) of receipts over
disbursements ................. (80,000) (83,900) (3,900) 10,000 (23,400) (33,400)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers from other funds ......... 80,000 87,600 7,600 — — —
Transfers to other funds ........... — — — (10,000) (3,200) 6,800
Net other financing
sources (US€S) ........... 80,000 87,600 7,600 (10,000) (3,200) 6,800
Excess (deficiency) of receipts
and other financing sources
over disbursements and other
financinguses .................. $ — $ 3,700 $ 3,700 $ — $ (26,600) $ (26,600)




State
Federal DHHS University Income
Favorable Favorable
Financial (Unfavorable) Financial (Unfavorable)
Plan Actual Variance Plan Actual Variance
$ — $ — $ — — $ — $ —

— — — 1,653,000 1,560,700 (92,300)
19,321,000 18,076,200 (1,244,800) — — —
19,321,000 18,076,200 (1,244,800) 1,653,000 1,560,700 (92,300)
16,347,000 15,602,200 744,800 — — —

514,000 332,900 181,100 1,774,000 1,726,700 47,300

51,000 30,300 20,700 — — —
16,912,000 15,965,400 946,600 1,774,000 1,726,700 47,300
2,409,000 2,110,800 (298,200) (121,000) (166,000) (45,000)

— — — 134,000 144,000 10,000
(2,022,000) (2,035,200) (13,200) — — —
(2,022,000) (2,035,200) (13,200) 134,000 144,000 10,000

$ 387,000 $ 75,600 $ (311,400) $ 13,000 $ (22,000) $ (35,000)

(Continued)
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Special Revenue Funds —
Combining Schedule of Cash Receipts

and Disbursements

Budgetary Basis — Financial Plan and Actual (cont’d)

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

RECEIPTS:

DISBURSEMENTS:
Local assistance grants . ..........
Departmental operations ..........
General state charges ............
Capital projects ..................

Total disbursements . ......

Excess (deficiency) of receipts over
disbursements .......... ... ...

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers from other funds .........
Transfers to other funds ...........

Net other financing
sources (US€S) ...........

Excess (deficiency) of receipts
and other financing sources
over disbursements and other
financinguses ..................

Mass Transportation Earmarked
Operating Assistance Revenue Account
Favorable Favorable
Financial (Unfavorable) Financial (Unfavorable)
Plan Actual Variance Plan Actual Variance
1,051,000 $ 1,050,400 $ (600) $ — $ — —
12,000 9,700 (2,300) 1,571,000 1,573,700 2,700
— — — — 800 800
1,063,000 1,060,100 (2,900) 1,571,000 1,574,500 3,500
1,211,000 1,207,500 3,500 793,000 765,600 27,400
4,000 3,500 500 2,880,000 2,793,000 87,000
1,000 1,000 — 149,000 131,300 17,700
1,216,000 1,212,000 4,000 3,822,000 3,689,900 132,100
(153,000) (151,900) 1,100 (2,251,000) (2,115,400) 135,600
— — — 2,328,000 2,351,500 23,500
— — — (94,000) (71,500) 22,500
— — — 2,234,000 2,280,000 46,000
(153,000) $  (151,900) $ 1,100 $ (17,000) $ 164,600 $ 181,600
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Other Eliminations Total
Favorable Favorable
Financial (Unfavorable) Financial Financial (Unfavorable)

Plan Actual Variance Plan Actual Plan Actual Variance
$ 881,000 $ 883,700 $ 2,700 $ — $ — $ 1,932,000 $ 1,934,100 $ 2,100
897,000 995,800 98,800 — — 5,812,000 5,813,100 1,100
1,632,000 2,251,000 619,000 — — 22,016,000 21,421,300 (594,700)
3,410,000 4,130,500 720,500 — — 29,760,000 29,168,500 (591,500)
2,493,000 3,165,400 (672,400) — — 23,486,000 23,447,400 38,600
850,000 904,100 (54,100) — — 6,183,000 5,920,200 262,800
116,000 105,900 10,100 — — 326,000 275,600 50,400
7,000 5,500 1,500 — — 7,000 5,500 1,500
3,466,000 4,180,900 (714,900) — — 30,002,000 29,648,700 353,300
(56,000) (50,400) 5,600 — — (242,000) (480,200) (238,200)
149,000 153,200 4,200 (274,000) (292,000) 2,417,000 2,444,300 27,300
(88,000) (90,200) (2,200) 274,000 292,000 (1,940,000) (1,908,100) 31,900
61,000 63,000 2,000 — — 477,000 536,200 59,200
$ 5,000 $ 12,600 $ 7,600 $ — $ — $ 235,000 $ 56,000 $ (179,000)
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Debt Service Funds

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of principal and interest on general long-term obligations and payments on
certain lease /purchase or other contractual obligations.

Debt Service Reduction Reserve—to retire or defease bonds including any accrued
interest thereon for any state supported bonding program.

Mental Health Services Fund—to account for the payment of debt service in con-
junction with agreements with the New York State Medical Care Facilities Finance
Agency for financing mental hygiene facilities.

General Obligation Debt Service Fund—to account for the payment of principal and
interest on the State’s general obligation debt and the payments on certain lease /pur-
chase or other contractual obligations.

State Housing Debt Fund—to account for the repayment of State advances made to
local governments and certain public authorities that are earmarked for paying the
principal and interest on State Housing bonds.

Department of Health Income Fund—to account for the payment of debt service in
conjunction with agreements with the Dormitory Authority for financing health
facilities.

Emergency Highway Reconditioning and Preservation Fund

Emergency Highway Construction and Reconstruction Fund

Each fund accounts for a portion of motor fuel taxes earmarked for making debt
service payments pursuant to agreements with the New York State Thruway Authority
for financing certain highway capital projects.

Clean Water/Clean Air—to account for taxes earmarked for reimbursing the
General Debt Service Fund for the payment of debt service on the Clean Water/Clean
Air Bonds.

Local Government Assistance Tax Fund—to account for revenues that are ear-
marked for payment to the New York Local Government Assistance Corporation for
debt service.

Miscellaneous Fund—to account for debt service payments related to the issuance of
certificates of participation and the refunding of certain general obligation debt and
to account for the repayments of State advances made to local governments and rail-
roads which were earmarked for payment of principal and interest on Grade Crossing
Elimination bonds.
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Debt Service Funds —
Combining Balance Sheet

March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Emergency
General Highway
Debt Service Mental Obligation State Department ~ Reconditioning
Reduction Health Debt Housing of Health and
Reserve Services Service Debt Income Preservation
ASSETS:
Cash and investments ............. $ 50,067 $ 179,939 $ 722,629 $ — $ 49,956 $ 39,262
Receivables, net of allowance
for uncollectibles:
TaXES . it — — — — — 2,287
Other ... ... .. ... . — 52,745 — 83,920 22,707 —
Due fromotherfunds .............. — 74,906 — — 8,385 —
Totalassets . ................ $ 50,067 $ 307,590 $ 722,629 $ 83,920 $ 81,048 $ 41,549
LIABILITIES:
Tax refunds payable ............... $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 372
Accounts payable . ................ — — 829 — 494 —
Deferred revenues ................ — — — 95,623 — 52
Total liabilities .............. — — 829 95,623 494 424
EQUITY (DEFICIT):
Fund balances (deficit):
Reserved for debt service ........ — 158,409 704,332 — 21,931 25,376
Unreserved . ................... 50,067 149,181 17,468 (11,703) 58,623 15,749
Total equity (deficit) .......... 50,067 307,590 721,800 (11,703) 80,554 41,125

Total liabilities
and equity (deficit) ........... $ 50,067 $ 307,590 $ 722,629 $ 83,920 $ 81,048 $ 41,549
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Emergency
Highway Local
Construction Government
and Clean Water/ Assistance Totals
Reconstruction Clean Air Tax Miscellaneous 1999 1998
30,401 $ — $ 662,142 $ 32,837 $ 1,767,233 $ 1,586,071
2,287 22,455 142,974 — 170,003 157,707
— — 4,674 — 164,046 171,472
— — — — 83,291 66,633
32,688 $ 22,455 $ 809,790 $ 32,837 $ 2,184,573 $ 1,981,883
372 % 827 $ 7,467 $ — $ 9,038 $ 9,384
— — 1,951 — 3,274 3,024
52 254 8,920 — 104,901 110,974
424 1,081 18,338 — 117,213 123,382
26,863 — 658,945 32,837 1,628,693 1,516,953
5,401 21,374 132,507 — 438,667 341,548
32,264 21,374 791,452 32,837 2,067,360 1,858,501

32,688 $ 22,455 $ 809,790 $ 32,837 $ 2,184,573 $ 1,981,883
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Debt Service Funds —

Combining Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances (Deficit)

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Emergency
General Highway
Debt Service Mental Obligation State Department Reconditioning
Reduction Health Debt Housing of Health and
Reserve Services Service Debt Income Preservation
REVENUES
Taxes:
Consumptionanduse ........... $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 55,564
Other ....... ... .. ... ... .. .. — — — — — —
Patientfees ..................... — 265,452 — — 120,925 —
Miscellaneous . .................. 67 21,968 24,334 35,783 1,072 1,974
Total revenues . ............. 67 287,420 24,334 35,783 121,997 57,538
EXPENDITURES:
Non-personal service ............. — — 589 — — —
Debt service, including payments on
financing arrangements ......... — 299,342 2,111,534 31,009 17,298 30,306
Total expenditures .......... — 299,342 2,112,123 31,009 17,298 30,306
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures ............... 67 (11,922) (2,087,789) 4,774 104,699 27,232
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating transfers from other funds . . 50,000 1,821,787 2,639,710 2,485 21,921 —
Operating transfers to other funds . .. — (1,799,252) (552,365) — (114,457) (27,298)
Proceeds from financing
arrangements/advance refundings . . — 8,722 643,440 — 824 —
Payments on advance refundings . .. — — (556,825) — — —
Net other financing
sources (USesS) .............. 50,000 31,257 2,173,960 2,485 (91,712) (27,298)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over expenditures and other
financinguses .................. 50,067 19,335 86,171 7,259 12,987 (66)
Fund balances (deficit)
at April 1,1998 ....... .. ... — 288,255 635,629 (18,962) 67,567 41,191
Fund balances (deficit)
at March 31,1999 ................... $ 50,067 $ 307,590 $ 721,800 $ (11,703) $ 80,554 $ 41,125




Emergency
Highway Local
Construction Government
and Clean Water/ Assistance Totals
Reconstruction Clean Air Tax Miscellaneous Eliminations 1999 1998

55,565 $ — $ 1,908,022 $ — $ — $ 2,019,151 $ 1,916,214
— 195,378 — — — 195,378 170,822
— — — — — 386,377 392,370
1,448 — 29,091 1,400 — 117,137 78,585
57,013 195,378 1,937,113 1,400 — 2,718,043 2,557,991
— — 4,791 — — 5,380 6,399
30,845 — 347,680 — — 2,868,014 2,706,173
30,845 — 352,471 — — 2,873,394 2,712,572
26,168 195,378 1,584,642 1,400 — (155,351) (154,581)
— — — 11,739 (22,250) 4,525,392 4,226,808
(26,092) (195,604) (1,555,490) (9,319) 22,250 (4,257,627) (4,239,313)
— — 319,008 1,101,888 — 2,073,882 1,945,139
— — (318,724) (1,101,888) — (1,977,437) (1,821,375)
(26,092) (195,604) (1,555,206) 2,420 — 364,210 111,259
76 (226) 29,436 3,820 — 208,859 (43,322)
32,188 21,600 762,016 29,017 — 1,858,501 1,901,823
32,264 $ 21,374 $ 791,452 $ 32,837 $ — $ 2,067,360 $ 1,858,501
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Debt Service Funds —

Combining Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements
Budgetary Basis — Financial Plan and Actual

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Mental Health Services General Obligation Debt Service
Favorable Favorable
Financial (Unfavorable) Financial (Unfavorable)
Plan Actual Variance Plan Actual Variance
RECEIPTS:
TAXES ot $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Miscellaneous . .................. 262,000 269,000 7,000 — — —
Total receipts ............... 262,000 269,000 7,000 — — —
DISBURSEMENTS:
Departmental operations . .......... — — — 2,000 700 1,300
Debtservice ..................... 292,000 286,400 5,600 2,512,000 2,500,200 11,800
Total disbursements .......... 292,000 286,400 5,600 2,514,000 2,500,900 13,100
Excess (deficiency) of receipts over
disbursements .................. (30,000) (17,400) 12,600 (2,514,000) (2,500,900) 13,100
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers from other funds . ......... 1,792,000 1,803,600 11,600 2,514,000 2,500,900 (13,100)
Transfersto otherfunds ............ (1,777,000) (1,799,300) (22,300) — — —
Net other financing
SOUrces (USeS) ... ...vvuenn.. 15,000 4,300 (10,700) 2,514,000 2,500,900 (13,100)
Excess (deficiency) of receipts and other
financing sources over disbursements
and other financinguses .......... $ (15,000) $ (13,100) $ 1,900 $ — $ — $ —
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SUNY Dormitory Income Local Government Assistance Tax
Favorable Favorable
Financial (Unfavorable) Financial (Unfavorable)
Plan Actual Variance Plan Actual Variance
$ — $ — $ — $ 1,896,000 $ 1,893,800 $ (2,200)
195,000 202,300 7,300 1,000 800 (200)
195,000 202,300 7,300 1,897,000 1,894,600 (2,400)
_ — — 4,000 3,400 600
35,000 34,900 100 341,000 335,700 5,300
35,000 34,900 100 345,000 339,100 5,900
160,000 167,400 7,400 1,552,000 1,555,500 3,500
2,000 — (2,000) — — —
(172,000) (165,600) 6,400 (1,552,000) (1,555,500) (3,500)
(170,000) (165,600) 4,400 (1,552,000) (1,555,500) (3,500)
$ (10,000) $ 1,800 $ 11,800 $ — $ — $ —

(Continued)
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Debt Service Funds —

Combining Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements
Budgetary Basis — Financial Plan and Actual (cont’d)

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

RECEIPTS:

TAXES .« vttt
Miscellaneous . .......... ... ... .. i

Total receipts . ...t

DISBURSEMENTS:

Departmental operations . . . ....................
Debtservice ............. . i

Total disbursements .......................

Excess (deficiency) of receipts over

disbursements . ......... .. ... . .

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers from otherfunds . ....................
Transfersto otherfunds .......................

Net other financing

SOUICES (USES) vt it

Excess (deficiency) of receipts and other
financing sources over disbursements

and other financinguses . ............ ... .

Other Eliminations
Favorable
Financial (Unfavorable) Financial
Plan Actual Variance Plan Actual
327,000 $ 310,300 $ (16,700) $ — —
164,000 158,000 (6,000) — —
491,000 468,300 (22,700) — —
— (100) 100 — —
109,000 109,100 (100) — —
109,000 109,000 — — —
382,000 359,300 (22,700) — —
43,000 78,100 35,100 (13,000) (13,000)
(398,000) (370,400) 27,600 13,000 13,000
(355,000) (292,300) 62,700 — —
27,000 $ 67,000 $ 40,000 $ — —
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Total
Favorable
Financial (Unfavorable)
Plan Actual Variance

2,223,000 $ 2,204,100 $ (18,900)

622,000 630,100 8,100
2,845,000 2,834,200 (10,800)

6,000 4,000 2,000

3,289,000 3,266,300 22,700

3,295,000 3,270,300 24,700

(450,000) (436,100) 13,900

4,338,000 4,369,600 31,600

(3,886,000) (3,877,800) 8,200

452,000 491,800 39,800

2,000 $ 55,700 $ 53,700
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Ca

ital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the financial resources used for the acqui-
sition or construction of major state-owned capital facilities and for capital assistance
grants to local governments and public authorities.

State Capital Projects Fund—to account for the construction or acquisition of state
capital assets and the payments to local governments and public authorities for cap-
ital assistance financed primarily by transfers from the General Fund, Bond Funds and
proceeds from various financial arrangements.

Dedicated Highway and Bridge Trust Fund—to account for taxes and fees that are
earmarked for financing state, county, town, and village highway, parkway, bridge,
aviation or port facility capital projects.

Bond Funds—to account for the proceeds of bonds issued for capital purposes. A sep-
arate bond fund is established to account for the bond proceeds of each bond issue
authorized by public referendum, including the Energy Conservation Through
Improved Transportation Bond Fund, the Pure Waters Bond Fund, the Transportation
Capital Facilities Bond Fund, the Environmental Quality Protection Fund, the Rail
Preservation and Development Bond Fund, the Transportation Infrastructure Renewal
Bond Fund, the Environmental Quality Bond Act Fund and the Accelerated Capacity
and Transportation Improvements Fund.

Federal Capital Projects Fund—to account for capital projects financed from federal
grants.

Division for Youth Facilities Improvement Fund—to account for Division for Youth
facility improvement capital projects, that are financed by the New York State Urban
Development Corporation.

Housing Program Fund—to account for the Low Income Housing Trust Fund Program
and the Affordable Home Ownership Development program that are financed by the
New York State Housing Finance Agency.

Department of Transportation Engineering Services Fund—to account for costs of
providing engineering services for capital projects administered by the Department
of Transportation.

Mental Hygiene Facilities Capital Improvement Fund—to account for mental hygiene
capital projects financed by the New York State Medical Care Facilities Finance Agency.

Correctional Facilities Capital Improvement Fund—to account for correctional facil-
ity capital projects financed by the Urban Development Corporation.

Miscellaneous—to account for various capital projects financed from the sale of land
or other resources, gifts, grants or other miscellaneous revenue sources earmarked for
capital purposes or from transfers from the New York State Infrastructure Trust Account.
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Capital Projects Funds —
Combining Balance Sheet

March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Dedicated Transportation ~ Environmental ~ Transportation
State Highway & Capital Quality Infrastructure  Environmental
Capital Bridge Enviromental Facilities Protection Renewal Quality
Projects Trust Protection Bond Bond Bond Bond
ASSETS:
Cash and investments ................ $ 251009 $ — $ 210,922 $ 7608 $ 7011 $ 22689 $ 162,829
Receivables, net of allowance
for uncollectibles:
TaXeS ..ot — 67,397 — — — — —
Due from Federal government . ..... .. — — — — — — —
Other ... 23,749 1 940 — — — —
Due fromotherfunds ................. 805 481 — — — — —
Otherassets ............c.ovvvuiann.. — 1 — — — — —
Totalassets .................... $ 275563 $ 67,880 $ 211,862 $ 7,608 $ 7,011 $ 22,689 $ 162,829
LIABILITIES:
Payable to local governments .......... $ 3863 $ 299 $ 3894 $§ — $  — $  — $ -
Tax refunds payable .................. — 3,851 — — — — —
Accrued liabilites . ................... 2,818 3,000 — — — — —
Accounts payable .................... 166,760 74,137 3,752 — — — —
Duetootherfunds ................... 16,845 26,551 8 — — — —
Deferred revenues ................... 23,770 2,493 568 — — — —
Notespayable ....................... — — — — 30,000 4,000 12,000
Total liabilities .................. 214,056 110,331 8,222 — 30,000 4,000 12,000
EQUITY (DEFICIT):
Fund balances (deficits):
Reserved for:
Encumbrances .................. 503,894 977,146 89,389 — — — —
Other specified purposes . ......... 20,160 — — — — — —
Unreserved .........coovvvvninn.. (462,547) (1,019,597) 114,251 7,608 (22,989) 18,689 150,829
Total equity (deficit) ............. 61,507 (42,451) 203,640 7,608 (22,989) 18,689 150,829
Total liabilities and
equity (deficit) ............... $ 275563 $ 67,880 $ 211,862 $ 7,608 $ 7,011 $ 22,680 $ 162,829
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Accelerated Mental
Capacity & Division Hygiene Correctional
Transportation Federal For Youth DOT Facilities Facilities
Improvements Capital Facilities Housing Engineering Capital Capital Totals
Bond Projects Improvement Program Services Improvement  Improvement  Miscellaneous 1999 1998
$ 21,040 $ — $  — — $  — $  — $ - $ 70,366 753,474 $ 708,849
— — — — — — — — 67,397 67,268
— 317,095 — — — — — — 317,095 278,860
— 1,880 — — — — — 378 26,948 26,834
— 193 — — 98 30 1,261 335 3,203 3,190
— — — —_ 5 — — 174 180 909
$ 21,040 $ 319,168 $ — — $ 103 $ 30 % 1,261 $ 71,253 1,168,297 $ 1,085,910
$ — $ 25938 $§ — — $  — $ 1579 ¢ — $ — 35,573 $ 42,727
— — — — — — — — 3,851 4,397
— 15,481 — 21 12,783 192 84 4,275 38,654 90,521
— 130,987 1,583 — 43,329 21,259 30,202 2,758 474,767 459,142
— 145,627 8,984 75,936 129,789 147,543 57,280 21,556 630,119 554,347
— 1,135 — — — — — — 27,966 22,404
68,000 — — — — — — 71,000 185,000 293,600
68,000 319,168 10,567 75,957 185,901 170,573 87,566 99,589 1,395,930 1,467,138
— 1,535,434 3,262 8,399 387,453 126,680 263,251 27,506 3,922,414 3,762,614
— — — — — — — 378 20,538 20,340
(46,960)  (1,535,434) (13,829) (84,356) (573,251) (297,223) (349,556) (56,220)  (4,170,585)  (4,164,182)
(46,960) — (10,567) (75,957) (185,798) (170,543) (86,305) (28,336) (227,633) (381,228)
$ 21,040 $ 319,168 $ — — $ 103 $ 30 $ 1,261 $ 71,253 $ 1,168,297 $ 1,085,910
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Capital Projects Funds —
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits)

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

REVENUES:
Taxes:
Consumptionanduse ..............
BUSINESS ...
Other ...
Federalgrants .......................
Miscellaneous ..................o..n

Total revenues .................

EXPENDITURES:

Local assistance grants:
Education .............. .. ...
Mental hygiene ....................
Health and environment .............
Transportation . ....................
Miscellaneous . ....................

Capital construction ..................

Total expenditures ..............

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures ...................

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating transfers

fromotherfunds ...................
Operating transfers

tootherfunds .....................
Operating transfers

to public benefit corporations . ........
Proceeds of general

obligationbonds ...................
Proceeds from financing

arrangements ....................

Net other financing
SOUTCES (USES) «vvvvenvnnnnnn.

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over expenditures and
other financinguses ................

Fund balances (deficits) at April 1,1998 .. ..

Fund balances (deficits) at March 31, 1999 . .

Dedicated Transportation ~ Environmental ~ Transportation
State Highway & Capital Quality Infrastructure  Environmental
Capital Bridge Environmental Facilities Protection Renewal Quality
Projects Trust Protection Bond Bond Bond Bond
$ — $ 493459 $ — $ - $ — $ — $  —

— 518,370 — — — — —

— — 112,000 — — — —
45,145 550 18,312 — — — 7,096
45,145 1,012,379 130,312 — — — 7,096
4,331 — — — — — —
16,524 — — — — — —

144,744 — 3,798 — — — —

— 11,423 — — — — —
8,256 1 8,326 — — — —

413,276 923,454 53,320 — — — —

587,131 934,878 65,444 — — — —

(541,986) 77,501 64,868 — — — 7,096

599,624 — — — — — —

(141,190) (784,086) — (2,778) (33,256) (4,983) (78,457)
(32,917) — — — — — —

— — — 140 5,000 1,000 86,000

194,059 697,000 — — — — —

619,576 (87,086) — (2,638) (28,256) (3,983) 7,543
77,590 (9,585) 64,868 (2,638) (28,256) (3,983) 14,639
(16,083) (32,866) 138,772 10,246 5,267 22,672 136,190

$ 61,507 $ (42,451) $ 203,640 $ 7,608 $ (22,989) $ 18,689 $ 150,829
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Accelerated Mental
Capacity & Division Hygiene Correctional
Transportation Federal For Youth DOT Facilities Facilities
Improvements Capital Facilities Housing Engineering Capital Capital Totals
Bond Projects Improvement Program Services Improvement  Improvement Miscellaneous  Eliminations 1999 1998
$ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $  — $ — $ 493459 $ 460,800
— — — — — — — — — 518,370 475,470
— — — — — — — — — 112,000 87,000
— 1,273,081 — — — — — — — 1,273,081 1,179,443
— 1,207 — — — — — 52,297 — 124,607 77,225
— 1,274,288 — — — — — 52,297 — 2,521,517 2,279,938
— — — — — — — — — 4,331 4,997
— — — — — 16,140 — — — 32,664 47,598
— 121,429 — — — — — — — 269,971 288,934
— 445 — — — — — — — 11,868 14,824
— 2,628 — 15,569 — — — — — 34,780 51,616
— 896,842 15,963 1,433 610,989 119,435 326,978 31,760 — 3,393,450 2,983,620
— 1,021,344 15,963 17,002 610,989 135,575 326,978 31,760 — 3,747,064 3,391,589
— 252,944 (15,963) (17,002) (610,989) (135,575) (326,978) 20,537 — (1,225,547)  (1,111,651)
— — — 2,695 590,381 15,188 — 963 (962,205) 246,646 209,082
(69,722) (209,652) — — — — — (165,547) 962,205 (527,466) (416,138)
— (43,292) — (73,829) — — — (31,496) — (181,534) (67,133)
154,506 — — — — — — 110,966 — 357,612 485,599
— — 11,105 69,973 — 133,492 351,000 27,255 — 1,483,884 1,132,640
84,784 (252,944) 11,105 (1,161) 590,381 148,680 351,000 (57,859) — 1,379,142 1,344,050
84,784 — (4,858) (18,163) (20,608) 13,105 24,022 (37,322) — 153,595 232,399
(131,744) — (5,709) (57,794) (165,190) (183,648) (110,327) 8,986 — (381,228) (613,627)
$ (46,960)$ — $ (10,567)$  (75,957)$ (185,798)$ (170,543)$  (86,305)$  (28,336)$ — $ (227,633)$ (381,228)
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Capital Projects Funds —

Combining Schedule of Cash Receipts

and Disbursements

Budgetary Basis — Financial Plan and Actual

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Dedicated Highway
State Capital Projects And Bridge Trust
Favorable Favorable
Financial (Unfavorable) Financial (Unfavorable)
Plan Actual Variance Plan Actual Variance
RECEIPTS:
TAXES © v et $ — $ — $ — $ 995,000 $ 1,011,400 $ 16,400
Miscellaneous . .................. 276,000 187,500 (88,500) 741,000 697,900 (43,100)
Federalgrants ................... — — — — — —
Total receipts ............... 276,000 187,500 (88,500) 1,736,000 1,709,300 (26,700)
DISBURSEMENTS:
Local assistance grants . ........... 340,000 187,100 152,900 — 11,600 (11,600)
Capital projects . ................. 475,000 563,500 (88,500) 945,000 921,200 23,800
Total disbursements .......... 815,000 750,600 64,400 945,000 932,800 12,200
Excess (deficiency) of receipts over
disbursements .................. (539,000) (563,100) (24,100) 791,000 776,500 (14,500)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond and note proceeds, net ........ — — — — — —
Transfers from other funds . ......... 582,000 599,600 17,600 — — —
Transfersto otherfunds ............ (44,000) (36,500) 7,500 (790,000) (784,100) 5,900
Net other financing
SOUICES (USES) . . oo ovveennn.. 538,000 563,100 25,100 (790,000) (784,100) 5,900

Excess (deficiency) of receipts and other
financing sources over disbursements
and other financing uses .......... $ (1,000) $ — $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ (7,600) $ (8,600)
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Department of Transportation

Federal Capital Projects Engineering Services
Favorable Favorable
Financial (Unfavorable) Financial (Unfavorable)
Plan Actual Variance Plan Actual Variance

— $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —

— 1,000 (1,000) — — —
1,249,000 1,219,300 29,700 — — —
1,249,000 1,220,300 28,700 — — —

198,000 109,100 88,900 — — —

852,000 920,100 (68,100) 589,000 590,300 (1,300)
1,050,000 1,029,200 20,800 589,000 590,300 (1,300)

199,000 191,100 (7,900) (589,000) (590,300) (1,300)

— — — 583,000 590,400 7,400

(199,000) (209,700) (10,700) — — —

(199,000) (209,700) (10,700) 583,000 590,400 7,400
— $ (18,600) $ (18,600) $ (6,000) $ 100 $ 6,100

(Continued)
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Capital Projects Funds —

Combining Schedule of Cash Receipts
and Disbursements
Budgetary Basis — Financial Plan and Actual (cont’d)

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

RECEIPTS:

TaXES .« ottt
Miscellaneous .....................
Federalgrants .....................

Total receipts . ..................

DISBURSEMENTS:

Local assistance grants .............
Capital projects ....................

Total disbursements .............

Excess (deficiency) of receipts over

disbursements . ...................

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Bond and note proceeds, net .........
Transfers from other funds ...........
Transfers to other funds .............

Net other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of receipts and other
financing sources over disbursements
and other financinguses ...........

Other Eliminations
Favorable
Financial (Unfavorable) Financial

Plan Actual Variance Plan Actual
112,000 $ 112,000 — $ — —
788,000 680,200 (107,800) — —
900,000 792,200 (107,800) — —
157,000 130,100 26,900 — —
712,000 629,500 82,500 — —
869,000 759,600 109,400 — —
31,000 32,600 1,600 — —
331,000 249,000 (82,000) — —
95,000 45,800 (49,200) (986,000) (962,200)
(376,000) (354,700) 21,300 986,000 962,200
50,000 (59,900) (109,900) — —
81,000 $ (27,300) $  (108,300) $ — —
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Total

Favorable
Financial (Unfavorable)

Plan Actual Variance
$ 1,107,000 $ 1,123,400 $ 16,400
1,805,000 1,566,600 (238,400)
1,249,000 1,219,300 (29,700)
4,161,000 3,909,300 (251,700)
695,000 437,900 257,100
3,573,000 3,624,600 (51,600)
4,268,000 4,062,500 205,500
(107,000) (153,200) (46,200)
331,000 249,000 (82,000)
274,000 273,600 (400)
(423,000) (422,800) 200
182,000 99,800 (82,200)

$ 75,000 $ (53,400) $  (128,400)
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General Fixed Assets
Account Group

General Fixed Assets Account Group accounts for fixed assets acquired or con-
structed for use by the State for general governmental purposes. These include all
fixed assets except those accounted for by public benefit corporations, the College
and University Funds and the State’s infrastructure fixed assets.
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Schedule of General Fixed Assets
by Function

March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Land

Function Land Improvements Buildings Equipment Totals
General government . ...........c..iiiiiiaia... $ 80,664 $ 26,475 $ 1,718,168 $ 196,170 $ 2,021,477
Education ........ ... .. 1,093 359 56,817 21,635 79,904
Economic development & regulation . ............... 358 6,166 25,444 15,524 47,492
Human resources . ... 9,151 5,704 180,180 83,082 278,117
Health& mentalhealth . .. ........................ 146,838 19,078 1,866,246 98,676 2,130,838
Environment . ......... ... 404,601 7,401 53,445 29,619 495,066
Transportation . .......... ... 60,945 21,767 215,992 212,284 510,988
Publicsafety . ........ o 23,330 152,801 1,838,858 55,373 2,070,362
Natural resources & recreation .................... 216,384 91,026 192,460 14,933 514,803

Total by function ............. ... .. ... ..... $ 943,364 $ 330,777 $ 6,147,610 $ 727,296 8,149,047

Construction in progress . ... 1,283,199

Total general fixed assets ................... $ 9,432,246

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets
by Function

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Balance Balance

Function March 31, 1998 Additions Deletions Transfers March 31, 1999
General government . .............iiiiiiaia.. $ 2,001,187 $ 32,202 % 11,652 $ (260) $ 2,021,477
Education ....... ... .. 79,980 1,755 1,831 — 79,904
Economic development & regulation ................ 46,242 1,254 116 112 47,492
Humanresources . ...t 270,280 8,180 344 — 278,116
Health & mental hygiene ......................... 1,942,580 193,467 5,329 120 2,130,838
Environment . .......... . .. 475,537 20,665 1,465 329 495,066
Transportation . ........... ... i 501,138 18,007 7,792 (365) 510,988
Publicsafety . ........ 1,991,056 84,113 4,871 64 2,070,362
Natural resources & recreation .................... 489,145 26,049 390 — 514,804

Total by function ........... .. .. .. .. ... .... 7,797,145 385,692 33,790 — 8,149,047

Construction in progress . ... 1,245,428 266,868 229,097 — 1,283,199

Total ... $ 9042573 $ 652,560 $ 262,887 $ — $ 9,432,246




Schedule of General Fixed Assets

by Source

March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

General Fixed Assets:

Land ........ .
Land improvements . ....................
Buildings . .......... ...
Equipment ......... ... ...
Construction in progress . ................

Total general fixed assets .............

Investment in General Fixed Assets:

Generalfund ........ ... .. ... ... ...
Special revenue funds . ..................
Capital projectsfunds . ..................
Trustfunds ........... ... L
Agencyfunds .......... ... .. ..
Donations . ......... ... i,
Fixed assets—initial inventory .............

Total investment in general fixed assets

943,364
330,777
6,147,610
727,296
1,283,199

9,432,246

1,138,261
61,726
4,458,442
6,332
1,407
57,886
3,708,192

9,432,246

STATE OF NEW YORK e
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College and Unwversity
Funds

College and University Funds account for the operation of both State University of
New York (SUNY) and the senior colleges of the City University of New York (CUNY).

Current Funds—-Unrestricted—account for those assets which can be expended
for any purpose in performing their primary objective.

Current Funds—Restricted—account for those assets received by donors or other
outside agencies that are restricted by them for specific operating purposes.

Loan Funds—account for gifts and grants which are limited by the terms of the
donors for the purpose of making loans to students.

Endowment and Similar Funds—account for resources that are subject to the restric-
tions of gift instruments requiring in perpetuity that the principal be invested and
the income only be utilized.

Plant Funds—account for resources that have been or are to be invested in property,
plant and equipment, and funds reserved to retire debt incurred to finance facilities.
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College and University Funds
Combining Balance Sheet

March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

ASSETS:

Cash and investments

Other receivables, net of allowances

for uncollectibles

Due from other funds
Fixed assets .. ..
Other assets .. ..

Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Accrued liabilities

Due to other funds
Deferred revenues

Obligations under lease/purchase and
other financing arrangements . . . ..

Total liabilities

EQUITY:

Fund balances:

Reserved for other specified

purposes

Investment in fixed assets
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity . ...

Current Funds

Loan Funds

State City State City
University University University University
of New York of New York Total of New York of New York Total
437,183 $ 229,938 $ 667,121 $ 8,061 $ 4,101 $ 12,162
323,033 123,739 446,772 120,383 23,490 143,873
388,929 57,297 446,226 13 349 362
37,310 867 38,177 2 — 2
1,186,455 $ 411,841 $ 1,598,296 $ 128,459 $ 27,940 $ 156,399
711,960 $ 212,561 $ 924,521 $ 166 $ 407 $ 573
206,570 8,078 214,648 1,055 — 1,055
98,537 24,480 123,017 — — —
1,017,067 245,119 1,262,186 1,221 407 1,628
169,388 166,722 336,110 127,238 27,533 154,771
169,388 166,722 336,110 127,238 27,533 154,771
1,186,455 $ 411,841 $ 1,598,296 $ 128,459 $ 27,940 $ 156,399
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Endowment and Similar Funds Plant Funds
State City State City
University University University University
of New York of New York Total of New York of New York Total
$ 663,918 $ 64,820 $ 728,738 $ 1,014,463 $ 977,405 $ 1,991,868
1,707 — 1,707 10,604 7,874 18,478
4 759 763 208,652 84 208,736
— — — 5,107,917 2,942,468 8,050,385
1,573 — 1,573 1,040 287 1,327
$ 667,202 $ 65,579 $ 732,781  $ 6,342,676 $ 3,928,118 $ 10,270,794
$ 2,924 $ 2,452 $ 5376 $ 263,719 $ 34,623 $ 298,342
1,034 — 1,034 — — _
7,680 — 7,680 — — —
— — — 3,920,284 2,552,180 6,472,464
11,638 2,452 14,090 4,184,003 2,586,803 6,770,806
655,564 63,127 718,691 — — —
— — — 2,158,673 1,341,315 3,499,988
655,564 63,127 718,691 2,158,673 1,341,315 3,499,988
$ 667,202 $ 65,579 $ 732,781 $ 6,342,676 $ 3,928,118 $ 10,270,794

(Continued)



114 « STATE OF NEW YORK

College and University Funds
Combining Balance Sheet (cont’d)

March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Agency Funds
State City
University University Totals
of New York of New York Total Eliminations 1999 1998
ASSETS:
Cash and investments ............ $ — $ 3,596 $ 3,596 $ — $ 3,403,485 $ 3,102,664
Other receivables, net of allowances
for uncollectibles . .............. — 27 27 — 610,857 580,630
Due from otherfunds ............. — — — (216,737) 439,350 395,988
Fixedassets .................... — — — — 8,050,385 7,683,272
Otherassets .................... — — — — 41,079 43,299
Total assets . ............. $ — $ 3,623 $ 3,623 $ (216,737) $ 12,545,156 $ 11,805,853
LIABILITIES:
Accrued liabilities . ............... $ — $ 3,623 $ 3,623 $ — $ 1,232,435 $ 1,212,301
Duetootherfunds ............... — — — (216,737) — —
Deferred revenues ............... — — — — 130,697 107,992
Obligations under lease/purchase and
other financing arrangements . . . .. — — — — 6,472,464 6,302,049
Total liabilities ............ — 3,623 3,623 (216,737) 7,835,596 7,622,342
EQUITY:
Fund balances:
Reserved for other specified
pUrPOSES . ... — — — — 1,209,572 1,036,339
Investment in fixed assets ......... — — — — 3,499,988 3,147,172
Total equity .............. — — — — 4,709,560 4,183,511

Total liabilities and equity .. $ — $ 3,623 $ 3623 $ (216,737) $ 12,545,156 $ 11,805,853




College and University Funds
Combining Statement of Changes
in Fund Balances

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)
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Current Funds
Unrestricted Restricted
State City State City
University University University University
of New York  of New York Total of New York  of New York Total
Revenues and other additions:
Unrestricted current fund revenues . . ... ... $ 2,234,066 $ 538,248 $ 2,772,314 $ — $ — $ —
New York City appropriations ............ — — — — 4,225 4,225
Government grants and contracts:
Federal ............ ... ... ... ...... — — — 337,040 170,746 507,786
New York State ..................... — — — 139,198 32,636 171,834
New York City . ......... ... — — — — 28,489 28,489
Other ... — — — 8,407 — 8,407
Private gifts, grants and contracts .. ....... — — — 77,644 57,503 135,147
Investmentincome .................... — — — 13,537 4,693 18,230
Realized and unrealized gains ........... — — — 8 6,502 6,510
Interest on loans receivable ............. — — — — — —
U.S. governmentadvances .. ............ — — — — — —
Expended for plant facilities ............. — — — — — —
Retirement indebtedness ............... — — — — — —
Other additions . ...................... — — — 3,931 1,870 5,801
Total revenues and other additions ... 2,234,066 538,248 2,772,314 579,765 306,664 886,429
Expenditures and other deductions:
Educational and general expenditures . .. .. 2,331,444 997,996 3,329,440 597,088 289,518 886,606
Hospitals and clinics . .................. 780,150 — 780,150 52 — 52
Auxiliary enterprises expenditures . ....... 343,542 10,143 353,685 417 — 417
Indirect cost recovered ................. — — — 84,147 18,284 102,431
Refunded to grantors . ................. — — — — — —
Loan cancellations and write-offs ......... — — — — — —
Administrationcosts ................... — — — — — —
Expended for plant facilities ............. — — — — — —
Additional indebtedness incurred
to effect refinancing .. ................ — — — — — —
Debt service:
Principal . .......... ... ... L — — — — — —
Interest ........ ... ..l — — — — — —
Plant and equipment write-offs and disposals . . — — — — — —
Lossonrefinancing .................... — — — — — —
Otherdeductions .. .................... — — — — — —
Total expenditures and other deductions . . 3,455,136 1,008,139 4,463,275 681,704 307,802 989,506
Transfers from (to) other funds:
Mandatory:
Debt service and reserve requirements . . (370,030) — (370,030) — — —
Renewals and replacements . .. ........ — (650) (650) — — —
Loan fund matchinggrant ............. (237) — (237) — — —
Nonmandatory:
Interfund transfers . .................. (44,643) (4,515) (49,158) (3,686) 688 (2,998)
State appropriations . ................ 1,645,533 491,723 2,137,256 104,561 10,293 114,854
Total transfers from (to) other funds . .. 1,230,623 486,558 1,717,181 100,875 10,981 111,856
Net increase (decrease) for theyear ....... 9,553 16,667 26,220 (1,064) 9,843 8,779
Fund balances (deficit) at April 1, 1998,
asrestated ........... ... 138,436 (15,028) 123,408 22,463 155,240 177,703
Fund balances at March 31,1999 ......... $ 147,989 $ 1,639 $ 149,628 $ 21,399 $ 165,083 $ 186,482

(Continued)
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College and University Funds
Combining Statement of Changes
in Fund Balances (cont’d)

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Loan Funds Endowment and Similar Funds
State City State City
University University University University
of New York  of New York Total of New York  of New York Total

Revenues and other additions:
Unrestricted current fund revenues . . ... ... $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
New York City appropriations ............ — — — — — —
Government grants and contracts:

Federal ............ ... ... ....... — 1,948 1,948 — — —

New York State ..................... — — — — — —

New York City . ......... .. ...ivn.. — — — — — —

Other ... ... — — — — — —
Private gifts, grants and contracts . . ....... — 49 49 6,408 214 6,622
Investmentincome .................... 456 150 606 492 — 492
Realized and unrealized gains ........... — — — 94,626 8,510 103,136
Interest on loans receivable . ............ 3,043 1,151 4,194 — — —
U.S. governmentadvances . ............. 870 — 870 — — —

Expended for plant facilities ............. — — — — — _
Retirement indebtedness . .............. — — — — — —
Other additions . ...................... 869 717 1,586 765 — 765

Total revenues and other additions ... 5,238 4,015 9,253 102,291 8,724 111,015

Expenditures and other deductions:
Educational and general expenditures . . . .. — — — — — —
Hospitals and clinics . .................. — - — — _ _
Auxiliary enterprises expenditures ........ — — — — — —
Indirect costrecovered ................. — — — — — —

Refundedtograntors .................. 267 — 267 — — —
Loan cancellations and write-offs ......... 1,214 1,868 3,082 — — —
Administrationcosts . .................. 1,064 625 1,689 — — —

Expended for plant facilities ............. — — — — — _
Additional indebtedness incurred

to effectrefinancing .. ................ — — — — — —
Debt service:

Principal . ........ ... ... — — — — — —

Interest . ....... ... . ... — — — — — —
Plant and equipment write-offs and disposals . . — - — — _ _
Lossonrefinancing .................... — — — — — —

Other deductions .. .................... 135 — 135 — — —
Total expenditures and other deductions . . 2,680 2,493 5,173 — — —
Transfers from (to) other funds:
Mandatory:
Debt service and reserve requirements . . — — — — — —
Renewals and replacements .. ......... — 650 650 — — —
Loan fund matchinggrant ............. 237 — 237 — — —
Nonmandatory:
Interfund transfers . .................. (163) — (163) 2,809 (813) 1,996
State appropriations ................. — — — — — —
Total transfers from (to) other funds . .. 74 650 724 2,809 (813) 1,996
Net increase (decrease) for theyear ....... 2,632 2,172 4,804 105,100 7,911 113,011
Fund balances (deficit) at April 1, 1998,
asrestated ........... ... .., 124,606 25,361 149,967 550,464 55,216 605,680

Fund balances at March 31,1999 ......... $ 127,238 $ 27,533 $ 154,771 $ 655,564 $ 63,127 $ 718,691
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Plant Funds
State City
University University
of New York  of New York Total
$ — $ — $ —
1,189 — 1,189
59,114 59,035 118,149
130,243 47,676 177,919
128,063 85,133 213,196
2,627 — 2,627
321,236 191,844 513,080
149,344 42,111 191,455
— 22,312 22,312
128,063 85,133 213,196
229,842 120,559 350,401
35,230 22,770 58,000
22,415 — 22,415
768 3,480 4,248
565,662 296,365 862,027
370,030 — 370,030
45,683 4,640 50,323
36,517 244,893 281,410
452,230 249,533 701,763
207,804 145,012 352,816
1,950,869 1,196,303 3,147,172

$ 2158673 $ 1341315 $ 3,499,988
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College and University Funds
Combining Statement of Current Funds Revenues,
Expenditures, and Other Changes

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Unrestricted Restricted
State City State City
University  University University  University
of of of of Totals
New York  New York Total New York  New York Total 1999 1998
Revenues:
Tuitonandfees ................ $ 715593 $ 433,175 $ 1,148,768 $ — $ — $ — $ 1,148,768 $ 1,133,864
Governmental appropriations:
Federal ..................... 19,084 — 19,084 — — — 19,084 18,220
New York City ............... — 22,953 22,953 — 4,225 4,225 27,178 23,838
Government grants and contracts:
Federal ..................... 114,325 13,684 128,009 265,170 155,857 421,027 549,036 534,471
New York State . ............. 16,303 4,030 20,333 137,735 32,307 170,042 190,375 185,461
New York City ............... — 3,234 3,234 — 26,668 26,668 29,902 29,952
Local ........cooiiiiiii 3,195 — 3,195 7,692 — 7,692 10,887 8,848
Private gifts, grants and contracts . . 146,256 5,825 152,081 65,907 50,583 116,490 268,571 259,528
Endowmentincome ............. 3,970 142 4,112 12,817 2,243 15,060 19,172 15,510
Sales and services:
University hospitals and clinics . . 753,305 — 753,305 — — — 753,305 742,545
Educational activities . ......... 27,139 251 27,390 — 112 112 27,502 24,715
Auxiliary enterprises .......... 393,119 9,679 402,798 62 — 62 402,860 386,767
Other ... 41,777 45,275 87,052 3,613 7,230 10,843 97,895 84,242
Total revenues ............ 2,234,066 538,248 2,772,314 492,996 279,225 772,221 3,544,535 3,447,961
Expenditures and mandatory transfers:
Educational and general:
Instruction .................. 1,049,915 496,400 1,546,315 75,606 53,391 128,997 1,675,312 1,619,910
Research ................... 132,432 9,282 141,714 225,188 44,749 269,937 411,651 394,462
Public service . . .............. 76,793 17,456 94,249 65,180 1,094 66,274 160,523 150,451
Academic support ............ 222,234 42,853 265,087 3,020 29,012 32,032 297,119 298,100
Student services ............. 151,016 82,467 233,483 1,644 15,613 17,257 250,740 231,615
Institutional support ........... 363,951 187,228 551,179 19,117 26,744 45,861 597,040 554,814
Operation and maintenance
ofplant ................... 297,944 141,500 439,444 655 2,150 2,805 442,249 429,811
Scholarships and fellowships . .. 37,159 20,810 57,969 206,678 116,765 323,443 381,412 361,308
Educational and general
expenditures ........... 2,331,444 997,996 3,329,440 597,088 289,518 886,606 4,216,046 4,040,471
Mandatory transfers:
Debtservice ............... 307,712 — 307,712 — — — 307,712 298,998
Loan fund matching grant . ... 237 650 887 — — — 887 557
Total educational and
general ................ 2,639,393 998,646 3,638,039 597,088 289,518 886,606 4,524,645 4,340,026
Hospitals and clinics:
Expenditures ................ 780,150 — 780,150 52 — 52 780,202 739,974
Mandatory transfers for
debtservice ............... 20,441 — 20,441 — — — 20,441 18,683

Total hospital and clinics ... 800,591 — 800,591 52 — 52 800,643 758,657




College and University Funds
Combining Statement of Current Funds Revenues,
Expenditures, and Other Changes (cont’d)

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Aucxiliary enterprises:
Expenditures
Mandatory transfers for

debt service

Total auxiliary enterprises ..

Total expenditures and
mandatory transfers

Other transfers and additions

(deductions):

Excess of restricted additions over
expenditures

Transfer from (to):
Endowment and similar funds . . .
Loan funds
Plantfunds ..................
State appropriations
Other

Total other transfers and
additions (deductions)

Net increase (decrease)
in fund balances

STATE OF NEW YORK ¢ 119

Unrestricted Restricted
State City State City
University  University University  University
of of of of Totals
New York New York Total New York New York Total 1999 1998
343542 $ 10,143 $ 353,685 $ 417 $  — $ 417 $ 354,102 $ 334,607
41,877 — 41,877 — — — 41,877 34,600
385,419 10,143 395,562 417 — 417 395,979 369,207
3,825,403 1,008,789 4,834,192 597,557 289,518 887,075 5,721,267 5,467,890
— — — 2,622 9,155 11,777 11,777 14,645
(2,567) — (2,567) (198) — (198) (2,765) (4,977)
156 — 156 (37) — (37) 119 (289)
(44,872) (4,640) (49,512) (811) — (811) (50,323) (42,164)
1,645,533 491,723 2,137,256 104,561 10,293 114,854 2,252,110 2,074,908
2,640 125 2,765 (2,640) 688 (1,952) 813 1,455
1,600,890 487,208 2,088,098 103,497 20,136 123,633 2,211,731 2,043,578
9,553 $ 16,667 $ 26,220 $ (1,064) $ 9,843 $ 8,779 $ 34,999 $ 23,649
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Trust &° Agency Funds

Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the State in a fiduciary
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations or other governments
and include Expendable Trust Funds, the State and Local Retirement System Fund
and Agency Funds.

Expendable Trust Funds:

Unemployment Insurance Benefit Fund—accounts for the transfers from the Federal
Unemployment Trust Fund in the U.S. Treasury to the State for the payment of
unemployment compensation benefits.

Other Expendable Trust Funds—include several funds which account for various gifts,
bequests or contributions made to the State to be expended for purposes specified by
the donor, such as for the benefit of mental hygiene patients.

Nonexpendable Trust Funds—account for various loan programs administered
by State agencies, such as non-interest temporary loans to non-profit housing
development companies administered by the Division of Housing and Community
Renewal or for various gifts and bequests; the principal of which must be preserved
intact with only the interest income available for expenditures for purposes specified
by the donor; such as an annual award to an outstanding State trooper.

State and Local Retirement System—accounts for the payment of retirement,
disability and death benefits to members of the New York State and Local Employees’
Retirement System and the New York State Police and Fire Retirement System and
their beneficiaries.

Agency Funds:

Employee Benefit and Payroll Related Funds—account for various employee benefit
programs, such as the NYS employee health insurance programs, or for the disposition
of various payroll related deductions, such as for social security contributions.

Lottery Prize Fund—accounts for the payment of lottery prizes by the Division of the
Lottery.

MMIS Statewide Escrow Fund—accounts for the transfer from other funds of the
federal, state and local shares of Medicaid program expenditures to a paying agent
for ultimate payment to health care providers.

Other Agency Funds—account for various escrow, revenue collection and agency
accounts for which the State acts in an agent’s capacity until the proper disposition
of the assets can be made. This includes accounting for advances from New York for
paying CUNY operating costs and for constructing New York City correctional
facilities.
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Trust and Agency Funds —
Combining Balance Sheet

March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Expendable Trust Funds
Combined Milk Unemployment
Expendable Producers Insurance
Trust Security Benefit Miscellaneous
ASSETS:
Cashandinvestments ..................cviunn... $ 18,495 5474 $ 643,761 $ 1,938,636
Retirement system investments . .................... — — — —
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:
TAXES i — — 913,318 —
Due from Federal government . ................... — — 339 —
Other ... — — 59,696 158,795
Due fromotherfunds .. ......... .. .. .. .. ... .. .. .... 701 — — 121,545
Otherassets . ........c.c.iuiiiiii i 8 2 — —
Total @assets ... $ 19,204 5,476 $ 1,617,114 $ 2,218,976
LIABILITIES:
Payable to local governments ....................... $ 25 — $ — $ —
Accrued liabilities .. ........ ... . 77 9 141,507 416,143
Accountspayable ........... ... .. 305 — — 22
Duetootherfunds ......... ... ..., 593 — — 27
Deferredrevenues . ..., — — — 6,678
Total liabilities . ........ ... ... .. .. ... ..., 1,000 9 141,507 422,870
EQUITY:
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Employees’ pension benefits . .. ............. ... — — — —
Unemployment benefits . . ...................... — — 1,475,607 —
Other specified purposes ...................... 18,204 5,467 — 1,796,106
Total equity .. ...t 18,204 5,467 1,475,607 1,796,106
Total liabilities and equity . .................. $ 19,204 5,476 $ 1,617,114 $ 2,218,976




Nonexpendable Trust Funds
State
Combined and Local
Trusts, Gifts, Arts Capital Housing Retirement
Bequests Revolving Development Miscellaneous System
8,053 $ 447 8,569 $ 2,705 $ —
— — — — 111,008,692
— — — — 2,227,309
— — — — 8,658,362
8,053 $ 447 8,569 $ 2,705 $ 121,894,363
— $ 100 — $ — $ _
3 — — — 9,171,221
87 — — 4 —
17 — — — —
107 100 — 4 9,171,221
— — — — 112,723,142
7,946 347 8,569 2,701 —
7,946 347 8,569 2,701 112,723,142
8,053 $ 447 8,569 $ 2,705 $ 121,894,363

(Continued)
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Trust and Agency Funds —

Combining Balance Sheet (cont’d)

March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Agency Funds
NYS Management
Employees Social Employee  Employees Confidential Fringe
Health Security Payroll Dental Group Lottery Benefit
Insurance  Contribution Withholding  Insurance Insurance Prize Escrow
ASSETS:
Cashandinvestments ................... $ 158411 $ 24,779 $ 50,939 $ 5,438 $ 541 $ 1,991,647 $ —
Retirement system investments ........... — — — — — — —
Receivables, net of allowances for
uncollectibles:
TaXeS . oo — — — — — — —
Due from Federal government ........ — — — — — — —
Other ... ... ... i 7,747 — — 117 — 64,260 9,055
Due fromotherfunds . ................... 1 167 300 107 — — 192,270
Otherassets ............couuiuiiinnin 122,940 — — — — — —
Totalassets ...................... $ 289,099 $ 24946 $ 51,239 $ 5,662 $ 541 $ 2,055,907 $ 201,325
LIABILITIES:
Payable to local governments ............. $ 67,118 $ — $ — $ 117 $ — $ — $ —
Accrued liabilities . .. ........ ... ... L. 123,865 7,022 19,650 5,633 541 2,055,907 201,051
Accounts payable ............ ... ... ... 96,767 17,924 31,526 12 — — —
Duetootherfunds ...................... 1,349 — 63 — — — 274
Deferredrevenues .. .................... — — — — — — —
Total liabilities .................. 289,099 24,946 51,239 5,662 541 2,055,907 201,325
EQUITY:
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Employees’ pension benefits . .. ....... — — — — — — —
Unemployment benefits . .. ........... — — — — — — —
Other specified purposes ............ — — — — — — —
Totalequity . .................... — — — — — — —
Total liabilities
andequity .. ........ ... ... $ 289,099 $ 24946 $ 51,239 $ 5,662 $ 541 $ 2,055,907 $ 201,325
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Agency Funds
CUNY
Senior MMIS
College Statewide Sole Totals
Operating Escrow Custody Miscellaneous 1999 1998
20,442 % 711,005 $ 1,823,796 $ 443,461 $ 7,856,599 $ 7,970,188
— — — — 111,008,692 104,921,773
— — — — 913,318 958,517
— — — — 339 1,281
— — 15,709 9 2,542,697 2,192,829
623 7,717 9,896 27,666 360,993 335,710
7 — — — 8,781,319 7,488,739
21,072 $ 718,722 $ 1,849,401 $ 471,136 $ 131,463,957 $ 123,869,037
— $ 1,652 $ 1,390,930 $ 9 3 1,459,951 $ 2,134,797
20,040 700,966 458,471 447,363 13,769,369 12,065,010
736 — — 8,081 155,464 161,483
296 16,104 — 15,683 34,406 13,193
— — — — 6,678 21,564
21,072 718,722 1,849,401 471,136 15,425,868 14,396,047
— — — — 112,723,142 106,319,176
— — — — 1,475,607 1,530,666
— — — — 1,839,340 1,623,148
— — — — 116,038,089 109,472,990

21,072 $ 718,722 $ 1,849,401 $ 471,136 $ 131,463,957 $ 123,869,037
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Expendable Trust Funds —

Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

REVENUES:
Unemployment taxes .............
Federalgrants . ..................
Miscellaneous . ..................

Total revenues . .............

EXPENDITURES:

Local assistance grants—
miscellaneous . ................

Departmental operations:
Personal service ...............
Non-personal service ...........
Other fringe benefits . ...........

Unemployment benefits ...........

Total expenditures ..........

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures ...................

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating transfers from other funds .
Operating transfers to other funds . ..
Operating transfers to public benefit

corporations . .................

Net other financing
sources (US€S) ...........

Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over
expenditures and other
financinguses ..................

Fund balances at April 1,1998 .......
Fund balances at March 31,1999 .....

Combined Unemployment
Expendable Producers Insurance Totals
Trust Security Benefit Miscellaneous 1999 1998
— $ $ 1,616,662 $ — $ 1,616,662 $ 1,829,920
— 25,039 — 25,039 27,333
7,940 144 67,568 2,680,504 2,756,156 2,847,935
7,940 144 1,709,269 2,680,504 4,397,857 4,705,188
2,767 — — 2,767 2,915
501 161 — 229 891 786
2,875 9 — 2,168,207 2,171,091 2,084,450
577 51 — 58 686 1,895
— 1,764,328 — 1,764,328 1,762,991
6,720 221 1,764,328 2,168,494 3,939,763 3,853,037
1,220 77) (55,059) 512,010 458,094 852,151
3,000 — 625,428 628,428 569,239
(1) — (930,323) (930,324) (875,730)
— — (100) (100) (100)
2,999 — (304,995) (301,996) (306,591)
4,219 (77) (55,059) 207,015 156,098 545,560
13,985 5,544 1,530,666 1,589,091 3,139,286 2,593,726
18,204 $ 5467 $ 1,475,607 $ 1,796,106 $ 3,295,384 $ 3,139,286
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Nonexpendable Trust Funds —
Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Combined
Trusts,
Gifts, Arts Capital  Housing Totals
Bequests Revolving  Development Miscellaneous 1999 1998
OPERATING REVENUES:
Investmentincome . ........ ... $ 386 $ 29 % 399 $ 2,314 $ 3,128 $ 685
Miscellaneous revenues .................c..ouun... 508 99 2,418 96 3,121 3,080
Total operatingrevenues ....................... 894 128 2,817 2,410 6,249 3,765
OPERATING EXPENSES . ........ ... ..., 232 150 390 442 1,214 1,019
Operating income (I0SS) ... ... 662 (22) 2,427 1,968 5,035 2,746
Fund balances at April 1,1998 ....................... 7,284 369 6,142 733 14,528 11,782

Fund balances at March 31,1999 .................... $ 7,946 $ 347 $ 8,569 $ 2,700 $ 19563 $ 14,528
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Nonexpendable Trust Funds —
Combining Statement Of Cash Flows

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Combined
Trusts,
Gifts, Arts Capital  Housing Totals
Bequests Revolving  Development Miscellaneous 1999 1998
SOURCES OF CASH AND INVESTMENTS:
Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income (I0SS) ... .....ouiiiiiiinn, $ 662 $ (22) $ 2,427 $ 1,968 $ 5035 $ 2,746
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Interest and dividends on investments .............. (386) (29) (399) (2,314) (3,128) (685)
Change in assets and liabilities:
Changeinduefrom ......... ... ... .. ... . . ot — — — — — 49
Change in payable to local governments .............. — 100 — — 100 —
Change in accrued liabilities . ....................... (@) — — — (@) 4
Change inaccountspayable . ....................... 76 — — 5) 71 (95)
Changeindueto ...........c.iiiiiiiinnn.. (47) — — — (47) —
Total adjustments to operating
INCOME .o e (364) 71 (399) (2,319) (3,011) (727)
Net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities .......... ... ... ... ... 298 49 2,028 (351) 2,024 2,019
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest and dividends on investments ................ 386 29 399 2,314 3,128 685
Net cash provided for
investing activities .......... ... ... . ... 386 29 399 2,314 3,128 685
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ............ 684 78 2,427 1,963 5,152 2,704
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .......... 7,369 369 6,142 742 14,622 11,918

Cash and cash equivalents atend of year ............. $ 8,053 $ 447 $ 8,569 $ 2,705 $ 19,774 $ 14,622




Agency Funds —
Combining Statement of Changes
in Assets and Liabilities

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)
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Balance Balance
April 1, 1998 Additions Deductions March 31, 1999
Employees Health Insurance
ASSETS:
Cashandinvestments ................ ... ..., $ 228,520 2,123,781 2,193,890 158,411
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:

Other ... 2,167 7,747 2,167 7,747
Duefromotherfunds ........... ... ... ... ........ 1 9,719 9,719 1
Otherassets . ..........uuiiiiiiiiinnn 103,150 131,544 111,754 122,940

Total @SSetS . ... ..t $ 333,838 2,272,791 2,317,530 289,099
LIABILITIES:
Payable to local governments ....................... $ 103,151 75,721 111,754 67,118
Accrued liabilities .. ........ ... ... 105,649 2,211,618 2,193,402 123,865
Accountspayable ............ ... .. . 124,325 2,204,588 2,232,146 96,767
Duetootherfunds ............ . ... . ... . . . . 713 17,290 16,654 1,349
Total liabilities .......... ... .. i $ 333,838 4,509,217 4,553,956 289,099
Social Security Contribution
ASSETS:
Cashandinvestments ............................. $ 7,165 736,875 719,261 24,779
Duefromotherfunds . .............. ... ... ........ 385 2,149 2,367 167
Total @assets ... e $ 7,550 739,024 721,628 24,946
LIABILITIES:
Accrued liabilities . ........... .. . $ 7,549 738,316 738,843 7,022
Accountspayable .......... .. .. .. . i 1 728,061 710,138 17,924
Duetootherfunds ............ ... ... . . — 22 22 —
Total liabilities . ........... ... ... . ... .... $ 7,550 1,466,399 1,449,003 24,946
NYS Employee Payroll Withholding
ASSETS:
Cashandinvestments ................ ... ..., $ 6,141 3,100,358 3,055,560 50,939
Due fromotherfunds .. ............. ... .. ... ... .... 915 5,761 6,376 300
Total @SSetS . ... .t $ 7,056 3,106,119 3,061,936 51,239
LIABILITIES:
Accrued liabilities . ......... ... ... . $ 3,434 3,107,121 3,090,905 19,650
Accounts payable ........ ... ... .. i 3,622 2,507,664 2,479,760 31,526
Duetootherfunds ............ ... . i, — 23,128 23,065 63
Total liabilities . ........... ... .. ... ........ $ 7,056 5,637,913 5,593,730 51,239

(Continued)
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Agency Funds —

Combining Statement of Changes
in Assets and Liabilities (cont’d)

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Employees Dental Insurance Fund

ASSETS:

Cashandinvestments ............... ... .. ...

Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:

Other . ...
Duefromotherfunds ........... ... ... ... .......

Total @SSetS . ..o

LIABILITIES:

Payable to local governments . ......................
Accrued liabilities ... ....... ...
Accountspayable ............ . ... . oL

Total liabilities .......... ... .. i

Management Confidential Group Insurance

ASSETS:

Cashandinvestments . .................covvuunun..
Duefromotherfunds .............................

Total @assets ... e

LIABILITIES:

Accrued liabilities .. ........ ... ...
Accountspayable .......... ... . .
Duetootherfunds ............. ... ... ... . ...

Total liabilities .......... ... .. i

Lottery Prize

ASSETS:

Cashandinvestments . ............ ...,

Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:

Other ...
Due fromotherfunds .............................

Total @assets .......... i

LIABILITIES:

Accrued liabilities . ........... .. .
Accounts payable ............ ... . i
Duetootherfunds ............ ... ... . ...

Total liabilities . ....... ... .. ... . i

Balance Balance
April 1, 1998 Additions Deductions March 31, 1999
4,922 57,765 57,249 5,438
156 117 156 117
2 405 300 107
5,080 58,287 57,705 5,662
156 117 156 117
4,789 57,850 57,106 5,533
135 56,806 56,929 12
5,080 114,773 114,191 5,662
462 7,549 7,470 541
— 42 42 —
462 7,591 7,512 541
462 7,547 7,468 541
— 7,038 7,038 —
— 21 21 —
462 14,606 14,527 541
1,788,236 2,375,802 2,172,391 1,991,647
77,924 64,260 77,924 64,260
— 27,908 27,908 —
1,866,160 2,467,970 2,278,223 2,055,907
1,866,160 2,280,091 2,090,344 2,055,907
— 714,314 714,314 —
— 18,058 18,058 —
1,866,160 3,012,463 2,822,716 2,055,907




Agency Funds —
Combining Statement of Changes
in Assets and Liabilities (cont’d)

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

STATE OF NEW YORK ¢ 131

Balance Balance
April 1, 1998 Additions Deductions March 31, 1999
Fringe Benefit Escrow
ASSETS:
Cashandinvestments ............................. $ 88 735,352 $ 735,440 $ —
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:
Other ... — 9,055 — 9,055
Duefromotherfunds ........... ... ... ... ........ 131,169 491,211 430,110 192,270
Total @ssets ........ ... $ 131,257 1,235,618 $ 1,165,550 $ 201,325
LIABILITIES:
Accrued liabilities .. ........ ... ... $ 129,882 921,828 $ 850,659 $ 201,051
Accountspayable ........... ... .. i — 9,439 9,439 —
Duetootherfunds ............ ... . .. i, 1,375 6,719 7,820 274
Total liabilities . ........... ... .. ... ........ $ 131,257 937,986 $ 867,918 $ 201,325
CUNY Senior College Operating
ASSETS:
Cashandinvestments .............. ..., $ 56,835 874,601 $ 910,994 $ 20,442
Duefromotherfunds .......... ... ... ... .. ...... 280 37,777 37,434 623
Otherassets .........c.c.uuiiiiiii i 10 7 10 7
Total @SSetS . ... ..o $ 57,125 912,385 $ 948,438 $ 21,072
LIABILITIES:
Accrued liabilities . ........... .. $ 30,923 917,460 $ 928,343 $ 20,040
Accountspayable .......... .. .. .. . 25,845 871,225 896,334 736
Duetootherfunds ............ ... ... . . 357 28,334 28,395 296
Total liabilities . .......... ... ... i $ 57,125 1,817,019 $ 1,853,072 $ 21,072
MMIS Statewide Escrow
ASSETS:
Cashandinvestments ............................. $ 618,775 24,841,992 $ 24,749,762 $ 711,005
Due fromotherfunds ............ ... ... .. ... ... ... 19,861 728,892 741,036 7,717
Total @SSetS . ... .ot $ 638,636 25,570,884 $ 25,490,798 $ 718,722
LIABILITIES:
Payable to local governments ....................... $ 295 1,076,275 $ 1,074,918 $ 1,652
Accrued liabilities .. ........ ... ... 638,341 25,175,197 25,112,572 700,966
Accountspayable ............ ... .. . — 21,752,671 21,752,671 —
Duetootherfunds ............ . ... . ... . . . . — 371,259 355,155 16,104
Total liabilities .............. ... .. ... ....... $ 638,636 48,375,402 $ 48,295,316 $ 718,722

(Continued)
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Agency Funds —

Combining Statement of Changes
in Assets and Liabilities (cont’d)

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Sole Custody

ASSETS:

Cashandinvestments . ............ ...,
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:

Other ...
Due fromotherfunds ............................

Total @ssets ...

LIABILITIES:

Payable to local governments .......................
Accrued liabilities . ............ ...

Total liabilities . ........... ... ... ... .....

Miscellaneous

ASSETS:

Cashandinvestments . .................covvuunun..
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:

Other ...
Due fromotherfunds ............................

Total @assets ...

LIABILITIES:

Payable to local governments .......................
Accrued liabilities .. .......... ...
Accountspayable ........... ... .. . i
Duetootherfunds .......... .. ... . ... . .. ...

Total liabilities . ........... ... .. ...

Total Assets and Liabilities —
All Agency Funds

ASSETS:

Cashandinvestments ................ ... .........
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles:

Other ...
Duefromotherfunds ............................
Otherassets .........c.c.uiiiiiiiiinnn

Total @ssets ... e

LIABILITIES:

Payable to local governments .......................
Accrued liabilities .. .......... ...
Accountspayable ........ ... ... . L
Duetootherfunds .......... .. ... ... ... ... ...

Total liabilities . .......... ... .. ... i

Balance Balance

April 1, 1998 Additions Deductions March 31, 1999
2,267,051 1,823,796 2,267,051 1,823,796
19,427 15,709 19,427 15,709
9,838 9,896 9,838 9,896
2,296,316 1,849,401 2,296,316 1,849,401
2,031,186 1,390,930 2,031,186 1,390,930
265,130 458,471 265,130 458,471
2,296,316 1,849,401 2,296,316 1,849,401
434,532 1,145,684 1,136,755 443,461
9 9 9 9
14,391 232,352 219,077 27,666
448,932 1,378,045 1,355,841 471,136
9 75,921 75,921 9
431,536 1,205,194 1,189,367 447,363
7,072 256,329 255,320 8,081
10,315 179,983 174,615 15,683
448,932 1,717,427 1,695,223 471,136
5,412,727 37,823,555 38,005,823 5,230,459
99,683 96,897 99,683 96,897
176,842 1,546,112 1,484,207 238,747
103,160 131,551 111,764 122,947
5,792,412 39,598,115 39,701,477 5,689,050
2,134,797 2,618,964 3,293,935 1,459,826
3,483,855 37,080,693 36,524,139 4,040,409
161,000 29,108,135 29,114,089 155,046
12,760 644,792 623,783 33,769
5,792,412 69,452,584 69,555,946 5,689,050
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Public Benefit
Corporations

Public benefit corporations (corporations) are legally separate entities that are not
operating departments of the State. The corporations are managed independently,
outside the appropriated budget process and their powers generally are vested in
a governing board. Corporations are established for a variety of purposes for the
benefit of the State’s citizenry such as economic development, financing and pub-
lic transportation. They are not subject to State constitutional restrictions on the
incurrence of debt, which apply to the State itself, and may issue bonds and notes
within legislatively authorized amounts. The Governor, with the approval of the State
Senate, appoints most members of the Board of most corporations and either the
Governor or the Board selects the Chairman and chief operating officer.




136 e STATE OF NEW YORK

Component Units — Public Benefit Corporations —
Combining Balance Sheet

March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

ASSETS:
Cash andinvestments .............
Receivables, net of allowances
for uncollectibles:
Loansandleases ...............
Other ........................
Fixedassets .....................
Otherassets .....................

Totalassets .................

LIABILITIES:
Accrued liabilities .. ...............
Pension contributions payable .. .. ...
Accounts payable .. ...............
Deferred revenues . ...............
Notes payable ...................
Bondspayable ...................
Other long-term liabilities ...........

Total liabilities ..............

EQUITY (DEFICIT):
Contributed capital ................
Retained earnings . ...............

Total equity (deficit) ..........

Total liabilities and
equity (deficit) .............

Metropolitan Long Island Urban
Power Thruway Transportation Dormitory Power Development
Authority Authority Authority Authority Authority Corporation

1,318,705 $ 335,845 $ 5,573,161 $ 7,436,832 $ 712,236 $ 880,156
— — — 21,868,735 — 4,655,155
152,505 59,188 2,260,728 582,299 207,671 21,028
3,308,236 2,856,991 20,571,457 29,212 2,072,304 36,066
398,279 12,904 1,479,888 — 5,198,565 54,781
5,177,725 $ 3,264,928 $ 29,885,234 $ 29,917,078 $ 8,190,776 $ 5,647,186
238,326 $ 63,186 $ 1,436,458 $ 990,713 $ 300,874 $ 339,014

— — 339,274 — — —

— — 429,349 — — —
177,347 19,800 268,103 37,766 — 14,671
1,105,773 — — — — 84,681
1,263,455 1,211,921 11,799,042 27,982,081 7,955,898 4,730,829
747,836 — 1,665,459 — 34,059 440,920
3,532,737 1,294,907 15,937,685 29,010,560 8,290,831 5,610,115

— — 9,331,608 — — —
1,644,988 1,970,021 4,615,941 906,518 (100,055) 37,071
1,644,988 1,970,021 13,947,549 906,518 (100,055) 37,071
5,177,725 $ 3,264,928 $ 29,885,234 $ 29,917,078 $ 8,190,776 $ 5,647,186
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State SONY Environmental
Insurance Mortgage Facilities Other Totals

Fund Agency Corporation Entities Total Eliminations 1999 1998
$ 7,130,237 $ 1,468,079 $ 1,829,002 $ 3,001,497 $ 29,685,750 $ (3,472,971) $ 26,212,779 $ 23,429,608
— 3,465,096 3,571,667 4,242,064 37,802,717 (15,254,818) 22,547,899 21,550,957
687,379 31,523 78,446 4,323,774 8,404,541 (5,926,430) 2,478,111 2,346,931
9,482 — 39 1,718,847 30,602,634 (273,285) 30,329,349 26,535,335
20,304 64,835 — 106,140 7,335,696 (403) 7,335,293 1,928,886
$ 7847,402 $ 5029533 $ 5479,154 $ 13,392,322 $ 113,831,338 $ (24,927,907) $ 88,903,431 $ 75,791,717
$ 7,654,995 $ 162,911 $ 127,953 $ 803,046 $ 12,117,476 $ (52,784) $ 12,064,692 $ 11,137,475
— — — 122 339,396 — 339,396 322,887
— — — 95,754 525,103 (1,615) 523,488 544,886
192,407 — — 337,266 1,047,360 (9,838) 1,037,522 981,997
— — — 5,155 1,195,609 (84,681) 1,110,928 987,663
— 4,030,019 3,421,079 10,160,842 72,555,166 (24,713,676) 47,841,490 37,729,498
— — 7,566 115,435 3,011,275 (57,500) 2,953,775 3,087,059
7,847,402 4,192,930 3,556,598 11,517,620 90,791,385 (24,920,094) 65,871,291 54,791,465
— — 1,799,752 724,680 11,856,040 — 11,856,040 10,990,203
— 836,603 122,804 1,150,022 11,183,913 (7,813) 11,176,100 10,010,049
— 836,603 1,922,556 1,874,702 23,039,953 (7,813) 23,032,140 21,000,252
$ 7,847,402 $ 5,029,533 $ 5,479,154 $ 13,392,322 $ 113,831,338 $ (24,927,907) $ 88,903,431 $ 75,791,717
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Component Units — Public Benefit Corporations —
Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes

in Retained Earnings (Deficits)

Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services
Financingincome .................
Investmentearnings . ..............
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Operations .. ..........couueuen...
Depreciation and amortization .. .....
Interest . ... ..

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Non-State subsidies and grants . . . . ..
Interestrevenues .................
Interestexpenses . ................
Other,net .......................

Net nonoperating revenues
(expenses)

Income (loss) before operating
transfers
Operating transfers from
primary government .. .............
Operating transfers to
primary government .. .............

Income (loss) before
extraordinary items ........
Extraordinary item—
refinancing charges

Net income (loss) ............
Depreciation charged to
contributed capital

Increase (decrease) in
retained earnings . .........
Retained earnings (deficits) at beginning
ofyear,asrestated . ...............

Retained earnings (deficits)
at end of year

Metropolitan Long Island Urban
Power Thruway Transportation Dormitory Power Development
Authority Authority Authority Authority Authority Corporation
1,483,939 $ 373931 $ 3,627,782 $ 62,038 $ 1,377,605 $ —
— — — 1,333,099 — 75,642
— — — 184,077 — 44,310
13,246 20,160 104,883 100,987 — 10,936
1,497,185 394,091 3,732,665 1,680,201 1,377,605 130,888
1,119,766 235,594 4,524,014 272,480 1,201,465 299,180
248,421 — 781,495 2,777 53,256 2,204
— — — 1,399,117 — 267,121
1,368,187 235,594 5,305,509 1,674,374 1,254,721 568,505
128,998 158,497 (1,572,844) 5,827 122,884 (437,617)
— 41,123 636,294 — — 27,066
99,690 23,501 60,476 — 35,021 —
(145,025) (68,308) (381,485) — (233,785) —
(2,209) (39,486) 1,348 — (978) —
(47,544) (43,170) 316,633 — (199,742) 27,066
81,454 115,327 (1,256,211) 5,827 (76,858) (410,551)
— — 1,249,180 — — 452,072
— — — (6,770) — —
81,454 115,327 (7,031) (943) (76,858) 41,521
(18,487) — — — — —
62,967 115,327 (7,031) (943) (76,858) 41,521
— — 533,924 — — —
62,967 115,327 526,893 (943) (76,858) 41,521
1,582,021 1,854,694 4,089,048 907,461 (23,197) (4,450)
1,644,988 $ 1,970,021 4,615,941 $ 906,518 $ (100,055) $ 37,071
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State SONY Environmental
Insurance Mortgage Facilities Other Totals

Fund Agency Corporation Entities Total Eliminations 1999 1998
$ 985,835 $ — $ 3,369 $ 286,093 $ 8,200,592 $ — $ 8200592 $ 6,975,059
— 257,259 187,308 401,455 2,254,763 (982,721) 1,272,042 1,371,604
566,583 71,912 97,567 63,237 1,027,686 — 1,027,686 992,183
35,452 114,781 40 181,863 582,348 (2,291) 580,057 682,018
1,587,870 443,952 288,284 932,648 12,065,389 (985,012) 11,080,377 10,020,864
1,502,973 72,886 103,307 1,140,296 10,471,961 (36,689) 10,435,272 9,117,606
282 2,367 13 82,983 1,173,798 (41) 1,173,757 959,981
— 251,133 182,453 272,032 2,371,856 (982,721) 1,389,135 1,471,803
1,503,255 326,386 285,773 1,495,311 14,017,615 (1,019,451) 12,998,164 11,549,390
84,615 117,566 2,511 (562,663) (1,952,226) 34,439 (1,917,787) (1,528,526)
— — 4,066 366,778 1,075,327 (34,851) 1,040,476 834,967
— — — 37,671 256,359 (1,055) 255,304 170,494
— — — (53,476) (882,079) 113,873 (768,206) (448,731)
(84,615) — — 31,616 (94,324) — (94,324) (94,104)
(84,615) — 4,066 382,589 355,283 77,967 433,250 462,626
— 117,566 6,577 (180,074) (1,596,943) 112,406 (1,484,537) (1,065,900)
— — 22,171 357,366 2,080,789 (113,350) 1,967,439 1,441,240
— — — (24,395) (31,165) — (31,165) (35,662)
— 117,566 28,748 152,897 452,681 (944) 451,737 339,678
— (6,622) — (6,643) (31,752) — (31,752) (4,796)
— 110,944 28,748 146,254 420,929 (944) 419,985 334,882
— — — 42,998 576,922 — 576,922 519,146
— 110,944 28,748 189,252 997,851 (944) 996,907 854,028
— 725,659 94,056 960,770 10,186,062 (6,869) 10,179,193 9,156,021
$ — $ 836,603 $ 122,804 $ 1,150,022 $ 11,183,913 $ (7,813) $ 11,176,100 $ 10,010,049
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Component Units — Public Benefit Corporations —

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended March 31, 1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Metropolitan Long Island
Power Transportation Dormitory Power
Authority Authority Authority Authority

SOURCES OF CASH AND INVESTMENTS:
Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating income (I0SS) .. ..o\t $ 128,998 $ (1,572,844) $ 5827 $ 122,884

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization ................. ... .. ...... 248,421 781,495 2,777 53,256
Interest paid on operatingdebt . ........... ... ... ... ... — — 1,399,117 —
Interest and dividends on investments ...................... — — (184,077) —
Component units using governmental fund accounting ......... — — — —
Other .. e — (84,540) — (978)
Change in assets and liabilities:
Change in loans and leases receivables . ................. — — (780,870) —
Change in otherreceivables ............................ 18,064 (12,205) (25,815) (207,671)
Changeinotherassets ........... ... ... 46,110 (223,410) — (5,198,548)
Change in accrued liabilities . ........... ... ... ... ... ... 47,650 245,251 128,129 299,473
Change in pension contributions payable .. ................ — 16,523 — —
Changeinaccountspayable . ........................... — (28,699) — —
Change indeferredrevenue ............ ... .. ... .. ...... (18,498) 45,578 (660) —
Total adjustments to operating income (loss) .......... 341,747 739,993 538,601 (5,054,468)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities . ... 470,745 (832,851) 544,428 (4,931,584)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Borrowing of operatingdebt ......... ... ... .. .. i 35,000 — 4,618,527 —
Repayment of operatingdebt . ........ ... ... ... ... ... . ... (173,700) — (2,961,741) —
Interest paid on operatingdebt ........... .. .. .. . oL — — (1,399,117) —
Operating grantsreceived . .. ... — 636,294 — —
Operating transfers from . ... .. .. . — 1,249,180 — —
Operating transfers (f0) ... ... — — (6,770) —
Repayment of other long-term liabilities . ........................ — — — —
Proceeds from other long-term liabilities . .. ...................... 70,919 — — 9,352
Net cash provided by (used for)
noncapital financing activities .................... (67,781) 1,885,474 250,899 9,352
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance ofbonds . .. ........ ... ... .. ... L 1,381,895 2,726,454 — 11,107,605
Proceeds fromissuance ofnotes ............... ... . ... . ... ..., 271,578 — — —
Repaymentofbonds ....... ... ... . . . (1,977,360) (1,726,341) — (3,135,264)
Repaymentofnotes . ........ ... .. . i (7,275) — — —
Interest paid onbondsandnotes .............. ... .. ... ... (145,025) (381,485) — (233,785)
Capital contributions . .. ... . — 1,216,226 — —
Acquisition and construction of capital assets .................... (127,999) (2,798,134) (1,921) (2,123,928)
O N (68,589) 461,046 — (18,031)
Net cash provided by (used for) capital
and related financing activities .................... (672,775) (502,234) (1,921) 5,596,597
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investment securities ............ .. ... . ... . .. (10,606,882) (4,057,938) (15,693,778) —
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investment securities ......... 10,777,511 3,452,066 14,729,832 2,675
Interest and dividends on investments .............. ... .. .. ... 99,690 60,476 184,077 35,021
Net cash provided by (used for)
investing activities ........... . ... .. . . 270,319 (545,396) (779,869) 37,696
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .. ............ 508 4,993 13,537 712,061
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningofyear .................. 682 41,249 99,317 175

Cash and cash equivalents atend ofyear ....................... $ 1,190 $ 46,242 % 112,854 $ 712,236
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Urban State SONY Environmental
Development Insurance Mortgage Facilities Other Totals
Corporation Fund Agency Corporation Entities Total Eliminations 1999 1998
$ (437,617)$ 84,615 $ 117,566 $ 2,511 $ (511,570)$  (2,059,630) $ 141,843 $ (1,917,787)$ (1,528,526)
2,204 282 2,367 13 82,983 1,173,798 — 1,173,798 959,981
267,121 — 251,133 182,453 279,853 2,379,677 — 2,379,677 2,302,622
(44,310) (566,583) (71,912) (97,567) (63,237) (1,027,686) — (1,027,686) (992,183)
— — — — — — (141,843) (141,843) (76,141)
— (84,615) 498 — 14,945 (154,690) — (154,690) 370,344
(391,644) — (45,062) (296,328) (203,181)  (1,717,085) 720,921 (996,164)  (1,288,838)
(3,887) 131,698 1,935 (4,494) (995,004) (1,097,379) 915,415 (181,964) (7,006)
(6,351) 2,805 (3,645) — (24,152) (5,407,191) (2,087) (5,409,278) (483,969)
136,459 36,413 32,769 16,593 43,465 986,202 (16,364) 969,838 104,577
— — — — (14) 16,509 — 16,509 (45,006)
— — — — 9,721 (18,978) (811) (19,789) (29,851)
(775) (791) — (21) 34,099 58,932 (9,838) 49,094 66,232
(41,183) (480,791) 168,083 (199,351) (820,522)  (4,807,891) 1,465,393 (3,342,498) 880,762
(478,800) (396,176) 285,649 (196,840) (1,332,092) (6,867,521) 1,607,236 (5,260,285) (647,764)
587,623 — 625,251 463,525 870,336 7,200,262 (3,227,147) 3,973,115 4,324,532
(109,443) — (485,433) (166,236) (676,395)  (4,572,948) 1,927,881 (2,645,067)  (3,452,262)
(267,121) — (251,133) (182,453) (286,934) (2,386,758) — (2,386,758) (2,308,788)
27,066 — — 4,066 345,525 1,012,951 — 1,012,951 789,155
452,072 — — 22,171 274,788 1,998,211 — 1,998,211 1,530,985
— — — — (9,678) (16,448) — (16,448) (21,225)
(24,817) — — — (9,108) (33,925) — (33,925) (27,349)
3,807 — — — 3,698 87,776 — 87,776 114,337
669,187 — (111,315) 141,073 512,232 3,289,121 (1,299,266) 1,989,855 949,385
— — — — 1,355,268 16,571,222 (1,457,550) 15,113,672 1,959,395
— — — — 2,027 273,605 — 273,605 536,300
— — — — (677,099)  (7,516,064) 737,345 (6,778,719)  (1,895,325)
— — — — (4,364) (11,639) — (11,639) (3,792)
— — — — (39,342) (799,637) — (799,637) (517,133)
— — — 160,122 70,595 1,446,943 — 1,446,943 1,622,607
(620) — — (28) (168,182) (5,220,812) 273,285 (4,947,527) (3,065,429)
— 515 — — (6,833) 368,108 (7,813) 360,295 689,403
(620) 515 — 160,094 532,070 5,111,726 (454,733) 4,656,993 (673,974)
(8,517,828) (3,822,991) (243,353) (193,006) (7,130,536)  (50,266,312) 48,363 (50,217,949)  (35,651,774)
8,291,330 3,698,324 — — 7,464,598 48,416,336 — 48,416,336 34,814,632
44,310 535,916 71,912 97,567 92,120 1,221,089 — 1,221,089 1,104,964
(182,188) 411,249 (171,441) (95,439) 426,182 (628,887) 48,363 (580,524) 267,822
7,579 15,588 2,893 8,888 138,392 904,439 (98,400) 806,039 (104,531)
15,246 9,194 7,065 28,606 369,390 570,924 (180,372) 390,552 495,083
$ 22,825 $ 24,782 $ 9,958 $ 37,494 $ 507,782 $ 1,475,363 $ (278,772)$ 1,196,591 $ 390,552
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144 o STATE OF NEW YORK

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Other Financing Sources (Uses)

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE PAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Amounts in millions)

1989-90 1990-91 1991-92
REVENUES:
XS ottt $ 27,858 $ 28,019 $ 29,698
Miscellaneous revVeNUES . .. ... ... it 5,971 6,232 4,830
Federal grants . . ... ..o 11,535 13,162 15,743
Total FEVENUES . . .ttt e e 45,364 47,413 50,271
EXPENDITURES:
Grantsto local governments . . ... 28,190 31,012 34,043
Operations of state departments and agencies . ......................... 14,626 15,358 11,495
Debt ServiCe . ... ... ... 1,716 1,848 1,716
Capital Projects . . ... 2,178 2,701 2,292
Total expenditures .. ... 46,710 50,919 49,546
Excess (deficiency) revenues over expenditures ...................... (1,346) (3,506) 725
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BONd proceeds . ... ... 659 753 723
Proceeds from financing arrangements . .............. ... 2,303 3,603 3,610
Transfers from otherfunds . ......... .. .. . . 5,727 7,619 7,790
Transferstootherfunds . ......... .. . . . (6,788) (8,314) (10,492)
Payments on advance refundings . ........ ... ... (1,728) (1,555) (415)
Net other financing sources (USeS) ...ttt 173 2,106 1,216
Excess (deficiency) of operating revenues and
other financing sources over (under) expenditures
and other finanCing USeS . ... .. ot e $ (1,173) $ (1,400) $ 1,941

Source: Office of the State Comptroller

REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(AMOUNTS IN MILLIONS)
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1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99
31,333 $ 32,974 $ 32,994 $ 33507 $ 35,000 $ 36,374 $ 38,985
5,401 5,158 5,997 6,942 8,084 7,698 7,700
16,934 18,627 21,481 22,272 22,329 23,268 24,133
53,668 56,759 60,472 62,721 65,413 67,340 70,818
35,016 37,716 42,551 43,219 43,463 44,667 47,548
11,641 12,074 13,082 13,221 14,055 13,730 13,929
2,076 2,039 2,132 2,334 2,387 2,728 2,889
2,299 2,523 3,122 3,004 2,773 2,983 3,393
51,032 54,352 60,887 61,778 62,678 64,108 67,759
2,636 2,407 (415) 943 2,735 3,232 3,059

801 458 325 188 439 485 358
2,706 6,301 2,352 3,326 3,446 3,354 3,875
7,238 7,909 8,051 9,588 8,912 9,773 9,972

(10,571) (11,317) (11,495) (12,865) (12,193) (13,223) (13,964)

(176) (4,707) (609) (747) (1,279) (1,821) (1,977)

() (1,356) (1,376) (510) (675) (1,432) (1,736)
2634 $ 1,051 $ (1,791) $ 433 $ 2,060 $ 1,800 $ 1,323

EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES
(AMOUNTS IN MILLIONS)
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Schedule of Collections
of Principal State Taxes

(Amounts in millions)

Total Taxes
Personal Sales and Corporate Corporate Other Collected
Fiscal Year Income Use Motor Fuel Franchise Cigarette & Utility Miscellaneous By Year
1989-90 ........ $ 15,252 $ 5,963 $ 543 $ 1,413 $ 541 $ 1,137 $ 3,153 28,002
1990-91 ........ 14,516 5,642 505 1,660 606 1,402 3,536 27,867
1991-92 ........ 14,913 6,025 492 1,866 596 1,620 4,306 29,818
1992-93 ........ 15,319 6,232 516 1,886 555 1,749 4,763 31,020
1993-94 ........ 16,034 6,322 500 2,163 708 1,823 5,007 32,557
1994-95 ........ 17,589 6,789 485 2,198 727 1,705 4,420 33,913
1995-96 ........ 16,998 6,954 502 2,002 693 1,756 4,623 33,528
1996-97 ........ 16,371 7,261 472 2,306 667 1,789 4,573 33,439
1997-98 ........ 17,759 7,562 492 2,343 676 1,745 4,814 35,391
1998-99 ........ 20,662 7,912 502 2,262 667 1,728 4,848 38,581
Source: Office of the State Comptroller & State Division of the Budget
Schedule of State-Related
L]
Debt Per Capita
Local
General State Lease/Purchase Moral Certificates Government

Obligation Guaranteed and Contractual Obligation Of Assistance Total
Fiscal Year Debt Authority Debt  Obligation Debt Debt Participation Corporation Debt
1989-90............ $ 222 $ 31 $ 468 $ 614 $ 37 $ — 1,372
199091 ............ 244 30 583 549 36 50 1,492
1991-92 ... ........ 262 28 682 467 37 149 1,625
1992-93............ 282 26 741 434 35 202 1,720
1993-94 . ........... 283 23 828 399 32 245 1,810
1994-95............ 277 20 914 386 30 262 1,889
1995-96 ............ 262 17 1,051 355 27 290 2,002
1996-97 ............ 260 15 1,164 180 28 288 1,935
1997-98 ............ 258 14 1,259 76 26 284 1,917
1998-99............ 255 10 1,360 35 30 281 1,972

Source: Office of the State Comptroller



Schedule of Ratio of Annual Debt Service
Expenditures for General Obligation Debt

to Total General Governmental Expenditures

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Amounts in millions)

Fiscal Year

Source: Office of the State Comptroller

Schedule of
Demographic Statistics

*Projected Data

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Census Bureau, N.Y.S. Department of Labor
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Ratio of
Total Debt Service
Total General to General
Debt Governmental Governmental
Principal Interest Service Expenditures Expenditures
292 232 524 $ 46,710 1.12%
338 266 604 50,919 1.19%
381 291 672 49,546 1.36%
412 316 728 51,032 1.43%
444 317 761 54,352 1.40%
467 312 779 60,887 1.28%
483 281 764 61,778 1.24%
475 265 740 62,678 1.18%
481 258 739 64,108 1.15%
487 252 739 67,759 1.09%
Per Capita
Population % of U.S. Personal Unemployment Unemployment
(1000s) Population Income (1000s) %
17,950 7.2 $20,880 442 5.1
17,990 7.2 22,322 459 5.2
18,047 7.2 22,595 626 7.3
18,109 7.1 23,874 734 8.6
18,153 7.0 24,824 663 7.8
18,169 7.0 25,276 593 6.9
18,178 6.9 26,782 498 6.3
18,185 6.9 27,264 495 6.3
18,137 6.8 30,909 514 6.4
18,175 6.7 31,796 461 5.6
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Schedule of City Populations

Within New York State

(ﬂ 1930 1940 1950 1960 1970 1980 1990
New York City ................ 6,930,446 7,454,995 7,891,957 7,781,984 7,895,563 7,071,639 7,322,564
Buffalo ...................... 573,076 575,901 580,132 532,759 462,768 357,370 328,123
Rochester .................... 328,132 324,975 332,488 318,611 295,011 241,741 231,636
Yonkers . ... 134,646 142,598 152,798 190,634 204,297 195,351 188,082
Syracuse ... 209,326 205,967 220,583 216,038 197,297 170,105 163,860
Albany ......... ... ... . 127,412 130,577 134,995 129,726 115,781 101,727 101,082
utica ..o 101,740 100,518 101,531 100,410 91,373 75,632 68,637
NiagaraFalls ................. 75,460 78,029 90,872 102,394 85,615 71,384 61,840
Schenectady ................. 95,692 87,549 91,785 81,682 77,859 67,972 65,566
OtherAreas .................. 4,012,136 4,378,033 5,233,051 7,328,066 8,816,394 9,205,244 9,459,065

Total State Population ..... 12,588,066 13,479,142 14,830,192 16,782,304 18,241,958 17,558,165 17,990,455
Source: U.S. Department of Commerce — Bureau of Census
Schedule of Ten Largest

L] L]
Industrial & Commercial Employers
Firm Location
Bank of New YOrk . ........ oot New York City
Bell Atlantic (NY Telephone) .......... ... ... ... .... Various
The Chase Manhattan Bank .......................... New York City
Citicorp (Nnow Citigroup) .. ...ovviiiii i New York City
Consolidated Edison ...t New York City
Eastman Kodak Company ...............ccoiiuniin.... Rochester
General Electric Corporation ................oiuuun... Various
General Motors Corporation ..............ouuiennin.. Various
International Business Machines Corporation ........... Various
JC PENNEY .ottt Various
Source: New York State Empire State Development Corporation
L ]
Schedule of Nonagricultural
L]
Employment by Categories
Percentage
Composition of
Employment (1998)
United States New York
CONSITUCTION Lottt e e e 4.8% 3.4%
Finance, Insurance and Real EState . . ... ... . i e e 5.9% 8.9%
GOV I MM BNt o oo e e 15.8% 17.2%
Manufacturing and MiNiNg . ... ..o 15.4% 11.2%
Services and Other . ... . . 29.8% 34.0%
Transportation, Communication and
Other ULIItiES ..o e e e e 5.2% 5.1%

Wholesale and Retail .. ... . 23.1% 20.2%

TOtal .. e 100.0% 100.0%

Source: U.S. & N.Y.S. Departments of Labor; U.S. Department of Commerce
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Schedule of
Miscellaneous Statistics
March 31, 1998

Date Entered Union ...
Formof Government . ........... ... .. ... .. .. ..

July 26, 1788
Legislative—Executive—Judicial

Land Area .. ..ot 49,576 square miles
Miles of State Highways .......... ... ... ... ...t 40,000
Number of State Bridges ............. ... ... oL, 7,500
State Police Protection:
Number of Troops . ... 11
Number of State Police Employees .................. 4,945

State University of New York (All Campuses):
Number of Campusesin State ...................... 64

HIGHWAY CONDITION

(LANE MILES)

=

Annual Salaried Positions .............. ... ... ... ... 34,150
Number of Students ......... ... ... ... ... ....... 367,000
Recreation:
State Park Regions ............. i, 11
Number of State Parks & Historic Sites . .............. 187
Expected Visitors 1998-99 . ......... ... ... ... 65 million
Annual Salaried Positions .......................... 1,699
Source: New York State Statistical Yearbook
1998-99 N.Y.S. Executive Budget
25,000
DEFICIENT BRIDGES
(PERCENT DEFICIENT) 20,000
40%
35% 15,000
30%
25%
10,000
20%
15%
5,000
10%
5%
o/ /| : 0
1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1994 1995

1996 1997 1998

[ Good — Excellent [ Poor — Fair
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Revenue and Other Financing Sources by Type

as Percent of Total

COMBINED GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE PERIOD 1990-1999

Type
Taxes:

Personalincome ......... ... . ... . . .. . i,
Consumptionand use .............ccviiirinnnn
Generalbusiness ......... ... ... . i
Other ...

Total taxes . ...

Federalgrants ..............oiiiiinnnnnnann
Lottery . ...
Tuitionandfees ...... ... ... . i
Patientfees ....... ...
Miscellaneous .............. .. i

Total otherthantaxes .........................
Total financing sources .......................

Total revenue and financing sources ............

Source: Office of the State Comptroller

1990 1991 1992 1993
27.71% 24.14% 23.77% 24.32%
14.46% 13.37% 12.88% 12.79%

6.99% 7.78% 9.19% 9.66%
2.38% 1.89% 1.76% 1.88%
51.54% 47.18% 47.60% 48.65%
21.34% 22.16% 25.23% 26.29%
3.60% 3.59% 3.31% 3.66%
1.00% 0.91% — —
1.27% 1.25% 0.54% 0.52%
5.17% 4.75% 3.89% 4.20%
32.38% 32.66% 32.97% 34.67%
16.08% 20.16% 19.43% 16.68%
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999
23.12% 23.34% 22.86% 22.95% 23.09% 24.71%
12.07% 12.81% 11.88% 11.86% 12.02% 11.95%

9.43% 8.64% 8.01% 8.34% 8.20% 7.51%
1.55% 1.56% 1.45% 1.59% 1.62% 1.68%
46.17% 46.35% 44.20% 44.74% 44.93% 45.85%
26.08% 30.17% 29.37% 28.55% 28.74% 28.38%
3.32% 4.28% 4.76% 5.10% 4.87% 4.35%
0.44% 0.52% 0.51% 0.52% 0.49% 0.45%
3.46% 3.63% 3.88% 4.71% 4.15% 4.25%
33.30% 38.60% 38.52% 38.88% 38.25% 37.44%
20.53% 15.05% 17.28% 16.38% 16.82% 16.71%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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Expenditures and Other Financing Uses by Type

as Percent of Total

COMBINED GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE PERIOD 1990-1999

Type

Local assistance grants:

Social SErViCeS .. ..ot
Education ......... ...
General pUrpoOSe . ...ttt
Mental hygiene . ........ ... ... . . i
Health and environment. .......... ... ... .......
Transportation .............. .. . i
Criminal justice ........... ... .. i
Other programs . ...t

Total local assistancegrants ...................

Personal service ........... .. .. .. .. i
Non-personal Service ..............oouuuiininenan..
Pension and other fringe benefits ................ ...
Capital construction ........... .. ... ...
Debtservice ...........i i

Total otherthangrants ........................
Total financinguses .............. .. ... ...,

Total expenditures and financinguses ...........

Source: Office of the State Comptroller

1990 1991 1992 1993
24.41% 25.62% 29.64% 30.87%
19.35% 18.62% 19.57% 19.16%

2.05% 1.75% 1.54% 1.05%
1.72% 1.74% 1.84% 1.80%
1.09% 1.14% 1.38% 1.34%
0.72% 0.55% 0.56% 0.58%
0.45% 0.36% 0.52% 0.43%
1.25% 1.24% 1.27% 1.44%
51.04% 51.02% 56.32% 56.67%
14.91% 14.39% 10.51% 10.23%
7.80% 7.58% 5.69% 6.05%
3.78% 3.30% 2.82% 2.57%
3.94% 4.44% 3.79% 3.72%
3.11% 3.03% 2.84% 3.36%
33.54% 32.74% 25.65% 25.93%
15.42% 16.24% 18.03% 17.40%
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999
30.37% 34.64% 32.96% 32.45% 32.38% 31.16%
17.31% 17.57% 17.78% 17.99% 18.07% 19.14%

1.27% 0.95% 1.10% 1.07% 0.73% 1.09%
1.48% 1.56% 1.55% 1.50% 1.33% 1.29%
1.14% 1.20% 1.74% 1.79% 1.65% 1.92%
0.56% 0.90% 0.58% 0.64% 0.76% 0.76%
0.35% 0.36% 0.36% 0.35% 0.40% 0.39%
1.11% 1.13% 1.25% 1.28% 1.11% 1.06%
53.59% 58.31% 57.32% 57.07% 56.43% 56.81%
9.28% 9.40% 8.77% 8.48% 8.36% 8.13%
5.59% 6.01% 6.26% 6.82% 6.69% 6.22%
2.28% 2.52% 2.50% 3.16% 2.30% 2.30%
3.59% 4.28% 3.98% 3.64% 3.77% 4.05%
2.90% 2.92% 3.09% 3.13% 3.44% 3.45%
23.64% 25.13% 24.60% 25.23% 24.56% 24.15%
22.77% 16.56% 18.08% 17.70% 19.01% 19.05%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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State Supported Long-Term Debt By Type

Principal and Interest

FOR THE PERIOD 1990-1999

(Amounts in thousands)

Type
General Obligation
TotalDebt ... ... .
Percentof Total .............. ... .. .. .. .. .....
Change fromPriorYear . ...............ooivnon..
Lease/Purchase and Other Financing Arrangements
Total Debt ....... ... ... .. .
Percentof Total ............. ... . . ..
Change from PriorYear . .. ........ ... ... .. ......
Certificates of Participation
TotalDebt ...... .. ... .. ..
Percentof Total ......... ... ... .. ... ... ...
Change fromPriorYear . ........................

Local Government Assistance Corporation
TotalDebt ... ... .
Percentof Total ......... ... .. ... ... .. ... ... ..
Change from Prior Year

Total Debt
TotalDebt ......... ... . .
Percentof Total ............. ... . ...
Change fromPriorYear . ........................

Source: Office of the State Comptroller

1990 1991 1992 1993

6,306,441 $ 6,867,728 $ 7,331,755 % 7,696,041
24.17% 20.30% 17.23% 16.62%
8.42% 8.90% 6.76% 4.97%

18,823,147 $ 23,892,330 $ 27,913,331 % 29,454,598
72.14% 70.61% 65.58% 63.60%
15.51% 26.93% 16.83% 5.52%

962,889 $ 935,530 $ 953,650 $ 893,958
3.69% 2.76% 2.24% 1.93%
-0.39% —2.84% 1.94% —6.26%

— $ 2,143,044 $ 6,364,834 % 8,264,946
— 6.33% 14.95% 17.85%
— — 197.00% 29.85%

26,092,477 $ 33,838,632 $ 42,563,570 $ 46,309,543
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
13.06% 29.69% 25.78% 8.80%

STATE SUPPORTED LONG-TERM DEBT
PRINCIPAL & INTEREST

$60,000

$50,000

$40,000

$30,000

$20,000

$10,000

(AMOUNTS IN MILLIONS)
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1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999
7,603,646 $ 7,263,212 $ 6,780,333 $ 6,725,722 $ 6,743,107 $ 6,487,508
15.88% 14.68% 12.60% 12.09% 11.82% 11.15%
-1.20% —4.48% —6.65% -0.81% 0.26% -3.79%
30,283,071 $ 31,859,912 $ 35,797,477  $ 38,144,723  $ 40,048,913 $ 41,747,961
63.27% 64.39% 66.55% 68.56% 70.19% 71.76%
2.81% 5.21% 12.36% 6.56% 4.99% 4.24%
797,222 $ 738,090 $ 658,183 $ 635,111 $ 573,213 $ 647,610
1.67% 1.49% 1.22% 1.14% 1.00% 1.11%
-10.82% —7.42% -10.83% -3.51% -9.75% 12.98%
9,182,946 $ 9,619,181 $ 10,555,071 $ 10,128,774  $ 9,692,778 $ 9,293,368
19.18% 19.44% 19.62% 18.21% 16.99% 15.97%
11.11% 4.75% 9.73% —4.04% —4.30% —4.12%
47,866,885 $ 49,480,395 $ 53,791,064 $ 55,634,330 $ 57,058,011 $ 58,176,447
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
3.36% 3.37% 8.71% 3.43% 2.56% 1.96%

STATE OF NEW YORK e
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Office of the State Comptroller Organization

H. CARL McCALL

State Comptroller

Carl Carlucci Margaret Sherman

First Deputy Comptroller Deputy Comptroller, Payroll and Revenue Service

Robert H. Attmore Bruce Feig

Deputy Comptroller, Deputy Comptroller, Administration
Management Audit and State Financial Services Randolph Treece

John E. Hull Counsel to the Comptroller

Deputy Comptroller, Investments and Cash Management Steven Greenberg

Jeffrey Swain Press Secretary to the Comptroller
Deputy Comptroller, Retirement

Sandra Shapard
Patricia Lamb McCarthy Deputy Comptroller, Fiscal Research and
Deputy Comptroller, Municipal Affairs Policy Analysis
Kathleen Grimm George J. Shemo
Deputy Comptroller for New York City Director, Internal Audit

State Financial Services Group

Ruth S. Walters
Assistant Deputy Comptroller

Bureau of Financial Reporting

Director:

Paul W. Wilkes

Assistant Director:
Gary R. Armstrong

Reporting Managers:
Suzette Barsoum
Ronald R. Bolster
John A. Costello
David J. Hasso
William J. O’Reilly
Randy Partridge

Administrative Support:
Sally Spring

Bureau of Accounting Operations

Director:
Thomas J. Mahoney

Assistant Director:
Mary Ann Rossi

Accounting Managers:
Thomas Chase
Peter Clark

Melody Goetz

Jill Losi

William McCormick



